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MITCHELL, GEOPCir.. & BELT 

hL>r<. James R. M•o,yers 
D]_ st:r ict Judge 

· .Cou.nty Courthouse 
Austin, Texas 78701 

AlTO~Nf.Y,; AT :.\,Y 

All~1TIN, TEXAS ·r~r:·01 

August l, 1975 

WESTGATE-- 1172 COLOH.'-~TU 
Telephone (512) 4'!7-9051 

Re: Inquiry Cor;c:ern.i.ng .a Judge, No. 5 - before the State 
Judicial Qualifications Commission 

Dt~.:.1.r Judge Neyers: 

I und-:o.rstand that you have been selected as the master in 
n~ tl"-c above-capt.ioned p.rcceeding. .I· have conferred 1·1i th 
my c 1 i..c·n·t <:>bout a da t•2 which would be agreeable for a. hea~c.i.nc; 
bef-::>.c,~: the Judicial Qualifica-tions Czmrnission, and Septembc:r 8, 
1975 in Duval County, preferably in the district court at 
San Di <>gO l'lOUld be agreeable lvi th my client for commencement 
of the t:t:~ial before the Judicial Qualifications Commission. 

:r of co•.o:se cannot: cont.'.~ol the impeach;nent proceedings and it. 
is guiL) possible Lhe trial before the Sena·te might occur at 
~.:·h'2 ~~amc~ ·ti1ne. This yo•~l understand o£ course is beyond my 
control. In adc:ition, t.he Federal District Judge in Corpus 
Christi in granting motion for continuance set U. S. v. 
Ca.[r·.il1o on t.he. same date. ·but indicated he -s;\'0:1ld not foreclose 
th·,~ por"»ibil.i.ty of fu.r.thc'r continuance of ·this federel case. 

I think U•2t a call from you perhaps .to ,Tndg'c Cox would verify 
t:h:!. s sr) that t.h~:r0 coH.lCl be ~~ firm se t-.ting before the ,Judicial 
Qn:J.l.ificfltions Commission. 

Sincex-"2ly 1 

Arth':tr Ni tch'2ll 

cc: Mr. Maurice J. Pipkin 



STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE, NO. 5 

ANSWER TO FIRST AMENDED NOTICE OF FO&~L PROCEEDINGS 

TO THE HONORABLE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION OF THE 
STATE OF TEXAS: 

Comes now the Han. 0. P. Carrillo, District Judge of the 

229th Judicial District of Texas, and makes this his Answer to 

the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings for removal 

pursuant to the provisions of Rule 4, Rules for the Removal and 

Retirement of Judges, as adopted and promulgated by the Supreme 

Court of Texas, and would respectfully show the Honorable 

Commission as follows: 

I. FACTUAL BACKGROUND: Chronological Summary of Proceedings 

A. Background to Proceedings by the Judicial Qualifications 

commission 

1. Commencing several years prior to date, an extensive 

Government investigation was conducted by members of the office 

of the united States Attorney and members of the investigatory 

force of the Internal Revenue Service as part of the so-called 

"South Texas Project," which investigation culminated in. the 

return of Federal Grand Jury indictments against several individuals 

including the late George Parr, Archer Parr, and Octavia Saenz, 

;all of Duval County, Texas. 

2. Questioned by Government agents in the course of this 

investigation were the Han. 0. P. Carrillo, his brother Ramiro D. 

Carrillo, and a distant cousin of the Carrillo brothers, Arturo 

R. Zertuche. Ramiro D. Carrillo and Arturo R. Zertuche were later 

to be called to testify before the Federal Grand Ju~y which 
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subsequently returned indictments against George Parr, Archer 

Parr, and Octavia Saenz. While both men from the outset claimed 

their Fifth Amendment rights and privileges and refused to 

testify, as a result of intensive questioning by the Assistant 

United States Attorney John Clark, both Ramiro o. Carrillo and 

Arturo R.Zertuche eventually give testimony before the Federal 

Grand Jury for the Western District of Texas sitting in San 

Anton~o. Ramiro D. Carrillo testified before the Grand Jury 

on three occasions: during two Grand Jury sessions on the lOth 

day of October, 1972 and on the Grand Jury session on the 15th 

of January, 1973. Arturo R. Zertuche testified before the 

Grand Jury on the 13th day of October, 1973. 

3. As a result of the investigation, and based on 

information largely resulting from the aforestated testimony 

given by Ramiro D. Carrillo and Arturo R. Zertuche before the 

Grand Jury, a twelve-count indictment was returned against o. P. 

Carrillo, Ramiro D. Carrillo, and Arturo R. Zertuche on or about 

the 28th day of March, 1975, by a Federal Grand Jury for the 

Southern District of Texas, sitting in Corpus Christi. In said 

indictment, 0. P. Carrillo, Ramiro D. Carrillo, and Arturo R. 

Zertuche w~re charged with tax fraud and conspiring to coiT".mi.t tax 

fraud and to defraud the United States Government in fue assessment 

and collection of income taxes. 

4. Arraignment of 0. P. Carrillo, Ramiro D. Carrillo, 

and Arturo R. Zertuche was held before the united States District 

Court for the Southern District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division, 
c 

~on or about the lOth of April, 1975. 0. P. Carrillo, Ramiro D. 

Carrillo, and Arturo R. Zertuche each entered a plea of "not guilty" 

thereat. 

5. over the course of the next several weeks following the 

arreignment, 0. P. Carrillo and the other two defendants filed 

numerous pretrial motions aimed at securing pretrial discovery of 
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the exact nature of the charges against them and the information 

upon which such charges were based. As a result of said pretrinl 

motions a·nd the Government's answers thereto, it became evident 

that the charges against 0. P. Carrillo and the other two defendants 

were grounded largely on the theory that the Schedule c. income tax 

forms filed by Arturo R. Zertuche for the years 1967, 1968, 1969, and 

1970 contained misrepresentations of material matters in that .,,-...id 

Schedules C contained sworn state~ents to the effect that Zertuche 

General Store was a sole proprietorship owned by Arturo R. Zertuche 

and that the income received therefrom was the property of Arturo 

R. Zertuche. According to the Government's theory, the Zertuche 

General Store has no independent existence apart from Farm and 

Ranch Supply {a store owned and operated by 0. P. Carrillo and 

Ramiro D. Carrillo) and was used as a front by the Carrillos to 

sell goods and services to the various governmental entities of 

Duval County. Finally, the Government's theory was that, since the 

Zertuche General Store was a sham, the income from the operation 

of said store should have been reported on the income tax returns 

of 0. P. Carrillo and Ramiro D. Carrillo, and the failure to report 

such income on their returns constituted fraudulent misrepresentation 

by 0. P. Carrillo and Ramiro D. Carrillo. 

6. On or about the 16th day of May, 1975, a hearing was 

held in the Federal District Court for the Southern District of 

Texas, Corpus Christi Division, on the question of whether the joint 

representation of 0. P. Carrillo, Ramiro D. Carrillo, and ArtuJ:o 

R. Zertuche by a single attorney, Arthur Mitchell, resulted in a 

;.conflict of interest on the part of the attorney. The determination 

of the Court was two-fold: first, the Court determined that there 

was at present no conflict of interest in the joint representation 

of the three defendants; and second, the Court determined that the 

defendants' right to representation by counsel of their own choosing 

was such as to override any question of conflict of interest on the 
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part of their attorney. The Court did, however, order that the 

trial of Arturo R. Zertuche be severed from that of 0. P. Carrillo 

and Ramiro D. Carrillo; and that Arturo R. Zertuche be tried at 

a date subsequent to the trial of 0. P. Carrillo and Ramiro D. 

Carrillo. The Court further ordered that a continuance of the 

trial of 0. P. Carrillo and Ramiro D. Carrillo tentatively be 

granted. 

7. \-Jidespread media coverage attended all of the above 

court proceedings. 

B. Commencement of Removal and Impeachment Proceedings and 

Continuation of Criminal Proceedings in Federal Court 

1. In the first week of May, 1975, and during the course 

of preparation for the May 16th hearing in Federal Court, o. P. 

Carrillo received a letter from the Judicial Qualifications 

Commission of the State of Texas dated May 2, 1975, wherein 0. P. 

Car:!"illo was notified of the commencement of a preliminary investigation 

against him in his capacity as District Judge of the 229th Judicial 

District of Texas based on four charges of alleged misconduct on 

the part of o. P. Carrillo (Exhibit J-1). The Hon. Q. P. Carrillo 

was given further notice in said letter of his right to make reply 

to such charges within fifteen days from the receipt of the letter. 

Reply to the charges was made personally by 0. P. Carrillo within 

the allotted time by a letter to the Executive Director of the 

Judicial Qualifications Commission (Exhibit J-2). 

2. On or about the 15th day of May, 1975, House Simple 

Resolution 161, calling for the institution of impeachment pro­

rceedings against 0. P. Carrillo on the basis of his recent indictment 

in Federal Court, was presented to the House of Representatives 

of the State of Texas. H.S.R. 161 was sponsored by Rep. Terry A. 

Canales of Premont, Texas, a long-time supporter of the Parr 

political faction in South Texas and~ former attorney of both 

George B. Parr and Archer Parr in removal suits brought in the 
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229th District Court of Texas against the two men in their official 

capacities, as indicated by the Motions for Legislative Continuance 

filed therein. The involvement of Rep. Canales with the Parr 

faction is further indicated by Canales' authorship and sponsor­

ship of a bill in the House of Represnetatives seekiAg the 

abolition of the office of District Attorney for the 229th 

Judical District of Texas following the institution of removal 

suit.s against the Parrs by the present District Atto:-:ney of said 

district. 

3. Also in May of 1975, the House of Representatives 

passed H.S.R. 167, sponsored by Rep. Robert Maloney, creating the 

House Select Committee on Impeachment, whose stated function was 

to inquire into the matters contained in H.S.R. 161. 

4. On or about the 19th day of May, 1975, 0. P. Carrillo 

received a telegram from L. DeWitt Hale, Chairman of the House 

Select Committee on Impeachment, which telegram gave 0. P. Carrillo 

"notice" of the commencement of impeachment hearings by the House 

Select Committee on Impeachment on the 20th day of May, 1975, and 

of o. P. Carrillo's right to be present at such hearings and to 

present evidence and testimony while informing him that he would 

be denied the right to cross examine any of the witnesses testifying 

before the Committee. 

c 

5. On or ubout the 20th day of May, 1975, at eight 

o'clock p.m., the House Select Committee on Impeachment convened 

to hold the first of its public hearingsinquiring into the 

activities of Han. 0. P. Carrillo and others. Over the course 

of the next several weeks, the Committee continued to hold daily 

hearings nnd to take evidence and testimony introduced by Rep. 

Terry A. Canales, while denying 0. P. Carrillo or his attorney 

thF. right to examine the documentary material before the Committee 

or to question the witnesses testifying before the Committee. 
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a. Much of the evidence and testimony presented to 

the :ommittee was identical in nature to that which was later 

to be presented in the Federal prosecution of 0. P. Carrillo 

in Corpus Christi, in that it went to the two questions of 

whether the Zertuche General Store was a sham enabling 0. P. 

Carrillo to sell goods and services directly to the governmental 

entities of Duval County and whether 0. P. Carrillo received 

income which was not reported on his income tax returns. As 

indicated by the Federal indictment and the statement of facts 

from the trial on the indictment, which is incorporated herein 

for all purposes, these were to. be the same questio~s in issue 

in the Federal trial. Whereas H.S.R. 161 indicated that the 

impeachment proceedings were to be brought on the basis of the 

fact of 0. P. Carrillo's indictment alone, the Committee, upon 

the instigation of Rep. Canales, took it upon itself to conduct 

hear.ings on the very issues involved in the Federal charges. 

The Committee, however, did not limit itself to the scope of the 

indictment and the questions of fact presented thereby, but it went 

outside the scope of the indictment and of H.S.R. 161 and received 

documentary evidence and testimony on matters wholly unrelated to 

the above and not included in the limited notice given either by 

the telegram from L. DeWitt Hale or by H.S.R. 161. 

b. Included among the witnesses teotifying upon 

subpoena by the Committee were Cleofas Gonzalez and Rodolfo M. 

Couling, who were to be key witnesses for the prosecution in the 

Federal criminal trial. 

c. Included among the records subpoenaed by the 

Committee were bank records showing checks written to various 

individuals and entities by the governmental entities of Duval 

County, which records were also to play a key role in the Federal 

prosecution. 
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d. From the outset of the committee hearings, 

0. P. Carrillo was denied the right to examine the documentary 

evidence before the Committee, to know the evidence to be 

presented against him, to have reasonable notice of the charges 

against him and the scope of the investigation, and to present 

witnesses or to have said witnesses subpoenaed by the Committee. 

Further, 0. P. Carrillo was denied the right to question witnesses 

subpoenaed by the Committee itself. 

6. On or about the 23rd day of May, 1975, Han. 0. P. 

Carri.llo presented his First Response to the impeacl'.ment pro-

ceedings to the Select Committee on Impeachment, wherein 0. P. 

Carrillo set out numerous objections to the hearings and the 

overall impeachment proceedings, citing, inter alia. the denial 

of substantive and procedural due process and minimal constitutional 

safeguards inherent in the proceedings, as well as the Committee's 

lack of authority to proceed, as grounds for the discontinuation 

of the Committee hearings (Exhibit J-3). The House Select 

Corntr.ittee took no action upon said Response of 0. P. Carrillo. 

7. In the final days of the legislative session, the 

House of Representatives passed House Simple Resolution 221, 

sponsored by Rep. L. DeWitt Hale, by which the House of 

Representatives purported to give itself the authority to vote 

out Articles of Impeachment against the Hon. 0. P. Carrillo 

should the Select Committee recommend such action either by a 

majority or by a minority vote of said Committee, clearly 

evidencing a predetermination by the House of Representatives 

~of the question of impeachment. 

8. At twelve midnight on the 2nd day of June, 1975, the 

Legislature adjourned sine die. Despite the constitutionally 

mandated termination of the legislative session and the adjournment 

of the Legislature, the House Select Committee on Impeachment 

proceeded to hold hearings 8nd inquiries over the stringent 
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objections of 0. P. Carrillo and his attorney. 

9. On or about the 3rd day of June, 1975, 0. P. Carrillo 

l submitted a request to the House Select Committee for the 

production of a list of the witnesses subpoenaed by the Committee 

in executive session and otherwise, a transcript of all testimony 

taken to that date, copies of all documentary material introduced 

I 
and considered part of the official record, and a calendar of 

the hearings·. As a result of such request, the Committee furnished 

o. P. Carrillo a transcript of the testimony and copies of the 

documentary materials introduced. 

10. At 10:05 p.m. on Friday, June 6, 1975, the House 

I 
Select Committee on Impeachment adjourned public hearings, 

purportedly to reconvene at such later date as to be set by 

the conuni ttee. 

11. On the 8th and 9th days of June, 1975, subsequent 

to said adjournment and unbeknownst to 0. P. Carrillo at the 

time, a subcommittee of the Select Committee held a closed meeting 

and private investigation which was instituted in Alice, Texas. 

Present during the course of said closed meeting and private 

investigation were Rep. Terry A. Canales, Archer Parr, Ruben 

Chapa, Cleofas Gonzale2, Texas Ranger George Powell, and various 

and other persons called as witnesses unknown to 0. P. Carrillo. 

Said meeting and investigation Was conducted pursuant to no 

statutory or legislative authority and was in direct violation 

of the Texas Open Meetings Act, Art. 6252-17, V.A.r..s. 

12. Thereafter, on various dates and at various times 

runknown too. P. Carrillo, though including the 23rd and 24th 

days of June, 1975, the Committee or a subcommittee thereof 

continued to hold closed meetings or "executive sessions" without 

any form of notice to o. P. Carrillo, whereat testimony of persons 

unkno~n to 0. P. Carrillo and documentary materials li~ewise 

unknown were received by the Committee or a subcommittee thereof. 
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During the course of the Committee hearings, both 

public and private, numerous discussions on the subject matter 

of the hearings and the proposed charges against o. P. Carrillo 

took place between sundry Committee members and various members 

of the state executive, administrative, and law enforcement 

agencies, including members of the Judicial Qualifications 

Commission and members of the staff of the Attorney General 1 s 

office. 

14. On or about the 25th day of June, 1975, 0. P. 

Carrillo filed in the Federal District Court for the Southern 

District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division, a Supplementary 

Motion for Indefinite Continuance of 0. P. Carrillo's trial on 

charges of Federal tax fraud on the grounds that the widespread 

publicity attendant to the impeachment proceedings ;nade a fair 

trial impossible anywhere in the State of Texas at that time 

{Exhibit J-4). 0. P. Carrillo was granted a continuance of that 

trial on other grounds in a hearing on the 30th day of June, 1975, 

the date originally set for trial of the Federal case {Exhibit a-5). 

15. On or about the 3rd day of July, 1975, a Conference 

of the Judges of the Fifth Administrative Judicial District of 

Texas was held in Dallas, Texas, five of the fifteen judges 

att2nding; and a resolution requesting the resignation of 0. P. 

Carrillo from his office as District Judge was passed by four of 

the five judges. Said resolution made in the name of the Judges 

of the Fifth Administrative District of Texas was released to the 

news media the following week, subsequent to a conversation between 
c 

r 
0. P. Carrillo and Judge Jose R. Alamia, wherein 0. P. Carrillo 

reiterated his previous statement to the effect that he would not 

be pressured into resigning from the district judgeship. 

16. On or about the 12th day of July, 1975, the Judicial 

Qualifications Commission met in executive session to consider 

the various charges against 0. P. Carrillo in his capacity as 
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District Judge purportedly warranting action by the Commission. 

17. On or about the 15th day of July, 1975, in the 

absence of effective notice to 0. P. Carrillo, the House Select 

Committee reconvened in public session after an adjournment of 

public hearings for a period of several weeks. At said session, 

without notice to 0. P. Carrillo, the Committee instituted a new 

format for the proceedings, in that witnesses were questioned 

at the outset by a newly-hired attorney for the Committee, ·Terry 

Doyle, who acted both as examiner and cross-examiner: of the 

witnesses. 

lB. On or about the morning of the 16th day of July, 1975, 

the Committee held its final hearing and adjourned for the purported 

purpose of drafting Articles of Impeachment against 0. P. Carrillo. 

Several hours after the adjournment of the Committee on July 16, 

1975, it was announced that the Committee had voted to recommend 

eleven Articles of Impeachment against 0. P. Carrillo. 

19. On or about the 18th day of July, 1975, the Executive 

Director of the Judicial Qualifications Commission, Maurice s. 

Pipkin, served 0. P. Carrillo with Notice of Formal Proceedings 

against him by the Judicial Qualifications Commission. The charges 

on which said formal proceedings were based, as set out in the 

Notice, were largely comprised of the same matters included in the 

proposed Articles of Impeachment drafted by the Committee and were 

grounded on evidence and testimony presented to the House Select 

Committee on Impeachment during the impeachment hearings. Although 

said Notice of Formal Proceedings set out 0. P. carrillo 1 s right to 

' cmake reply to the charges as provided by Rule 4 of the Rules for 

Removal and Retirement of Judges promulgated by the Supreme court 

of Texas, 0. P. Carrillo was requested by the Executive Director 

of the Judicial Qualifications Commission, at the time of service 

of such Notice, to waive such right to reply. 0. P. Carrillo was 

also informed at that time by the Executive Director that a date, 
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a time, and a place for hearing had already been set by the 

Commission, to take place some four days after the date of 

service, and that District Judge Jim Meyers had been selected 

by the Commission to act as Master in such hearing. The 

Executive Director further informed 0. P. Carrillo that Judge 

Jim Meyers, after a discussion with the Executive Director, had 

agreed to recess the hearing shortly after its commencement in 

order to allow 0. P. Carrillo time to prepare his defense. 0. P. 

Carrillo was further informed by Mr. Pipkin of telephone conver­

sations the Director had had with Rep. Terry Canales and the 

Vice Chai Illlan of the Select committee on Impeachment, although 

he did not divulge the matters discussed therein. 0. P. Carrillo 

refused to waive any of his rights at that time, including the 

right to reply within a period of fifteen days from the date of 

service, and stated that he would have to consult with his attorney 

before he made any decision. 

20. On or about the 29th day of July, 1975, 0. P. 

Carrillo filed suit in the Federal District Court for the Nestern 

District of Texas, Austin Division, wherein 0. P. Carrillo sought 

an injunction against the proceedings by the House Select Committee 

on Impeachment, the House of Representatives of the State of Texas, 

and the Judicial Qualifications Commission (Exhibit J-6). Hearing 

was set on 0. P. Carrillo's application for a temporary injunction 

against said proceedings on the 1st day of August, 1975. 

r 

21. on or about the 1st of August, 1975, pursuant to an 

order of Judge Brown of the United States Court of Appeals for 

the Fifth Circuit and a motion by 0. P. Carrillo as plaintiff 

resulting therefrom, an order was entered by the Judge of the 

Federal District Court for the Western District of Texas, Austin 

Division, dismissing the suit of 0. P. Carrillo with prejudice. 

22. on or about the 4th day of August, 1975, the House 

of Representatives of the State of Texas reconvened upon call of 
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Speaker of the House pursuant to the purported authority of 

H.S.R. 221 and commenced voting on the proposed Articles of 

Impeachment as set forth in the Committee substitute for H.S.R. 

161. By noon the following day, the House had completed its 

vote on the Committee substitute and, with minor changes, adopted 

as Articles of Impeachment all but one of the Committee's proposed 

Articles. 

23. Pursuant to the provisions of Article XV, §6 of 

the Constitution of the State of Texas, upon passage of the 

formal Articles of Impeachment by the House of Representatives 

on August 5, 1975, in the form of H.S.R. 161, 0. P. Carrillo was 

suspended from his office as District Judge pending final 

determination of the charges against him by the Senate. 

24. By proclamation of the Governor of the State of 

Texas, on or about August 5, 1975, the Senate was ordered to 

reconvene for the purpose of trial on the Articles ~f Impeachment 

on the 3rd day of September, 1975. 

25. In mid-August of 1975 0. P. Carrillo was notified 

of his indictment by a State Grand Jury sitting in Duval County, 

Texas, upon presentation of charges of theft against O. P. Carrillo 

by members of the staff of the Attorney General of the State of 

Texas resulting from an intensive task-farce investigation by 

members of said staff. Arraignment of o. P. Carrillo on the 

charges contained in the indictment was set for October 3, 1975. 

26. On or about the 25th day of August, 1975, a pretrial 

hearing was held in the United States District Court for the 
r 

rSouthern District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division·, in connection 

with 0. P. Carrillo's trial on charges of Federal income tax fraud, 

wherein 0. P. Carrillo's Motion for Continuance based upon the 

pending impeachment proceedings was denied by the Court (Exhibit 

J-4). In accordance with the setting made at the earlier hearing, 

the trial was set to begin on the 8th of September, 1975. In 
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addition, the Court in the August 25th hearing postponed 

consideration of several of 0. P. Carrillo's pretrial motions, 

including motions for dismissal, and set a further pretrial 

hearing in Corpus Christi on September 2, 1975, at which time 

said motions were t.o be considered. 

C. Commencement of Impeachment Trial and Trial in Fed~r~l 

Court 

1. On or about the 2nd day of September, 1975 a pretrial 

hearing was held in connection with 0. P. Carrillo's indictment 

on charges of income tax fraud, wherein 0. P. Carrillo's further 

motion for continuance and motions to dismiss were denied by the 

Judge of the Federal District Court for the Southern District of 

Texas, Corpus Christi Division. 

2. On or about the 3rd day of September, 1975 the 

Senate of the State of Texas convened pursuant to the proclamation 

of the Governor and commenced proceedings as a Court of Impeachment. 

0. P. Carrillo's Answer to the Articles of Impeachment was filed 

with the Court and a Motion to Postpone on the basis of the trial 

in Federal Court (Exhibit J-7 and Exhibit J-8). Postponement of 

the Senate trial until the 29th day of September, 1975 was granted 

by the Court of Impeachment. 

3. On or about the Bth day of September, 1975 trial in 

United States of America v. Ramiro D. Carrillo, 0. P. Carrillo, 

Criminal No. 75-C-45, commenced in Federal District Court for the 

Southern District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division. 

4. On or about the 29th day of September, 1975, the Court 

of Impeachment having taken notice of the fact that the trial of 

0. P. Carrillo in Federal Court was still in progress, the Court 

of Impeachment granted a ferther postponement of the impeachment 

trial until the following Monday, October 6, 1975. 

5. On or about the 2nd day of October, 1975, a verdict 

of "guilty" on all counts was returned by the jury in United St:ates 
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of America v. Ramiro D. Carrillo, 0. P. Carrillo, Criminal No. 

75-C-45, in the Federal District Court for the Southern District 

of Texas, Corpus Christi Division. At that time, the Judge of 

said Court set the date for sentencing of 0. P. Carrillo on the 

17th day of November, 1975. 

6. In late September or early October, 1975, 0. P. 

Carrillo was notified by the Executive Director of the Judicial 

Qualifications Commission that th~ original date for the 

commencement of the hearing before the Master in the formal 

proceedings by the Judicial Qualifications Commission, October 2, 

1975, had been changed to November 3, 1975, said hearing to be 

held before Judge Jim Meyers in Corpus Christi, Texas. 

7. On or about the 3rd day of October, 1975, the date 

originally set for the arraignment of 0. P. Carrillo in State of 

Texas v. 0. P. Carrillo, Cause No. 2941, Judge Darrell Hester 

acting as Judge of the 229th District Court of Texas granted an 

indefinite continuance to 0. P. Carrillo in Cause No. 2941 until 

such time as the other proceedings in which Judge Carrillo was 

and is involved permitted adequate preparation and personal 

app2arance by Judge Carrillo and his counsel in Cause No. 2941. 

8. On or about the 6th day of October, 1975 trial before 

the Senate as a court of Impeachment commenced, the Court of 

Impeachment having denied 0. P. Carrillo's motions for dismissal 

of the proceedings and having denied three motions for continuance. 

9. On or about the 7th day of October, 1975, at the close 

of the day's evidence presented by the attorney for the Board of 

Managers, the court of Impeachment adjourned until the 18th day 

of November, 1975, in conformance with a motion to postpone the 

trial until such date which had been granted by the Court earlier 

in the day. 

10. On or about the 8th day of October, 1975.0. P. Carrillo 

was served with the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings 
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from the Judicial Qualifications Commission, which Notice 

contained identical charges to those contained in the original 

Notice of Formal Proceedings and, additionally, six new charges 

not contained in the original Notice of Formal Proceedings. In 

the First Amended Notice, 0. P. Carrillo was informed of his 

right to make reply to the First Amended Notice within 15 days 

from the date of service. 0. P. Carrillo was likewise notif~ed 

on that date of the setting of an informal prehearins conference 

with the attorneys from the Attorney General's office and Judge 

Jim Meyers on the 17th of October, 1975. 

11. On or about the 13th of October, 1975, at the request 

of the attorney for 0. P. Carrillo, the prehearing conference 

in the Judicial Qualifications Commission Proceedings was post-

paned until the 20th of October, 1975. 

II. INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE 

Incorporated herein for all purposes by reference are the 

following pleadings by 0. P. Carrillo in these and the other 

proceedings cited above: 

1. First Response of Jud9e 0. P. Carrillo to the House 

Select Committee on Impeachment (Exhibit J-3 attached hereto). 

2. Supplementary Motion for Continuance filed in Cause 

No. 75-C-45 before the Federal District Court for the Southern 

District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division (Exhibit J-5 attached 

hereto). 

3. Second Response of Judge 0. P. Carrillo to the House 

~Select Committee on Impeachment (Exhibit J-12 attached hereto). 

4. Statement of Relevance of Subpoenas requested to be 

issued before the House Select Committee on Impeachment (Exhibit 

J-13 attached hereto). 

5. Motion to Dismiss and in the Alternative for Indefinite 

Continuance in Cause No. 75-C-45 before the FederaL District Court 

for the Southern District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division 

(Exhibit J-4 attached hereto). 
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6, Complaint of 0. P. Carrillo in Cause No. A-75-CA-121 

befcre the Federal District Court for the t-1estern District of 

Texas, Austin Division (Exhibit J-5 attached hereto.). 

7. Answer to Notice of Formal Proceedings in Inquiry 

Concerning a Judge, No. 5 before the State Judicial Qualifications 

Commission (Exhibit J-10 attached hereto). 

8. Supplementary Motion to Dismiss and Motion in the 

Alternative for Indefinite Continuance (Post Pretrial Submission) 

in Cause No. 75-C-45 before the Federal District court for the 

Southern District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division (Exhibit J-11). 

9. All other pleadings by Judge 0. P. Carrillo in Cause 

No. 75-C-45 before the Federal District Court for the Southern 

District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division (Exhibit J-14 attached 

hereto) . 

10. Motion to Disqualify the Attorney General before 

the Court of Impeachment (Exhibit J-9 attached hereto)_. 

11. Motion to Postpone before the Court of Impeachment 

{Exhibit J-8 attached hereto). 

12. Original Answer of 0. P. Carrillo before the Court 

of Impeachment (Exhibit J-7 attached hereto). 

III. PLEAS IN ABATEMENT AS TO ALL CHARGES CONTAINED IN FIRST 

AMENDED NOTICE OF roRMAL PROCEEDINGS 

A. Denial of Procedural and Substantive Due Process 

1. Failure of Judicial Qualifications Commission to 

comply wi"th provisions of Rules for the Removal and Retirement 

(<Jf Judges 

a. The present proceedings before the Judicial 

Qualifications Commission and the Master should be abated as to 

all ch{lrges against the Judge contained in the First l\mended 

Notice of Formal Proceedings on the grounds that the Commission, 

in the institution of these proceedings, has denied to the Judge 
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procedural due process by failing to comply with the mandatory 

procedures for the institution of such proceedings as set out 

in the Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judges. In the 

institution of the present proceedings, the Commission has 

failed to comply with the above Rules in the following respects= 

1) As to all of the charges contained in the 

First Amended Notice of Formal PrQceedings, the Judge was not 

given a reasonable opportunity to present such matters as he 

might choose prior to a final determination that formal pro-

ceedings should be instituted, as mandated by Rule 3(b) of the 

Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judges. While the Judge 

was given an opportunity to answer in writing the very limited 

charges set out in the May 2nd Notice of Preliminary Investigation, 

which charges compose the body of the charges set out in Section II 

of the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings; even as to 

those charges the Judge was not given a reasonable opportunity, 

or any opportunity, to present such matters as he might choose 

to the Commission prior to the final determination by the 

Commission that formal proceedings should be instituted. 

2) A time and a place for hearing on the formal 

charges as contained originally in the Notice of Formal Proceedings 

and subsequently in the First Amended Notice of Fon1al Porceedings 

were selected by the Judicial Qualifications Commission prior to 

service of the Notice of Formal Proceedings and the Answer of 

the Judge to such notice, in violation of Rule 6(a} of the Rules 

rior the Removal and Retirement of Judges, which Rule pr_ovides that 

the time and place for the hearing shall be selected by the 

Commission upon the filing of the Judge's answer or upon expiration 

of the time for its filing. Rule 6(a) further provides that the 

co~nission shall give notice to the Judge by mail of the time and 

the place set for the hearing. In these proceedings, the Judge 
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was verbally informed of the setting of the hearing i.!'l Edinburg, 

Hidalgo County, Texas, at the time of service of Notice of Formal 

P.roceedings on him, in violation of Rule 6 (a). Although the 

hearing date was subsequently postponed from July 22, 1975 to 

October 3, 1975, and, later, was further postponed to the 3rd 

of November, 1975, and the place of the hearing was changed from 

Edinburg to Corpus Christi, Nueces County, Texas, the original 

selection of the time and place fOr the hearing violated procedural 

due process as provided by Rule 6(a), which violation was not 

cured by the mere postponement of the hearing date by the 

Commission. Further, even if the subsequent postponements of 

the hearing date cured the original violation of the provisions 

of Rule 6(a), the Commission committed a further violation of the 

above Rule by even the most recent setting of the hearing date on 

November 3, 1975 in light of the service of the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceedings on the 8th of October, 1975. Said 

violation occurred in that said Amended Notice contained wholly 

new charges of which the Judge was given no prior notice whatso-

ever and thus amounted to an original notice of formal proceedings, 

particularly as to the charges contained in Sections VII through 

XII therein, on which a hearing date and place should not have 

been set prior to the expiration of the time for the Judge 1 s 

Answer thereto, under Rule 6{a}. 

3) The Judicial Qualifications Commission in 

setting the original hearing date of July 22, 1975 and in the 

two subsequent postponements of that hearing date, in each case 

;failed to give the Judge the twenty days notice of the hearing 

date prior to the date set as further mandated by Rule 6(a) of 

the Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judges. 

4) The denial of procedural due process as 

outlined in subsection (2) above is compounded by the setting of 

th~ prehearing conference before the Master for the 17th of 

October, 1975 (later postponed by consent to the 20th of October, 
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1975), some several days before the expiration of the time for 

the filing of the Judge's answer to the First Amended Notice of 

Formal Proceedings on October 23, 1975. The First !\mended Noti.c-t• 

containing entirely new charges against the Judge of \P1hich the 

Judge had no prior notice, the setting of the date for the pre-

hearing conference for a date prior to the expiration of the 

time for the filing of the Judge's answer to the charges set out 

in that notice clearly violates the provisions of Rules 5 and 6 (a) 

of the Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judges. 

5) On the date of service of the original Notice 

of F·ormal Proceedings, July 18, 1975, the Judge was verbally 

informed that District Judge Jim Meyers had been selected as 

Master to hear the charges and the evidence related thereto. This 

was the only notice of the selection of the Master that the Judge 

has received to date. The selection of a Master by the Commission 

itself contravenes the provisions of Rule 6(b) of the Rules for 

the Removal and Retirement of Judges, which expressly provides 

that, if the Commission directs that the hearing be before a master, 

the Commission shall, when it sets a time and a place for the 

hearing, transmit a written request to the Supreme :curt to appoint 

a master for such purpose. The appointment of the Master of its 

own choosing by the Commission would clearly violate the above 

provision. If a written request to the Supreme Cour·t was indeed 

made by the Commission and if the Supreme Court in fact appointed 

the Master, the Judge has received no notice of any such request 

or appointment, which denies to him the right to present any 
c 

~objections he might have to the appointment, if any. And even if 

such a request and appointment were made, they were still made in 

contravention of Rule 6, in that they were made prior to or in 

conjunction with the setting of the time and the place for the 

hearing, which setting was itself in violation of the provisions 

of Rule 6(a}, as set out above. 
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6) The Judicial Qualifications Commission 

likewise violated the detailed notice provisions of Rules 3, 4, 

5, and 6 and the spirit behind said provisions when it apparently 

appointed or requested one or more member of the staff of the 

Attorney General to act as Examiner for the Commission without 

any form of notice to the Judge or opportunity for the Judge to 

object to the appointment or request. To date, the Judge is 

uninformed as to the exact capacity in which members of the 

staff of the Attorney General's office are acting for the 

Commission and the scope of the authority of that staff. In the 

light of the facts preliminarily set out in Section I of this 

Answer and the political background to these proceedings and the 

Attorney General's involvement therein, to be elabot:ated upon 

below, the Judge may very well have due process objections to such 

an appointment or request which he is not at present in a postian 

to make with accuracy owing to the lack of notice a~ to the 

appointment or request and the scope of any authority .the Commission 

may have conferred on the members of the staff of the Attorney 

General by its appointment or request. 

2. Denial of substantive and procedural due process by 

failure to comply with the provisions of Art. V, §1-a, subsection 

11 of the Constitution of the State of Texas 

a. Article v, §1-a of the Constitution of the 

State of Texas creates the Judicial Qualifications Commission 

and broadly outlines the manner in which it is to proceed in any 

matter concerning the qualifications of a justice or judge. 

~Subsection 11 of Article V, §1-a expressly provides that a judge 

or justice against whom formal proceedings are brought by the 

Commission is entitled to the same substantive and procedural due 

process rights as a defendant in a criminal case in the following 

language: 
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"The Supreme Court shall by rule provide for 
the procedur.e before the Commission, Hasters 
and the Supreme Court. Such rule shall afford 
to any person holding an office named in 
Paragraph A of Subsection {6) of this Section, 
against whom a proceeding is instituted to 
cause his retirement or removal, due proce~s 
of law for the procedure before the Commission, 
Masters and the Supreme Court in the same manner 
that any person whose property rights are in 
jeopardy in an adjudicatory proceeding is 
entitled to due process of law, regardless of 
whether or not the interest of the person 
holding an Off1ce named in Paragraph A of 
Subsection (6) of this SectiOn in remaining in 
act.tve status 15 considered to be a right or a 
priv~lege. Due process shall include the 
right to notice, counsel, hearing, confrontation 
of his accusers, and all such other incidents of 

The proceedings before the Judicial Qualifications Commission 

should be abated on the grounds that, in the institution of the 

proceedings and the conduct of these proceedings to date, the 

Commission has failed to comply with the due process requirements 

of the above-cited Constitutional provision by which its pro-

ceedings are governed. Said Constitutional provisions being 

jurisdictional in nature, the failure to comply with said 

provisions results in a failure of the jurisdiction of the 

Commission to be properly invoked. The Judicial Qudlifications 

Commission in these proceedings has failed to comply with the 

provisions of Article V, §1-a, Subsection 11 and the statutory 

provisions and the rules enacted pursuant thereto in the followi.ng 

respects: 

1) The charges presented by the original Notice 

of Formal Proceedings and the First Amended Notice of Formal 

Proceedings clearly arise out of the proceedings before the 

House Select Committee on Impeachment and the verbal and documentary 

evidence presented to the Committee, as evidenced by the nature of 

the testimony and documentary materials elicited by the 

Committee as recorded in the transcript of the Committee hearings, 
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incorporated herein for all purposes as if set out in its 

entirety, and as further evidenced by the statement by the 

Executive Director of the Judicial Qualifications Commission 

to Judge Carrillo at the time of service of the original Notice 

of Formal Proceedings to the effect that he has been in com-

munication with Rep. Terry Canales and Vice Chairmar. of the 

Committee, Robert Maloney. The use of such information and/or 

evidence in the formulation of the charges against Judge Carrillo 

herein and as a basis for the institution of formal proceedings 

violates the due process rights of the Judge in that the im-

peachment proceedings out of which such information and/or 

evidence arose were themselves unlawful for the reasons set out 

in Judge Carrillo's First Response to the Committee (Exhibit J-3) 

and his Answer to the Articles of Impeachment (Exhibit J-7). 

Even assuming that the proceedings before the House Select 

Committee on Impeachment were not in themselves unlawful, said 

proceedings are not and were not even ostensibly governed by 

the same strict due process requirements that govern proceedings 

by the Judicial Qualifications Commission under Article V, §1-a, 

Subsection 11 of the Constitution of the State of T~xas. Repeatedly, 

members of the House Select Committee denied that their pro-

ceedings were governed by the same due process requirements 

which control court proceedings; and, the telegram of notification 

of the commencement of Committee hearings {Exhibit J-16} expressly 

stated that the Judge would not be allowed to cross-examine the 

~.witnesses testifying before ·~he Committee, thus denying to the 

Judge a crucial due process right for which Article V, §1-a, 

Subsection 11 expressly provides in all stages of the proceedings 

by the Commission. The use of·such evidence as a basis for the 

formal proceedings against the Judge by the .Judicial Qualifications 

Commission is clearly in violation of the provisions of the 
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Constitutional article and section and is clearly grounds for 

abatement of the present proceedings. 

2) Closely related to the above grounds, but 

presenting yet another basis on which the present proceedings 

by the Commission should be abated is the overall denial of the 

due process rights of the Judge occasioned by the f~ct that the 

Judicial Qualifications Con~ission and its Executive Director 

,. 
r 

have evidently allowed themselves to be caught up in the public 

and highly partisan spirit of general condemnation of the Judge 

indicated in the factual background to these proceedings set out 

in Section I of this Answer. Rather than fulfilling its judicial 

function in an atmosphere of calm and impartiality, the Commission 

has become an active participant in the confederation of agents 

of the State and Federal executive, administrative, legislative, 

and judicial departments seeking to purge the sins of many at 

the expense of sacrificing the fundamental rights of one district 

judge. That the Judicial Qualifications Commission, through 

public pressure or through choice, has abdicated its impartial 

judicial function and become an active participant in the 

confederation of State action aimed at the Judge and resulting in 

the destruction of the rights of the individual is evidenced, 

among other things, by (l) the expediency, if not outright haste, 

with which the Commission is attempting to move the proceedings 

along, even to the point of violating almost every notice provision 

set out in the Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judges and 

designed for the protection of the due process rights of the Judge; 

(2) the appointment of members of the staff of th~ Attorney General 

as examiners in these proceedings, in the light of the fact that the 

st~ff of the Attorney General has not only been actively before the 

Senate but also has been requested to assist and hus assisted in the 

prosecution of the charges against the Judge and has been engaged 

over the course of many months in securing the indictments of the 
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Judge and his political allies in the Duval County area and; 

(3) the statements to the news media on October 16, 1975 by 

Executive Assistant Attorney General and Examiner for the Judicial 

Qualifications Commission, John W. Odam, to the effect that Judge 

Blackwell had ordered the deposition of 0. P. Currillo to be taken 

in these proceedings, said statements being reported; and, finally, 

(4) the highly improper statements concerning proce~dings of the 

Judicial Qualifications Commission made to the press by the 

Executive Director of the Judicial Qualifications Commission, 

Maurice Pipkin, as recently as the 17th of October, 1975, Mr. 

Pipkin being quoted as saying, among other things: 

and 

and 

"Don't you consider the Senate's vote an ultimatum 
to the commission?" 

"We had had complaints about Judge Carrillo. In 
each case, the commission looked into them and 
in its wisdom, felt there was no ground for action." 

"I don't see how he (Carrillo) expects to survive 
all this. It seems he would resign, pick up his 
marbles and go home." 

"Senate Vote Pushes Commission to Act," 
Wichita Falls Times, October 12, 1975 (Exhibit J-15). 

Clearly, such actions on the part of the Commission and its repre-

sentatives demand the abatement of the present proceedings against 

Judge Carrillo on the grounds that, taken as a whole and in the 

light of the highly political factual background to the proceedings, 

the Commission action denies the Judge due process of law as 

~contemplated by Article V, §1-a, Subsection 11 of the Constitution 
~ 

of the State of Texas and the Fifth and Fourteenth P~endments to 

the Constitution of the United States. 

3) Due process of law as provided for in Article V, 

§1-a, Subsection 11 of the Constitution of the State of Texas and 

the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution of the 

United States is further denied to the Judge in the Judicial 
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Qualifications Commission proceedings in the undue and improper 

I 
expediency with which the Commission has acted and is actinq in 

regard to appointment of a master, the setting of hearing dates, 

the amendment of its charges, the setting of the date for the 

taking of the deposition of the Judge and two witnesses at a 

time prior to the prehearing conference with the Master, and rhe 

I setting of the prehearing conference with the Master prior to the 

expiration of the time for the Judge 1 s Answer to the amended 

charges, in that such expediency results in a denial to tile Judge 

of effective assistance of competent counsel in the light of the 

I 
nature of these and the other proceedings against Judge Carrillo 

and the demands on counsel in terms of preparation time and time 

spent in proceedings. To satisfy the Commission's seeming taste 

for a hasty removal of the Judge, theComrnission forces counsel 

for the Judge, in view of the equally pressing demands of other 

proceedings against him, into a position of being physically 

unable to adequately and properly represent the Judge in these 

proceedings before the Commission. 

4) Finally, while the clear intent of the 

Constitutional and statutory provisions and the Rules relating 

to proceedings by the Judicial Qualifications Commission is to 

maintain a nonadversary atmosphere by and before the Comm.isssion 

for as much of the proceedings as possible and, in fact, up to 

a final determination for removal, the apparent abuses by the 

Judicial Qualifications Commission and its representatives in 

<"·these proceedings of the provisions of the Rules for the Removal 

and Retirement of Judges and the provisions of the Constitution 

and Art. 5964, V.A.C.S. relating to its functions and procedures 

demonstrate the potential Constitutional defect and/or anamoly 

inherent in the various provisions of the Constitution, the Rules, 

and Article 5964, V.A.C.S. While Article V, §1-a, Subsection 11 

of the Constitution expressly grants criminal due process rights 
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to a judge against whom Commission proceedings have been 

instituted, the provisions relating to the proceedings result 

in the Judicial Qualifications Commission taking on the dual 

roles of judge and prosecutor or party-opponent in the pro-

ceedings, which would clearly violate any concept of due process 

in any court proceedings, whether criminal or civil. The 

provisions relating to the Judicial Qualifications Commission 

evidently are based on the assumption that the Commission in 

such proceedings will maintain a neutral position in regard to 

the charges against the Judge up to and including the time for 

a final determination on the question of removal. Nhether this 

assumption could ever be a reality is a question which merits 

careful consideration; however'. it is not the question presented 

in these proceedings by the Commission. For representatives of 

the Commission, by their various actions and their failure to 

comply with the Rules by which it is governed in these proceedings, 

including the selection of the Master for the hearing, the 

expedition of the time set out in the Rules for the 'Jarious 

stages of the proceedings, the failure to follow t.he proper o:rclcr 

of proceedings as provided by the Rules, the deletion of certain 

vital steps designed for the protection of the Judge in the 

proceedings, and the failure to maintain secrecy in the proceedings, 

have demonstrated that the Commission as a body is not capable of 

performing the dual roles assigned to it with a neutral attitude 

and has made the potential Constitutional defect of the provisions 

relating to the commission proceedings a reality. As the proceedings 

rby the Commission do not conform to the requirements of due process 

as provided by the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the Constitution 

of the united States or Article ~ §1-a, Subsection 11 of the 

Constitution of the State of Texas, and as the Constitutional and 

statutory provisions and the Rules provi.ding for the jurisdiction 

of the Judicial Qualifications Commission over such proceedings are 

-26-



I 

00028 
in themselves Constitutionally defective in the light of these 

proceedings and therefore, result in a failure of jurisdiction 

on the part of the Commission in these proceedings, the present 

proceedings against Judge Carrillo by the Judicial Qualifications 

Commission properly should be abated. 

IV. PLEAS TO CHARGES OF SECTION I 

A. Pleas in Abatement 

1. In addition to the grounds for abatement set out above 

in Section III of this Answer and incorporated herein for all 

purposes, proceedings on the charges contained in Section I of 

the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings should be abated 

on the grounds that said charges were not included in the May 2nd 

Notice of Preliminary Investigation of the Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, and the Judge was given no notice whatsoever of the 

nature of the charges prior to a determination that formal pro-

ceedings should be instituted, as required by Rule 3(b) of the Rules 

for the Removal and Retirement of Judges. 

2, Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section I should be abated on the grounds that, the Judge having 

received no notice of the nature of these charges prior to a 

determination that formal proceedings should be instituted, the 

Judge was not given a reasonable opportunity or any opportunity 

to reply and present such matters as he might choose prior to the 

determination that· formal proceedings should be instituted, as 

required by Rule 3 (b). 

3. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section I should be abated to the extent that said charges allege 

misconduct on the part of the Judge occurring prior to the 5th 

o.f Novembor, 19"14, the date of hif3 election to the office of 

Dlstrict .ludgc, on the grounds that the allegations of misconduct 

pri.or to that date provide no basis for removal under Article 5986, 
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"No officer in this State shall be removed 
from office for any act he may have committed 
prior· to his election to office." 

4. In the alternative, proceedings on the charges 

contained in Section I should be abated on the grounds that the 

charges on their face do not constitute grounds for removal 

from office in that the conduct a~leged in said charges was 

not clearly inconsistent with the proper performance of the duties 

of 0. P. Carrillo as District Judge and was not clearly of a 

nature to cast discredit upon the judiciary. 

B. General Denial 

Ron. 0. P. Carrillo denies generally each and every, 

all and singular allegations of Section I of the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceedings and demands strict proof thereof. 

c. Special Exceptions 

1. Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to the charges 

contained in Section I of the First Amended Notice of Formal 

Proceedings on the grounds that said Section fails to plead facts 

Which make actionable in these proceedings a conspiracy between 

the Judge and his brother, Ramiro D. Carrillo, in that it is 

impossible as a matter of law for a conspiracy to have existed 

with the object charged, to-wit, to appropriate funds of Duval 

County, Texas, the facts indicating that the county is operated 

under the statutes by a Commissioners Court compos~d of elected 

Commissioners from the four precincts of Duval County and headed 

~by the County Judge, also an elected official. Further, the facts ... 
show that the Commissioners Court meets as the boa=d of directors 

of the county in effect, operates the county by duly authorized 

monthly meetings with notice of these meeting and opportunities to 

be heard by members of the public, and votes on matters before it. 

Therefore, any agreement between the Judge and any person or 
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persons could not as a matter of law amount to a conspiracy 

to deny or deprive Duval County of anything. Even assuming 

arguendo a conspiracy among Ramiro Carrillo as Commissioner 

of Precinct 3 of Duval County and Judge Carrillo and non-

Commiss.ioners and/or other individuals to defraud the county, 

the conspiracy would be impossible to accomplish and therefore 

would not be actionable for any P':Jrpose and certainly would not 

be actionable for the purpose of any disqualification of the Judge 

by the Judicial Qualifications Commission. The Texas law that 

each and every county, subdivision, water district, et cetera, 

as to its internal affairs, is controlled by a Commissioners Court 

or duly elected board of directors composed of commissioners from 

each and every precinct and headed by the County Judge, which la•.,r 

has been in effect at all times relevant herein, precludes the 

possibility of any such conspiracy as is alleged. At all times 

relevant herein, at least four commissioners, a judge, and all 

other statutory cross-checks were in effect and precluded as a 

matter of la\.,r a conspiracy between Judge Carrillo, Ramiro Carrillo, 

and third persons. In addition, all other statutory cross-checks 

and restraints were in effect in the form of controls by action 

of the County Clerk, who examined and cross-checked the county 

vouchers, the County Auditor, who prepared the claims and placed 

them on the docket of the•Commissioners Court and executed the 

vouchers, the Assistant County Auditor, who, in turn, cross-checked 

and determined the validity of the checks and who, in fact, 

examined the vouchers as well. All those restraints preclude as 
r ,. 
a matter of law the operation upon either the county, the water 

district, or any other governmental entity of a conspiracy by a 

District Judge, who has absolutely no power under the law as 

regards the regulation of the internal affairs of these various 

entities and certainly not as regards the disbursement of their 

funds, even with the combination of a single precinct commissioner. 
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Wherefore, Judge 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts· to the charges 

set out in Seeton I of the First Amended Notice of Formal 

Proceedings. 

2. Further Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section I on the grounds that said charges 

are too vague, general and indefinite in their allegations, 

omitting to allege with any particularity the acts ·~:hich the 

Judge is alleged to have comrni tted and thereby fail to afford 

the Judge reasonable notice of either the facts the Commission 

expects to prove thereunder or the misconduct with which he is 

charged. 

3. Further, Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to the 

charges contained in Section I on the grounds that said charges 

fail to allege the object of the alleged conspiracy between the 

Judge and Ramiro Carrillo. 

4. Further, Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section I on the grounds that said 

charges fail to allege any overt acts committed in furtherance 

of the object of the alleged conspiracy. 

5. Further, Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section I on the grounds that said charges 

fail to state misconduct for which the Judge may properly be 

removed, in that they fail to allege conduct which as a matter 

of law constitutes either official misconduc~ or maladministration. 

V. PLEAS TO CHARGES OF SECTION II 

A. Pleas in Abatement 

1. Incorporated herein for all purposes are the pleas 

in abatement set out above in Section III of this Answer. 

2. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section II of the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings 

should be abated on the grounds that said Section does not allege 
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misconduct on the part of the Judge which is actionable in these 

proceedings, said Section alleging misconduct on the part of the 

Judge occurring prior to the 5th of November, 1974, the date of 

his election to the office of District Judge. Allegations of 

misconduct occurring prior to the date of the Judge's election 

to office may not form the basis for a removal proceeding under 

Article 5986, V.A.C.S., which provides: 

"No officer in this State shall be removed from 
office for any act he may have committed prior 
to his election to office." 

3. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section II should be abated on the grounds that the charges on 

their face do not constitute grounds for removal from office, in 

that the conduct alleged in said charges was not willful and 

persistent, was not clearly inconsistent with the proper performance 

of the duties of 0. P. Carrillo as District Judge, and was not 

clearly of a nature to cast discredit upon the judiciary. 

B. General Denial 

Han. 0. P. Carrillo denies generally each and every, all 

and singular allegations of Section II of the First Amended Notice 

of Formal Proceedings and demands strict proof thereof. 

C. ~pecial Exceptions 

1. Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to the charges 

contained in Section II of the First Amended Notice of Formal 

Proceedings in that said Section fails to plead facts which make 

actionable in these proceedings the conduct of the Judge. As a 

~matter of fact, the facts pleaded clearly indicate that the Judge 

handled the matter of his disqualification correctly and in a 

fashion designed to protect the integrity of the judiciary. The 

f.ar.ts alleged show that the Judge, rather than unilaterally dis­

qualifying himself, which, if allowed to establish a precedent, 

would destroy the integrity of the judiciary by requiring a district 

judge to disqualify himself ipso facto upon the filing of a motion, 
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caused the same to be set for hearing, Judge Magus Smith, Judge 

of the 93rd Judicial District, conducting the hearing on the 

question of Judge Carrillo 1 s disqualification. The facts alleged 

further show that, once Judge Magus Smithd~ermined that there 

was a disqualification, Judge Carrillo recused himself. It is 

submitted that this is the correct procedure to be followed. 

Oth~rwise, chaos would pr~vail in the judiciary, in that, if 

each and every time a litigant filed a motion for disqualification 

in the district court the judge was required to disqualify himself, 

then, by the simple expediency of the filing of the motion there 

would be a destruction, in effect, of the judiciary. Wherefore, 

Judge 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to the charges contained 

in Section II on the grounds that the facts alleged do not present 

conduct which as a matter of law constitutes official misconduct 

or maladministration and do not present grounds for removal of 

the Judge, the allegations in fact s~owing that the actions of 

Judge Carrillo in this matter were correct and proper. 

2. Further, Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to the 

charges contained in Section II on the grounds that said charges 

fail to allege that the alleged misconduct occurred during the 

Judge 1 s present term of office as District Judge. 

VI. PLEAS TO CHARGES OF SECTION III 

A. Pleas in Abatement 

1. In addition to the pleas in abatement set out above 

in Section III of this AnsWer and incorporated herein for all 

fpurposes, proceedings on the charges contained in Section III 

of the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings should be 

abated on the grounds that said charges were not contained in the 

May 2nd Notice of Preliminary Investigation of the Judicial 

Qualifications Commission, and the Judge was given no notice 

whatsoever of the nature of the charges prior to a determination 
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that formal proceedings should be inst~tuted, as required by 

Rule 3(b) of the Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judges. 

2. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section III should be abated on the grounds that, the Judge 

having received no notice of the nature of these charges prior 

to,a determination that formal proceedings should be instituted, 

the Judge was not given a reasona~le opportunity, nor any 

opportunity to reply and present such matters as he might choose 

prior to the determination that formal proceedings should be 

instituted, as required by Rule 3(b). 

3. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section III should be abated on the grounds that said Section does 

not allege misconduct on the part of the Judge which is actionable 

in these proceedings 1 said Section alleging miscondv~t on the part 

of the Judge occurring prior to the 5th of November, 1974, the 

date of his election to the office of District Judge. Allegations 

of misconduct occurring prior to the date of the Judge•s election 

to office may not form the basis for a removal proceeding under 

Article 5986, V.A.C.S., which provides: 

"No officer in this State shall be removed from 
office for any act he may have committed prior 
to his election to office. 

4. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section III should be abated on the grounds that the charges on 

their face do not constitute grounds for removal from office, 

in that the conduct alleged in said charges was not willful and 

)Persistent, was not clearly inconsistent with the proper performance 

of the duties of o. P. Carrillo as District Judge, and was not 

clearly of a nature to cast discredit upon the judiciary. 

B. General Denial 

Han. o. P. Carrillo denies generally each and every, 

all and singular allegations of Section III of the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceedings and demands strict prcof thereof. 
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c. Special Exceptions 

l. Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts t.o t.he 

ch<'lrges contained in Section III of the First Amended Notice 

of Formal Proceedings on the grounds that said Sect.::.on fails to 

plead facts which made actionable a conspiracy between the Judge, 

his brother Ramiro Carrillo, and Roberto Elizondo, in that it is 

impossible as a matter of law for.a conspiracy to have existed 

under the facts alleged with the object charged, to-wit, to s.teal 

funds of Duval County, Texas, for the reasons set out above in 

Section IV.C. of this Answer. The allegations of said Section 

assuming a conspiracy between the Judge, his brother, and Roberto 

Elizondo while alleging no facts which would make such a conspiracy 

possible for the three men to accomplish; no one of the th.ree 

individuals, nor a combination of the three, having control over 

the funds of Duval County, Judge o. P. Carrillo therefore specially 

excepts to said nllegntions contained in Section III as presenting 

no actionable factual allegations for the purposes of these 

proceedings or any other proceedings. 

2. Further, Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to the 

charges contained in Section III on the grounds that said chnrges 

are too vague, general and indefinite in their allegations, omitting 

to allege with any particularity the acts which the Judge is 

alleged to have committed and thereby fail to afford the Judge 

reasonable notice of either the facts the Commission expects to 

prove thereunder. or the misconduct wi.th which he is charged. 

3. Further, flon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section III on the grounds that said 

charges fail to allege any overt acts committed in furtherance 

of the object of the alleged conspiracy. 

4. Further, lion. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to· 

the charges contained in Section III on the grounds· that said 

charges fail to allege that the alleged conspiracy was entered 
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into by the Judge or continued during the ,Judge's present term 

of office as District Judge. 

5. Further, Bon. 0. P. Carrillo spccL1lly excepts to 

the charges contained in Section III on the g1·ounds that sa ict 

charges fail to state misconduct for which the ,Judge may propnr.ly 

be removed, in that it fails to allege conduct which as a 

matter of law constitutes either official misconduct or 

maladministration. 

VIII. PLEAS TO CHARGES OF SECTION IV 

A. Pleas in Abatement 

1. In addition to the pleas in abatement set out above 

in Section III of this Answer and incorporated herein for all 

purposes, proceedings on the charges contained in Section IV 

of the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings should be 

abated on the grounds that said charges were not contained in 

the May 2nd Notice of Preliminary Investigation by the ,Judicial 

Qualifications Commission, and the Judge was given ~o notice 

whatsoever of the nature of the charges pdor to a determi.nntion 

that formal proceedings should be instituted., as required by 

Rule 3 (b) of the Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judges. 

2. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

section IV should he abated on the grounds that, the Judge havi.nq 

received no notice of the nature of these charges prior to a 

determination that formal proceedings should be instituted, the 

Jud3e was not given a reasonable opportunity nor any opportunity ,, 
to reply and present such matters as he mi~Jht choose prior to a 

determination that formal proceedings should be instituted, as 

required by Rule 3(b). 

3. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section IV should be ahated on the grounds that said Section 

does not allege misconduct on the part of the Judge which is 
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actionable in these proceedings, s~nfJ'o~~tion alleging mis-

conduct on the part of the Judge occurring prior to the 5th of 

November, 1974, the date of his election to the off~ce of District 

Judge. Allegations of misconduct occurr1ng prior to the date of 

the Judge's election to office may not form the basis of a 

removal proceeding under Article 5986, V.A.C.S., which provides: 

"No officer in this State shall be n·movcd from 
office for any act he may have co~nitted pr.i.or 
to his election to office." 

4. Further, proceedings on the charges con ted ned in 

Section IV should be abated on the grounds that th~ charges on 

their fuce do not con~titute grounds for removal from office, in 

that the conduct itllcged in sa.id charges "''<lS not wi.ll(ul <Hlcl 

persistent, WilS not clcnr.ly incons.istent w_ith th0. propc-r 

pc~rformancc of the duties of .Judge 0. P. Carr.illo. as District 

.llHiqr~, and WiJ!> 1101: clcnrly of il n;ltiJt:"C to cr1st discredit upon 

the j url i r..: i <1 ry. 

f.l. General Denial 

Bon. 0. P. Carrillo denies gener-1.lly e<Jch ilml every, 

;l.ll :1nd ,-;inqulnr ;lllC'qat.i.ons of Sccl:i.on IV of \:h(· First 1\m<'ndt:d 

Notice of Formal Pro1~PPdl.ngs ilnd rletl\<lnds ~~tricL pt:onf lllen'Pf. 

C. Special Exceptions 

l. Han. 0. P. Cardl.lo specially except.:~ to the ch<~r•;c:' 

contained in Section IV of the I-'.i rst Amended Not.icc of f'ormuJ 

Proceedings on the grounds that snid Section fails t:o plead facts 

which make actionable the alleged conduct of the Judge, in that 

ther.c is no aUcgat.ion <.~nd can be no allegn·tlon that Judge 0. P. 
,c 

Carrillo had any power. or control over the Mr. Prancisco Hui?. whlch 

would make possible the commandeering of Mr. Ruiz's time and labor 

to the Judge's personal benefit and to the expense of Duval County, 

as the allegations of said Section presume. There is, in fnct, no 

power or :rule of 1 aw giving a district jud9e contr.ol of f-11:. 

Fr;ancisco Ruiz, and tile allegations of soi.d Scct:·ion c(~rL1.inly 
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present nothing on which to base n proceeding upon the 

qualifications of n district jucigc. Furth01:, t·ih'Y"l' ,\1'•' 11,, 

facts alleged in said Section to show the opct"at:ion of ;:111~· 

conspiracy, to show any statutory authority over Mr. Fran~isco 

Ruiz, to show that the work allegedly done was done other than 

on the free time of Hr. Francisco Ruiz, or was done other than 

voluntarily and freely by Francisco Ruiz. There is clearly no 

authority to reprimand a judge on the basis of anotheJ.: person's 

voLuntary <tcts. \Vhr.rcfnrc, Judcjc 0. P. Carrillo specinlly 

excepts to proceedings on the charges contained in Section IV 

as presenting no actionable factual allegations for the purposes 

of l:hcsc proceedings or <1ny other pr.oceedinqs. 

2. Further, Hon. 0. P. CatTillo SPL~cial.ly excc•pts t0 

the charges contained in Section IV on the grounds that said 

charges are too vague, general and indefinite in their allegations, 

omitting to allege with any particularity the acts which the 

Judge is alleged to have committed and the dates on which such 

acts were· alleged]¥ committed, and thereby fail to afford- the Judge 

reasonable notice of either the facts the commission expects to 

pr.ove thereunder. or the misconduct with which he is charged, 

3. Further, Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section IV on the grounds that said 

charges fail to allege that the alleged misconduct of the Judge 

occurred during the Judge's present term of office as District 

Judge. 

4. Further, the Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts 

to the charges contained in Section IV on the grounds that said 

charges fail to state misconduct for which the Judge may properly 

be r.emoved, in that they fail to allege conduct which as a 

motter of law constitutes either official mis~onduct or 

maladministration. 
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VIII. PLEAS TO CHARGES OF SECTION0tJfl39 

A. Pleas in Abatement 

1. In addition to the pleas in abotement J'a~t (1Ut, 

above in Section III of this Answer and .incorporated hcn'i.n 

for all purposes, proceedings .on the charges contained in 

Section V of the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings 

should be abated on the grounds that said charges were not 

contained in the May 2nd Notice of Preliminary Investlgation 

by the Judicial Qualifications Commission, and the Judge was 

giv~n no notice whCltsoever of the nature of the chn.r.ges prior 

to a determination that formal proceedings should be instituted, 

as .required by Rule 3 (b) of the Rules for the Removal and 

Retirement of Judges. 

2. Further, proceedings on the chn.r.gr-s con to i rwd 

in Section V should be abated on the ground~ th<Jt, the Judc:_w 

having received no notice of the nature of these charges prior. 

to a determination that formal proceedings should be instituted, 

the Judge was not given a reasonable opportunity, nor any 

opportunity, to reply and present such matters as he might 

choose prior to a determination that formal proceedings should 

be instituted, as required by Rule 3(b). 

3. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section v should be abated on the grounds that said Section docs 

not allege misconduct on the part of the ,Judge which is actionable 

in these proceedings, said Section alleging misconduct on the part 

.... of the Judge occurring prior to the 5th of November, 1974, the 

date of his election to the office of District Judge. Allegations 

of misconduct occurring prior to the date of the Judge's election 

to office may not form the basis of a removal proceeding under 

Article 5986, V.A.C.S., which provides: 

"No officer i.n this State shall be removed from 
office for nny act he may have committed prior 
to his election to office." 
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4. Further, proceedings on the charges contained 

in Section V should be abated on the grounds that the ch;u·9cs 

on their face do not constitute grounds for removal from office, 

in that the conduct alleged in said charges wns not willful 

and persistent, was not clearly inconsistent with the proper 

performance of the duties of Judge 0. P. Carrillo as District 

Judge, and was not clearly of a nature to cast discredit upon 

the judiciary. 

B. General Denial 

Han. 0. P. Carrillo denies generally each and every, 

all and singular allegations of Section V of the Firflt Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceedings and demands strict proof thereof. 

C. Special Exceptions 

1. Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to the 

charges contained in Section V of the First Amended Notice of 

Formal Proceedings on the grounds that said Section fails to 

plead facts which make actionable the alleged conduct of the 

Judge, in that there is no allegation and can be no allegation 

that Judge 0. P. Carrillo, even in combination with his brother 

Ramiro Carrillo, had any power or control over Mr. Oscar Sanchez 

which would make possible the commandeering of Mr. Sanchez's 

tiwe and labor to the Judge's personal benefit and to the expense 

of Duval County, as the allegations of said Section presume. There 

is, in fact, no power or rule of law giving a district judge 

control of Mr. Oscar Sanchez; nor is there any allegation ~s 

~to any power or rule of law glvlng Hamiro Carrillo control of Mr. 

' 
Oscar Sanchez: and the allegations of said Section certainly 

present nothing on which to base a proceeding upon the qualifications 

of a district judge. Further, there are no facts alleged in said 

Section to show any statutory authority over Mr. Oscar Sanchez, 

to show that the work allegedly done was done other than on the 

free time of Mr. Oscar Sanchez, or was done other than voluntarily 
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and freely by Mr. Oscar Sanchez. There is clearly no authority 

to reprimand a judge on the basis of another person's voluntary 

acts. Wherefore, Judge 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section V as presenting no actionable 

factual allegations for the purposes of these proceedings or any 

other proceedings. 

2. Further Han. 0. P. _Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section V on the grounds that said 

charges are too vague, general and indefinite in their allegations, 

omitting to allege with any particularity the acts which the Judge 

is alleged to have committed and thereby fail to afford the Judge 

reasonable notice of either the facts the Commission expects to 

prove thereunder or the misconduct with which he is charged. 

3. Further, Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section V on the grounds that said 

charges fail to allege the object of the alleged conspiracy 

between the Judge and Ramiro Carrillo. 

4. Further, Han. 0. P. Carrillo special:y excepts 

to the charges contained in Section V on the grounds that said 

charges fail to allege with particularity a date o~ time at which 

the alleged conspiracy was entered into by the Judge and Ramiro 

Carrillo. 

5. Further, Han. o. P. Carrillo specially excepts 

to the charges contained in Section V on the grounds that said 

charges fail to allege the duration of the alleged conspiracy 

rentered into by the Judge and Ramiro Carrillo. 

6. Further, Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section V on the grounds that said 

charges fail to allege any overt acts committed in furtherance 

of the object of the alleged conspiracy. 

7. Further, Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts 

to the charges contained in Section V on the grounds that said 
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charges fail to allege that the al~J1,~Jl~onsl?iracy was entered 

into or continued during the Judge's !?resent term of office as 

District Judge. 

8. Further, Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to 

the charges contained in Section V on the grounds that said 

charges fail to state misconduct for which the Judge may properly 

be removed, in that they fail to allege conduct which as a 

matter of law constitutes either official misconduct or 

maladministration. 

IX. PLEAS TO CHARGES OF SECTION VI 

A. Pleas in Abatement 

1. In addition to the pleas in abatement set out 

abm:e in Section III of this Answer and incorporated herein for 

all purposes, proceedings on the charges contained in Section VI 

of the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings should be abated 

on the grounds that said charges were not contained in the May 2nd 

Notice of Preliminary Investigation by the Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, and the Judge was given no notice whatsoever of the 

nature of the charges prior to a determination that formal 

proceedings should be instituted, as required by Rule 3(b) of the 

Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judges. 

2. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section VI should be abated on the grounds that, the Judge having 

received no notice of the nature of these charges prior to a 

determination that formal proceedings should be instituted, the 

<" Judge was not given a reasonable opportunity, nor any opportunity, 

to reply and present such matters as he might choose prior to a 

determination that formal proceedings should be instituted, as 

required by Rule 3(b). 

3. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section VI should be abated on the grounds that said Section does 
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not allege misconduct on the part of the Judge which is 

actionable in these proceedings, said Section alleging mis-

cond•Jct on the part of the Judge occurring prior to the 5th 

of November, 1974, the date of his election to the office of 

District Judge. Allegations of misconduct occurring prior to 

the d~tc of the Judge's election to office may not form the bosis 

of n removal proceeding under Art~cle 5986, V.A.C.S., which provides: 

"No officer in this State shall be removed from 
office for any act he may have committed prior 
to his election to office." 

4. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Section VI should be abated on the grounds that the charges on 

their face do not constitute grounds for removal from office, in 

that the conduct alleged in said charges was not willful and 

persistent, was not clearly inconsistent with the proper 

performance of the duties of Judge 0. P. Carrillo as District 

Judge, and was not clearly of a nature to cast discredit on the 

judiciary. 

B. General Denial 

Han. 0. P. Carrillo denies generally each and every, 

all and singular allegations of Section VI of the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceedings and demands strict proof thereof. 

C. Special Exceptions 

1. Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to the charges 

contained in Section VI of the First Amended Notice of Formal 

Proceedings on the grounds that said charges are frivolous and 

~form no basis for any action on the part of the Judicial 
~ 

Qualifications Commission in regard to the Judge. Said charges 

are further evidence of the fact that the Judicial Qualifications 

Commission is caught up in the spirit of general condemnation of 

the ,Juciqc now pr.evniling, as set out in the factual backgrounCI 

clnd the general ple<~s in abatement above. If there was a use of 
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the backhoe by the Judge, the uncontroverted evidence in other 

proceedings indicates that such a use of the backhoe would be 

in line with a customary use of the backhoe by individuals in 

Duval County which grew out of a habit of longstanding in the 

county, said individuals in the county assuming the fact that 

county equipment and county property belongs to the people of 

the county and may be so used. Wherefore, Judge 0. P. Carrillo 

specially excepts to the charges contained in Section VI as 

frivolous and presenting no actionable factual allegations for 

the purposes of these proceedings or any other proceedings. 

2. Further, Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts 

to the charges contained in Section VI on the grounds that said 

charges fail to allege that the alleged misconduct occurred during 

the Judge's present term of office as District Judge. 

3. Further, Han. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts 

to the charges contained in Section VI on the grounds that said 

charges fail to allege conduct which as a matter of law constitutes 

either official misconduct or maladministr_ation. 

X. PLEAS TO CHARGES OF SECTIONS VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, AND XII 

A. Pleas in abatement 

1. In addition to the pleas in abatement set out above 

in Section III of this Answer and incorporated herein for all 

purposes, proceed j ngs on the chc'lrges contained in Sections VI I, 

VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII of the First J\mendcd Notice of Formnl 

Proceedings should be abated on the grounds that said charges 

~were not contained in the May 2nd Notice of Preliminary 

Investigation by the Judicial Qualifications Commission, and the 

Judge was given no notice whatsoever of the nature of the charges 

prior to a determination that formal proceedings should be 

instituted, as required by Rule 3(b) of the Rules for the Removal 

and Retirement of Judges. 
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2. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Sections VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII should be abated on the 

grounds that, the Judge having received no notice of the nature 

of these charges prior to a determination that formal proceedings 

should be instituted, the Judge was not given a reasonable 

opportunity, nor any opportunity, to reply and present such 

matters as he might choose prior to a determination that formal 

proceedings should be instituted, as required by Rule 3{b). 

3. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Sections VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII s!1ould be abated on the 

grounds that none of the charges contained in each of said 

Sections were contained in the original Notice of Formal 

Proceedings, and thus said charges constitute wholly new charges 

of which the Judge had no prior notice and no notice whatsoever 

prior to the 8th of October, 1975. Because said Sections contain 

wholly new charges unrelated to any of the charges contained in 

the original Notice of Formal Proceedings, said Section and t=;i'l.id 

charges contained therein are not proper amendments to the original 

Notice of Formal Proceedings and do not constitute a proper basis 

for any part of the present proceedings under Rule 11 of the 

Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judge, which provides only 

that notice of forrnal proceedings may be amended "to conform to 

proof or set forth i'ldditional facts." Rilther than r-:;upplr.mentinq 

or enlarging upon the facts contained in the original Notice of 

Formal Proceedings, as contemplated by the provisions of Rule 11, 

rthe attempted amendments contained in Sections VII, VIII, IX, X 1 

' 
xt, and XII present wholly new charges against the Judge, arc 

outside the scope of amendments which may properly be made to 

the notice, and may not form the basis for any part of the present 

proceedings. 

4. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Sections VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII should be;abated on the 
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roun s t at none o t e c arges conta1neO 1n sa1d Sect1ons 

specifies "in ordinary and concise language the charges against 

the Judge" nor "the alleged facts upon which such charges are 

based," as required by Rule 4(b) of the Rules for the Removal 

or Retirement of Judges. In fact, said Sections specify none 

of the factual allegations upon which the charges are based ~nM 

thus fail to provide the Judge wi.th notice of the chnrges as 

contemplated by Rule 4(b). 

5. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Sections VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII should be abated on the 

grounds that none of said Sections allege misconduct on the 

part of the Judge which is actionable in these proceedings, 

said Sections alleging conduct on the part of the Judge occurring 

prior to the 5th of November~ 1974, the date of his election to 

the office of District Judge. Allegations of misconduct occurring 

prior to the date of the Judge's election to office may not form 

the basis of a removal proceeding under Article 5996, V.A.C.S., 

which provides: 

"No officer in this Stat.c shall be removed from 
office for any act he may have committed prior 
to his election to office." 

6. Further, proceedings on the charges contained in 

Sections VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII should be abated on the 

grounds that none of the charges contained therein on their face 

constitute grounds for removal from office, in that the conduct 

/ 
alleged in each of said charges was not willful and persistent, 

~was not clearly inconsistent with the proper performance of the 
c 

duties of Judge 0. P. Carrillo as District Judge, and was not 

clearly of a nature to cast discredit upon the judiciary. 

B. General Denial 

Han. 0. P. Carrillo denies generally each and every, 

all and singular allegations of Sections VII, VIII, IX, XI, XI, 

and XII of the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings and 
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c. Special Exceptions 

1. Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts to the 

charges contained in Sections VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII 

of the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings on the grounds 

that said charges are too vague, general and indefinite in their 

allegations, omitting to allege with any particularity the acts 

which the Judge is alleged to haVe committed and thereby fail to 

afford the Judge reasonable notice of either the facts the 

Commission expects to prove thereby or the conduct with which 

he is charged. 

2. Further, Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts 

to the charges contained in Sections VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and 

XII on the grounds that said charges fail to allege that the 

alleged conduct on the part of the Judge occurred during the 

Judge's present term of office as District Judge. 

3. Further, Hon. 0. P. Carrillo specially excepts 

to the charges contained in Sections VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and 

XII on the grounds that said charges fail to state misconduct 

for which the Judge may properly be removed, in that they fail 

to allege conduct which as a matter of law cons-titutes either 

official misconduct or maladministration. 

XI. PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, Hon. O. P. Carrillo, 

Judge of the 229th Judicial District of Texas, respectfully prays 

;.that the present proceedings against him on the basis of the 

churges contained in the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings 

be abated on the grounds and for the reasons set ou·t above. In 

the alternative, Judge 0. P. Carrillo respectfully prays that the 

proceedings on the basis of the charges contained in Sections VII, 

VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII of the First Amended Notice of Formal 
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Proceedings be abated on the grounds and !or the reasons set 

out above. In the alternative, Judge 0. P. C"'rr.illo rE"spectfully 

prays that said charges on which proceedings are not abated be 

amended in conformance with the special exceptions to each of 

such charges set out above and, subsequent to such amendment, 

Judge 0. P. Carrillo be allowed a reasonable time to prepare his 

defense thereto prior to the comm.encement of the formal hearing 

thereon. Further, Judge 0. P. Carrillo respectfully prays that 

a date, a time, and a place be set for hearing on the matters 

raised herein, such hearing to be held at such a time prior to the 

commencement of the formal hearing before the Master as to permit 

necessary amendments to be made to the Notice and for the Judge 

'· ' 

to prepare his Answer thereto, to permit reasonable prchearing 

discovery and the raising of other necessary, reasonable, and 

usual prehearing matters as in any court proceedings, and to permit 

the Judge to prepare his defense to the charges contained in the 

Notice on which proceedings have not been abated. 

Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD HAYNES 
HAYNES & FULLENWf.IDER 
711 Fannin Street, Suite 610 
Houston, Texas 77002 

ATTORNEYS FOR 0. P CARRILLO 
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BEFORE THE 

STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE, 

NO. 5 

BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF THE 
APPLICATION OF ARTICLE 

5986, VERNON'S ANNOTATED 
TEXAS STATUTES 

RICHARD HAYNES 
HAYNES & FULLENWEIDER 
711 Fannin St. , Suite 610 
Houston, Texas 77002 

ARTHUR MITCHELL 
JAN WOODWARD FOX 
MITCHELL, GEORGE & BELT 
315 Westgate Building 
Austin, Texas 78701 

ATTORNEYS FOR O.P. CARRILLO 
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BEFORE THE 

STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE, 

NO. 5 

BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF THE 
APPLICATION OF ARTICLE 

5986, VERNON'S ANNOTATED 
TEXAS STATUTES 

TO THE HONORABLE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION OF 
THE STATE OF TEXAS: 

INTRODUCTORY STATEMENT 

On March 15, 1975, the Judicial Qualifications Commission entered 

into a preliminary investigation of Judge O.P. Carrillo on the charges 

of alleged misconduct. As a result of the preliminary investigation, 

the Commission according to Rule 4 of the Rules for the Removal 

or Retirement of Judges instituted formal proceedings. Within the 

fifteen day limit set by Rule 5, 0. P. Carrillo filed his Original Answer 

to Notice of Formal Proceedings. On October 8, 1975, the Judicial 

Qualifications .Commission amended the Notice of Formal Proceedings. 

To assist the Commission in understanding the Plea in Abatement 

concerning Article 5986, V. A. T. S. , otherwise known as the "Prior-Term 
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Doctrine," the attorney for O.P. Carrlllo submits this brief in 

support of the application of Article 5986, V. A. T. S., or the application 

of the spirit of this doctrine in the proceedings before the Judicial 

Qualifications Commission. 

POINTS BEFORE THIS COURT 

POINT ONE 

Acts occurring prior to the present term of office should not 

be considered as evidence in the removal proceedings of a public 

official. 

AUTHORITIES, FACTS AND ARGUMENT 
UNDER POINT ONE 

A. The Prior-Term llictrine 

It is an accepted judicial doctrine in states other than 

Texas that public officials should not be removed for actions occurring 

prior to the present term of office. There is overall agreement 

that in order to remove an official for acts occurring during a prior 

term of office, the statute must explicitly state that malfeasance 

during a prior term shall be a ground for removal of a public official. 

"In Ohio, under statutes authorizing removal of a public officer for 

misconduct, ... the misconduct. .. must have occurred within the term 

of office during which it is sought to remove the officer." Re Removal 

-2-



roosz 
of Coppola, 155 Ohio St. 329, 44 Ohio Ops. 313, 98 NE 2d 807, 810 

(1951). The Arkansas statute allowing removal of a public official is 

to punish an officer only for wrongdoings committed during h!o: existing 

term of office and not any prior term of office. Jacobs v. Parham, 

175 Ark. 86, 298 SW 483 (1927). "[As] a general rule, offenses 

committed or acts done by a public officer during a previous term 

are not cause for removal from office." Smith v. Godby, 174 SE 2d 

165, 42 ALR 3d 675 (W. Va. Sup. Ct. of App. 1970). 

B. History of the Prior-Term Doctrine in Texas 

The Texas Legislature adopted the judicial "Prior-Term 

Doctrine" and inacted it into statutory law. 

No officer in this State shall be removed from office 
for any act he may have committed prior to his 
election to office. Art. 5986, V. A. T. S. (1939). 

The article straight forwardly applies to all public officials. There 

are no reservations nor limitations to its applicabiliry to public officials. 

Article XV, Sec. F of the Texas Constitution cannot be interpreted 

as a viable limitation on the applicability of Article 5986, V. A. T. S. 

Article XV, Sec. F permits the Legislature to provide for the method 

of trial and removal of officials which have not been provided for 

in the State Constitution. That in no way impedes the applicability 

of Article 5986 which represents the doctrine of judicial self-restraint. 

This doctrine has historically been applied in removal proceedings 
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against county clerks, sheriffs, and district judges. Huntress v. State, 

88 sw 2d 636 (Ct. App. - San Antonio 1935); Reeves v. State, 114 

Tex. 296, 267 SW 666 (1924); In re Laughlin, 265 SW 2d 805 (1954). 

POINT TWO 

The "Prior-Term Doctrine" formulated in Article 5986, V. A. T. S. , 

is applied to all non -criminal removal proceedings, and admission into 

evidence of any acts of misconduct during the prior term ·is 

error. 

AUTHORITIES, FACTS AND ARGUMENT 
UNDER POINT TWO ....... . 

A. Article 5986, V. A. T. S., is applied to all non -criminal 
removal proceedings. 

Article 5986, V. A. T. S., and the identical public policy 

is applicable only to civil removal proceedings involving public 

officials and is not applicable to criminal proceedings against public 

officials. TEX. ATTY. GEN. OPIN. 1939, No. 749. In Williams v. 

State, 150 SW 2d 803 (Crim. App. 1941), a public official could not be 

criminally prosecuted for actions occurring during his prior term 

in office. 

The Constitutional and statutory provisions for the removal of 

district judges are not criminal in nature. Although the Rules for 

Removal or Retirement of Judges, Rule 10, provide the accused with 

the rights of one at a criminal trial, the trial itself is not a criminal 
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proceeding. "It is specifically provided and held that the trial and 

proceedings connected therewith shall be conducted as far as possible 

in accordance with the rules and practice in other civil cases. " In 

re Laughlin, 265 SW 2d 805, 807 (1954). 

B. Admission of acts of misconduct during the prior term 
is admissible error. 

The Court of Appeals in Reeves v. State, 267 SW 666 (1924) 

found the sheriff guilty of official misconduct during both his first and 

second terms, therefore admission of acts committed during the first 

term were harmless. However, the Supreme Court in overturning 

the Court of Appeals stated: 

We think however, that the admission in evidence of other 
separate acts charged and found by the jury to have been 
committed during the first term of office could not help 
but be prejudicial to the plaintiff in error, and to have 
influenced the jury in their findings upon the issues submitted 
to them of acts committed during the second term, and 
should not have been admitted for any purpose. Reeves v. 
State, supra. 

POINT THREE 

The "Prior Term Doctrine" incorporated into statute by 

Article 5986, V. A. T. S. , is not an affirmative defense; instead, it 

is a plea in abatement raising a question of law. 

AUTHORITIES, FACTS AND ARGUMENT 
UNDER POINT THREE 

In the Rules for Removal or Retirement of Judges promulgated by 
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the Supreme Court in 1965, Rule 7 states that the hearing before 

the Judicial Qualifications Commission shall be conducted in 

accordance with the rules applying in the trial of civil causes. The 

"Prior Term Doctrine" or Article 5986, V. A. T. S., became the basis 

of a Motion to Dismiss in a case involving the removal of a District 

Judge. In re Laughlin, 265 SW 2d 805, 808 (1954). Before the 

Judicial Qualifications Commission Article 5986 took the form of a Plea 

in Abatement in In re Brown, 512 SW 2d 317, 321 (1974). In the present 

action, the Judge has presented the "Prior-Term Doctrine" or 

Article 5986, V. A. T, S. as a Plea in Abatement incorporated into the 

Original Answer. This is in accordance with Rule 85, TEX. RULES OF 

CIV. PRO .. Article 5986 or the judicial doctrine upon which it is based 

is not an affirmative defense. Rule 94, TEX. RULES CIV. PRO. 

sets out the precise actions which must be affirmatively pled. Article 

5986, V. A. T. S., cannot be classified as an affirmative defense. The 

exclusion of acts prior to the issuance of the election certificate does 

not create an issue of fact or an issue that requires the production of 

evidence. Instead, Article 5986 raises a question of law which must be 

ruled upon by the Commission after hearing written or oral arguments, 

but prior to the production of evidence. 

POINT FOUR 

Even if Article 5986, V. A. T. S., is not appli.cable, the spirit 
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Qualifications Commission. 

AUTHORITIES, FACTS AND ARGUM:ENT 
UNDER POINT FOUR 

Assuming arguendo Article XV, Section 7 of the Texas 

Constitution allowing the Legislature to provide methods for the removal 

of officials where the Constitution has not provided for their removal 

prevents the application of Article 5986, V. A. T. S., to the removal of 

a District Judge, the spirit of the statute has been applied in all such 

removal proceedings. This doctrine of judicial self-restraint was 

applied in the 1954 removal proceedings against a district judge from 

South Texas. The Supreme Court in that case stated that removal may 

not be predicated upon acts antedating election "when such acts were a 

matter of public record or otherwise known to electors and were sanctioned 

and approved or forgiven them by election." In re Laughlin, 265 SW 

2d 805, 808 (1954). The actions taken by the Supreme Court are in 

harmony with the public policy enacted into statutory law by the 

Legislature in Article 5986, V. A. T. S .. 

The public is the ultimate arbiter of what constitutes improper 

conduct by state officials. Reeves v. State, 114 Tex. 296, 267 SW 

666 (1924). The electorate can knowingly return a man to office in 

spite of charges of misconduct. Upon his re-election to office all 

prior acts which are a matter of public record may no longer become 
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the basis or be used in evidence in any removal proceedings. 

In re Brown, 517 SW 2d 317 (1974), questions whether Judge 

Brown's alleged misconduct was known by the general public prior to 

the official's election or re-election. The Supreme Court leaves un-

answered the question of whether Judge Brown's acts were known prior 

to the institution of the proceedings. In re Brown, supra, at 321. In·· 

vestigation, examination, and deposition of a proportionate cross-section 

of the voters in the 229th District will show that the actions complained 

of were known prior to the November 1, 1974, election. In re Brown, 

supra at 320, reaffirmed the holding of In re Laughlin, supra at 808, 

stating that as a matter of public policy a district judge should not be 

removed by the Judie ial Qualifications Commission or the Supreme Court 

for misconduct known to the electors at the time of elect ion or re-

election and forgiven by them as evidenced by their election or 

re-election of the official. 

CONCLUSION 

Upon the presentation of the applicable statutory and case law 

supporting the Plea in Abatement, sufficient evidence has been put 

forward to shift the burden of coming forward to the State. It is now 

upon the Commission to grant the Plea in Abatement since the State 

has failed in its burden of proof. 
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Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD !-lA YNES 
HAYNES & FULLENWEIDER 
711 Fannin St. , Suite 610 
Houston, Texas 77002 

ARTHUR MITCHELL 
JAN WOODWARD FOX 
MITCHELL, GEORGE & BELT 
315 Westgate Building 
Aust~exas 78701 

By (mi.?~ 
ARhur Mitchell 

ATTORNEYS FOR O.P. CARRILLO 

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

This is to certify that a true and correct copy of the above and 
foregoing Brief in Support of the Application of Article 5986, Vernon's 
Annotated Texas Statutes has been sent to Mr. John Odam, Executive 
Assistant Attorney General and Mr. Max Flusche, Assistant Attorney 
General at the Supreme Court Building, Austin, Texas, 78701, on this 
the day of October, 1975. 
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BEFORE THE 

STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE, NO. 5 

0. P. CARRILLO'S FIRST MOTION IN LIMINE 

TO THE HONORABLE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION, 
STATE OF TEXAS: 

Comes now Honorable 0_, P. Carrillo, District Judge of 

the 229th Judicial District of Texas, and makes this his First 

Motion in Limine, moving this Honorable Commission to exclude 

from evidence and consideration of the Master or the Commission 

in the above proceedings any testimony, documentary materials, 

or other matters relating to any of the charges contained in 

Sections I, III, IV, V, VI, VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII of 

the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings, and for grounds 

,.,.auld show the Commission as follows: 

I. 

The charges contained in Sections I, III, IV, V, VI, VII, 

VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII are outside of the scope of the matters 

contained in the Notice of Preliminary Investigation served on 

Judge o. P. Carrillo on or about May 2, 1975, said Notice of 

Pr<?'liminary Investigation giving Judge Carrillo notice of only 

the charges contained Section II of the First J\mcndcd Notice of 

Formal Proceedings. As to such additional charges not contained 

in the Notice of Preliminary Investigation Judge Carrillo has 

not been given a reasonable opportunity to present such matters 

as he may choose prior to a final determination that formal 

proceedings should be instituted. The inclusion of said charges 

outside of the scope of the May 2nd Notice of Preliminary 

Investigation contravenes the provisions of Rule 3(b) of the 

Rules for the Removal and Retirement of Judges, as adopted and 
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promulgated by the Supreme Court of Texas; and any verbal and/or 

documentary materials relating to said charges should therefore 

be excluded from consideration by the Master and/or the Commission 

in these proceedings. 

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, Judge 0. P. Carrillo 

respectfully prays that the Commission exclude from evidence 

and consideration of the Master and/or the Commission any 

testimony, documentary materials, or other matters relating 

to any of the charges contained in Sections I, III, IV, V, VI, 

VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII of the First Amended Notice of 

Formal Proceedings. Judge 0. P. Carrillo further prays that 

a date, time, and place for hearing of the matters contained 

herein be set by the Commission. 

Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD HAYNES 
HAYNES & FULLENWEIDER 
711 Fannin St., Suite 610 
Houston, Texas 77002 

ARTHUR MITCHELL 
JAN WOODWARD FOX 
MI GEORGE & BELT 
3 Bldg 

8 

ATTORNEYS FOR 0. P. CARRILLO 
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BEFORE THE 

STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE, NO. 5 

0. P. CARRILLO'S SECOND MOTION IN LIMINE 

TO THE HONORABLE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION, 
STATE OF TEXAS: 

Comes now the Honorable 0. P. Carrillo, District Judge of 

the 229th Judicial District of Texas, and makes this Second 

Motion in Limine, moving this Honorable Commission to exclude 

from evidence and consideration of the Master or the Commission 

in the above proceedings any testimony, documentary materials, 

or other matters relating to the charges contained in Sections 

VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII of the First Amended Notice of 

Formal Proceedings, and for grounds would show the Commission 

as follows: 

I. 

The charges contained in Sections VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and 

XII of the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings are not 

matters to be properly included in an amendment to the original 

Notice of Formal Proceedings under Rule 11 of the Rules for the 

Removal and Retirement of Judges, as adopted and promulgated by 

the Supreme Court of Texas, in that the matters contained in said 

sections neither present factual allegations which conform to 

proof offered by the Examiner nor set forth additional facts in 

support of the original charges contained in the Notice of Formal 

Proceedings. Rather, the matters contained in said sections of 

the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings present wholly new 

charges against Judge 0. P. Carrillo of which Judge Carrillo had 

no preliminary notice and as to which Judge Carrillo had no 

reasonable opportunity to present such matters as he might choose 

prior to a final determination that formal proceedings should be 
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instituted as required by Rule 3(b) of the Rules for the Removal 

and Retirement of Judges. Said matters are thus outside the 

scope of amendments to the Notice of Formal Proceedings permitted 

by Rule 11 and, further, are outside the scope of those matters 

which may properly be contained in either an oriqinal or an 

amended Notice of Formal Proceedings under Rules 3 and 4, Rule~ 

for the Removal and Retirement of Judges, as adopted and promulgated 

by the Supreme Court of Texas. 

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, Judge 0. P. Carrillo 

respectfully prays this Honorable Commission to order the 

exclusion from evidence and consideration of the Master or the 

Commission in the above proceedings any verbal or documentary 

evidence relating to any of the charges contained in Sections 

VII, VIII, IX, X, XI, and XII of the First Amended Notice of 

Formal Proceedings. Judge o. P. Carrillo further prays that a 

date, time, and place for hearing of the matters contained herein 

be set by the Commission. 

I hereby 
and foregoing 

Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD HAYNES 
HAYNES & FULLENWEIDER 
711 Fannin St., Suite 610 
Houston, Texas 77002 

ARTHUR MITCHELL 
JAN WOODWARD FOX 

MI1~L, GEORGE &. BELT 

~~~1JOf1;JLL! 
Arthur MJ.tchell 

ATTORNEYS FOR 0. P. CARRILLO 

John 'i-1. Odam, Executive Assista 
Building, Austin, Texas 78701, 

Dd correct copy of the above 
been forwarded to Mr. 

eneral, Supreme Court 
/~'1B'"'-f' d October, 1975. 
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BEFORE THE 

STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGE, NO. 5 

0. P. CARRILLO'S FIRST MOTION FOR INDEFINITE 
CONTINUANCE 

TO THE HONORABLE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION, 
STATE OF TEXAS: 

Comes now Honorable 0. P. Carrillo, Judge of the 229th 

Judicial District of Texas, and makes this his First Motion for 

Indefinite Continuance of the hearing before the Master in the 

formal proceedings against him and for grounds would show the 

Commission and/or the Master in these proceedings the following: 

I. 

Incorporated herein for all purposes as if set out in 

their entirety are Sections I and III of his Answer to First 

Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings, being the factual background 

to the present proceedings by and before the Jurlicial Qualifications 

Comrn~ssion and the general pleas in abatemen~ to the charges 

contained in the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings. 

II. 

Han. 0. P. Carrillo would show the Commission and/or the 

Master in these proceedings that an indefinite continuance of the 

hearing on the formal charges, which is set at present for the 

3rd day of November, 1975, is necessary in light of the factual 

background to the present proceedings in order that the Judge may 

be represented by competent counsel, have effective assistance of 

counsel, and adequately prepare his defense to the formal charges 

against him in these proceedings. 

III. 

Han. 0. P. Carrillo would show the Commission that., owing 

to the extensive pretrial preparation necessary for trial in 
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Cause No. 75-C-45 in the Federal District Court for the Southern 

District of Texas, Corpus Christi Division, the extensive and 

extended hearings before the House Select Committee on Impeachment, 

the commencement of the impeachment trial before the Senate, the 

month-long trial in Cause No. 75-C-45 in the Federal District 

Court, the recomrnenccment of the impeachment tri.al in the Senate 

and the preparation therefor, and the preparation necessary for 

the hearing on the sentencing of the Judge in Cause No. 75-C-45, 

Judge 0. P. Carrillo and his attorneys have not had adequate time 

and will not have adequate time to prepare the defense of Judge 

Carrillo in these proceedings prior to the date presently set for 

commencement of the hearing before on the formal charges. 

IV. 

Causing the matters contained in the First Amended Notice 

of Formal Proceedings to be heard on the November 3rd date 

presently set for such hearing would deny to Judge Carrillo 

effective assistance of counsel in these proceedings in contra-

vention of Article V, §1-a, Subsection 11 of the Constitution of 

the State of Texas and Amendments Five, Six, and Fourteen to the 

Constitution of the United States of America. 

WHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, Hon. 0. P. Carrillo 

respectfully prays that the Commission and/or the Master grant 

an indefinite continuance of the hearing on the formal charges 

against Judge Carrillo in order to allow him the right of effective 

assistance of counsel and adequate opportunity to prepare his 

defense to said charges. 

Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD HAYNES 
HAYNES & FULLENWEIDER 
711 Fannin St., Suite 610 
Houston, Tx. 77002 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 

I hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the above 

and foregoing First Motion for Indefinite Continuance has been 

forwarded to Mr. John W. Odam, Executive Assistant Attorney 

General, Supreme Court 

day of October, 1975. 
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BErb'PJ'~f?E 
STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS CO:vi:vi!SSION 

!NQU!HY CDNCERN!NG A JUDGE, NO. 5 

O. P. CARRILLO'S FIRST MOTION TO QUASH SUBPOENAS 

TO THE HONORABLE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION, 
STATE OF TEXAS: 

Comes now Honorable 0. P. Carrillo, Judge of the 229th 

judicial District of Texas, and makes this his First Motion to 

Quash Subpoenas and for grounds would show the Commission 

andjor the master in these proceedings the following: 

I. 

IncoJ.'l)Orated herein for all purposes as if set out in its 

entirety is the Answer of judge Carrillo to the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceedings. 

II. 

On or al:our the 8th of October, 1975, counsel for the 

judge was served with three separate documents entitled Notice 

of Intention To Take Oral Depositions, which notices were signed 

by Mr. john W. Odam as Examiner for the OJmmission and which 

notices recited that subpoenas duces tecum for the deposltions of 

the Judge and two witnesses and the production of documents would 

be issued. Said subpoenas were, in fact, issued on or about the 

15th of October, 1975. 

Ill. 

llonorable 0. P. Carrillo would show the 0.:Jillll1ission that, 
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for the grounds and reasons set our in his Answer to First 

Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings, the Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, having improperly instituted formal proceedings against 

the Judge and improperly assumed jurisdiction over such proceedings 

under rhe Rules for Removal or Retirement of judges and Art. V., 

Section 1-<~, of the Constitution of Texas, does not have jurisdktinn 

or authority over any proceedingS based on the charges contained in 

the First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings. 

IV. 

Lacking constitutional and statutory jurisdiction or authority 

over any such proceedings as the Commission has attempted to 

institute pursuam to the original and amended Nerice of Formal 

Proceedings, the Commission has no jurisdiction to issue the subpoenas 

duces tecum to the individuals named in the Notices of Intention to 

Take Oral Depositions or to issue any subpoenas in connection with 

any proceedings on the charges contained in the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceedings. 

WIIEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, Honorable 0.1'. 

Carrillo respectfully prays that the Commission and/or rhe master 

order lite quashal tlf the subpoenas referred ttl in tlw October Rrh 

Noriccs of Intention to Take Depositions and in fact issued on or 

about October 15, 1975 on the grounds of no jurisdiction to issue 

the same. 

Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD HAYNES 
HAYNES & FULLENWEIDER 
711 Fannin St. , Suite 610 
J louston, Texas 77002 

ATTORNEYS FOR O.P. CARRILLO 
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CERTIPJCATE OF SERVICE 

hereby certify that a true and correct copy of the alx>ve 
and foregoing First Motion to Quash Subpoenas llas been forwarded 
to Mr. john W. Odam, Executive Assistant Attorney General and 
Examiner of the judicial Qualifications ('~mission, Supreme Court 
Uuilding, Austin, Texas 78701, this ?- day of October, 1975. 

tkLCfr;t?tW 
Arthur Mitchell 
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BEFORE TilE 

STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

lNQU!HY CONCERNING A JUDGE, NO. 5 

O.P. CARRILLO'S FIRST MOTION TO DISQUALIFY 
THE ATTORNEY GENERAL AND MOTION IN THE 

ALTERNATIVE FOR NOTICE OF APPOINTMENT OF 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

TO TilE HONORABLE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION, 
STATE 01' TEXAS: 

Comes now Hon. Q. P. Carrillo, judge of the 229th 

Judicial District of Texas, and makes this his First Motion to 

Disqualify the Attorney General and Motion in the Alternative 

for Notice of Appointment of Anorney General and would show 

the Commission and/or the master in these proceedings the 

following: 

I. 

Incorporated herein for all purposes as if set our in irs entirety 

is the Answe_r of judge Carrillo to the First Amended Notice of 

Formal Proceedings. 

n. 
On or about the 8th day of October, 1975, counsel for 

Judge O.P. Carrillo was served with three documents each 

entitled Notice of Intention w Take Oral Depositions. Each of rhe 

three notices was signed John W. Odam, Executive Assistant 

Attorney General, Examiner. This was the first and only character 

of official notice the Judge has received to date of the appointment 
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of the Attorney General as examiner for the judicial Qualifications 

Commission ln these proceedings. 

Ill. 

While pursuant to Article 5966a, Section 2, V. A. C. S., 

the Commission may request the Attorney General to act as its counsel 

in any particular investigation or proceeding, it is submitted by 

judge Carrillo that the Attorney General of Texas and/or members 

of his staff should be disqualified from participation in the present 

proceedings by and before the Judicial Qualifications Commission 

on rhe grounds of interest in the outcome of said proceedings. 

IV. 

Under the provisions of the Rules for Removal or Retirement 

of Judges, Article V, Section 1-a of the Constitution of Texas, and 

Article 5966a, V. A. C. S., the examiner is appointed by the Judicial 

Qualifications Commission and, in effect, acts on behalf of the 

Commission in the presentation of the evidence relating to the 

charges. Under the Rules and the appHcable cot1stitutional and 

statutory provisions, the Judicial Qualifications Commission occupies 

a unique position in proceedings of this character, in that the 

Commission must assume the dual roles of prosecutor of charges 

and judge of the qualifications of the judge under scrutiny. Occupying 

such a position, it should go without saying that the impartiality 

of the Commission in such proceedings should be without question 

and its actions and motives in such proceedings al:x,ve reproach if 

the integrity of the Judicial Qualiflcations Commission is to be 

maintained. 

v. 

The history of the Attorney General's involvement in 

various proceedings against Judge carrlllo over the period of the last 

.. z .. 
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several months is extensive, as indicated by the presentation of 

the factual background to the present proceedings as set out in 

Section I of the Answer of judge Carrillo to the First Amended 

Not ice of Formal Proceedings. The Attorney General's office 

was in frequent cornmunication with the members of the House 

Select Committee nn Impeachment during the course of its 

extensive hearings on the question of the impeachment of judge 

Carrillo. The Attorney General's office was subsequently requested 

to assist and has assisted in the prosecution of charges against 

Judge Carrillo in the impeachment trial before the Senate. While 

participating in the impeachment activities by the House of 

Representatives and before the Senate, the Attorney General was 

actively engaged in the investigation of judge Carrillo on its own 

and in securing indictments against judge Carrillo and his political 

allies in the Duval County area, which investigation and indictments 

clearly have their basis in political rather than law enforcement 

considerations. 

VI. 

The participation of the Attorney General or any of his staff 

in the present proceedings by and before the Judicial Qualtfications 

Commission, in the light of the demonstrated interest of the 

Attorney General in the removal of the Judge, cannot help but 

call the motivation of the Commission itself in these proceedings 

into question, and taint the entire proceedings with a question of 

bias, and deny to the judge the due process rights guaranteed to 

him by Article V, Section 1-a, Subsection 11 of the Constitution 

of the State of Texas and Amendments Five, Six, and Fourteen of 

the Constitution of the United States of America. 

-3-



WllEREFORE, I'HEM!SES CDNS!DERED, Honorable 0.1'. 

Carrillo respectfully prays this Commission andjor the master in 

rtese proceedings to order the disqualification of the Attorney 

General and his staff from participation in any capacity in the present 

proceedings before the Judicial Qualifications Commission. In the 

alternarlve, judge O.P. Carrlllo prays that the Commission and/or 

the master order that notice of the appointment of the Attorner 

General or a· member or members of his staff, setting out the 

capacity in which the Attorney General is participating in the 

proceedings and the scope of his authority therein, be served in 

writing UJX)ll the judge in order that the judge may be aware of the 

exact capacity in which the Attorney General is acting and may inform 

himself of any proper objections he may have to such panicipation. 

Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD HAYNES 
HAYNES & HILLENWH!Dl:!R 
711 Fannin Street, Suite 610 
Houston, Texas 77002 

ARTHUR MITCHELL 
JAN WOODWARD FOX 
MITCHELL, GEORGE & BELT 
315 Westgate Building 
Austin Texas 78701 

AT'IDRNEYS !'OR 0. !'. CARH!LLO 
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MITCHELL, GEORGE & BELT 

ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 78701 

ARTHUR MJTCHEU. WESTOATE- 1122 C0~0F.} •;r. 
THOMAS WILUAM OEOROE Telephone {512) 477-9a5I 
TERRY L. BELT 

October 20, 1975 JAN FOX 

Mr. Maurice S. Pipkin 
Executive Director 
state Judicial Qualifications Commission 
P. 0. Box 12265 
Capitol Station 
Austin, Texas 78701 

Re: Answer to First Amended Notice of Formal Proceedings 
Inqui:r'Y Concerning a Judge, No. 5 

Dear Mr. Pipkin: 

Enclosed please find Answer to First Amended Notice of 
Formal Proceedings, a copy of the same being transmitted 
to Judge James R. Meyers, Master. I trust you will forward 
copies of this Answer to the Honorable Homer E. Stephenson, 
Chairman of the State Judicial Qualifications Commission, as 
well as to the vice chairman, secretary, and other members. 

You will note further in the Answer that there are numerous 
special exceptions, constitutional pleas, and pleas in abatement. 
I hereby request a hearing before the Commission and/or the 
Supreme Court for a determination of the questions of law 
involved in this Answer prior to the trial of the case. 

A copy of this letter of transmittal is being sent to each 
member of the Commission in order to place them in privity 
with our correspondence. 

You will note also that part of the Answer herein involves 
quotes by you to Mr. Stuart Long in an interview that occurred 
apparently around October 12, 1975 as regards the proceedings 
before the Commission, your using as justification for your 
interview with Mr. Long "that the statutory secrecy of that 
Commission's actions [meaning the Judicial Qualifications 
Commission) was broken by Carrillo's attorney, Arthur Mitchell." 
Mr. Long therefore quoted you at quite some length apparently 
on the theory that the undersigned attorney had broken the 
statutory secrecy, therefore justifying your doing likewise. 
I would like to request in this connection that you answer 
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formally the plea based on your discussion with Mr. Long, 
stating the time, date, place and circumstances of your 
interview with Mr. Long and the date, time, place and 
circumstances when the undersigned attorney broke the 
secrecy mandated by the statute as to secrecy of the 
Commission's action, justifying your discussions of this 
case with Mr. Long. Otherwise, I shall be required to take 
your deposition to establish a factual background for the 
plea contained on page 24 in this Answer. 

Thanking you, I am 

Encl. 

cc: Homer E. Stephenson, Chairman 
Howard C. Davison, Vice Chairman 
Robert C. McGinnis, Secretary 
Vernon Butler 
Donald Eastland 
F. Ray McCormick 
Phil Peden 
R. C. Vaughan 
Hon. James R. Meyers 



STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

INQUIRY CONCERNING A JUDGEr NO. 5 

MOTION SUGGESTING CONTINUED DUE PROCESS VIOLATIONS 

TO THE HONORABLE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION, 
STATE OF TEXAS: 

Comes now Judge No. 5 and makes this suggestion to the 

Judicial Qualifications Commission of a continued violation 

of his constitutionally protected rights as made explicit and 

express in these proceedings: 

1. Judge No. 5 incorporates herein again for all purposes 

his Original Answer to the Notice and Amended Notice. 

The Judicial Qualifications Commission hearing on Judge 

No. 5 commenced on November 3, 1975 in Corpus Christi, Texas, 

and continued daily from that date through and including November 

7, 1975, at which time it was adjourned for Saturday and Sunday. 

The procedure commenced on Monday, November 10, 1975 and ·continued 

daily until Thursday afternoon, November 13, 1975, at which time 

it was adjourned in favor of presetting for Motion for New Trial 

in U. S. v. Carrillo before the Honorable Owen Cox, Federal Judge 

in Corpus Christi, Texas. At that time counsel for Judge No. 5 

was in attendance through Friday, November 14, 1975 on hearing 

on Motion for New Trial as well as Monday, November 17, 1975, 

until 5:30P.M. on the latter date. 

On Tuesday, November 18, 1975, counsel appeared with Judge 

No. 5 and several hundred pounds of record in the Senate at 

Auatin, Texas, prepared to go to trial at 10:00 A.M., at which 

time the proceedings were abrogated by motion from the Senate 

which prevailed to postpone until January 5, 1976. Thereafter, 

the M~ster noticed the attorneys for Judge No. 5 that the 
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Christi, Texas on the morning of November 19, 1975, at 10:00, 

and all parties then proceeded back from Austin to Corpus Christi 

to comply with said order. 

2. Denial of Effective Assistance of Counsel 

That the failure to provide daily transcript of the pro-

ceedings constitutes deprivation.of the Judge's right to effective 

assistance of counsel, demand having been previously made before 

the Master and order having been given by the Master for said 

delivery and delivery not being forthcoming as of this date. 

Failure to comply with the Master's order, when taken in con-

nection with the impossible physical itinerary dictated by the 

State acting by either the Senate or the Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, is so oppressive as to destroy the Judge's right 

to effective assistance of counsel. 

3. Denial of Due Process 

Incorporated herein are the preceding paragraphs. 

In addition, Judge No. 5 complains of the filing of Va by 

the Examiners and in addition to the offering 

connection with VII, VIII, IX, x~and XII, in 

go beyond the Notice and the Amended Notice. 

of testimony in 

that the same 

To allow a filing 

of Va does violence to the Rules of Amendment and Judge No. 5 

objects to the filing with no assurance of ample notice. 

To permit the introduction of testimony in VII, VIII, IX, X,1Q 

and XII and "Cleofas Gonzalez-Couling" related transactions 

goes beyond the Notice and Amended Notice of hearings and 

puts Judge No. 5 to trial without due process, in that he has 

no notice of the same. 

All factors set out herein and in the Original Answer 

effectively lead to a denial of constitutionally protected 
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rights of Judge No. 5 as guaranteed by the Federal and 

State Constitutions and as relate to the right of effective 

assistance of counsel, due process, fair notice, and other 

constitutional provisions. 

Respectfully submitted, 

RICHARD HAYNES 
HAYNES & FULLENWEIDER 
711 Fannin Street, Suite 610 
HoUston, Texas 77002 

ARTHUR MITCHELL 
JAN WOODWARD FOX 
MITCHELL, GEORGE & BELT 
315 gate Building 
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copy of the above 
Process Violations 

Assistant 
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BEFORJ: TilE 

STAT F. JlJDTCTAL QlJALil'lCf<TIO;-.IS COMNISS rON 

INQUIRY COf'.CERNING A JUDGE, NO. 5 

"itJ .· c,r ,. 

b (.a,j••i:>./n 

TO T~E HONORABLC STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATION COI111ISSION: 

Slll'PLEl1EtiTARY SUGGESTION OF CONTINUED VIOLATIONS 
Of' CONSTITUTIONALLY PROTECLD RIGHTS 

TO THE HONORBLE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATION C0Mf1ISSSION: 

CDl1ES NOW, Judge No. 5 and respectfully makes this 

suggestion of continure violation of his constitutional 

protected rights in the above captions proceedings. 

NON-\<AIVER 
I. 

Judge No. 5 does not intend by this instrument to waive 

any pleddings filed by him previously, but to the contrary 

continue to asserts the same herein again. 

RIGHT OF CONFRONTATION 
II. 

Judge No. 5 suggest a violation of his right to confront-

ation by his accuser in that he is being denied the right to 

the tax returns as per the subpoena on filed herein of Rudolfo 

Couling for the year 1968 - 1971 as provided in Art. 5, Section 

1-a, by sta·te and/or Federal Action. 

PROCEDUSAL AND OR SUBSTANTIVE OF DUE PROCESS 
III. 

Judge No. b states that he is deprived of due process 

rights herein in that is not·beine provi9-ed with a copy of the 

transcripts of the testimony of the witnesses as the same become 

available to the attonrey for the examin~r and the master. 

IV. 

Judge No. 5 further contends that the tria) herein of 

facts beyond the Formal notice and upon facts of which he ha~ 

no notice amount to a destruction of Vested property rightc. 

without·due process if provided for in paragraph (11), At't·, 5, 

Section 1-a. 
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~~ocess ~r1 1:hes~ proceedings by reason of t~e conduc: of the 

E>:<am:i;:~;:.' in not· revealing fact favorable to Judge No. 5 .:md 

~.,hi..-:::1 tend to shu~,, his innocence of all wrong doings enumet•uted 

in the spcci fi<:ut .i.vn~;. This c~;ndtle1· upon tl"h~ part oC t.iw 

e>:<ttniner is kin to suppres.ion o£ evidence per Cd[;cs sim.i.LlT' 

to Alcorta, Brady, and related judicial pronouncements. 

i-JHEREFORE, PREMISES CONSIDERED, Judge No. 5 respectfully 

filed t:his Supplementary Suggestion of Continued Violations of 

Const:i.tutionally protectal rights. 

//\ 
Respectfully I !i 1 

ARTHUR MITCHELL 
JAN I<OODHARD fOX 
MITCHELL, GEORGE S BELT 
315 Westga·te Building 
Austin, Texas 78701 
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CLERK'S OFFICE- SuPREME COURT 

Austin, T"""' Nov. 26, 1975 
Dear Sir: 

In the case of iJUDGE NO. 5 v. JUDICIAL QUAL!FICAfrONS 

COW>I!SSIOWET AL., No. B-566B, motion for leave to file 

petition for writ of mandamus was this day overruled. 

Very tru1y yours, 
GARSON R. JACKSON; Clerk 

~~ 

LLLBL sexa1 'u~~snv 

uo~ss~11111DJ suo~~e:Jt:H_ltmb rep~pnr 

~Ol~aJ~O aA~ln'ax3 ~u~~d~d a~~~n~ a[qe~ouoH 

' 

L!,s_nO:O:v HOd GI o1t~O -:aars s1~] 

1u.a.c. eYnJ. 'NIJ.env 
NOI.l'¥.1 .• .,O.LioiV:l 'e"'C'II XOa 

nu.a. o1110 ~RO:l aw:r•.tn• .,. ... .,:l 

\ 



00081. 
BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS C0!1MISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

PETITION UNDER SECTION 8, ARTICLE 5966a, 
V.A.C.S., TO COMPEL WITNESS TO TESTIFY 
IN THE INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

COI1ES NOW ARTHUR IUTCHELL, the undersigned 

attorney, representing Judge No. 5, and respectfully 

files this his request in behalf of Judge No. 5, for 

a petition to the appropriate district court for an 

Order by the appropriate district court compelling 

Rarniro D. Carrillo Sr. to attend and testify 

before the Master in the above styled proceedings 

concerning the matters relating to the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceeding. In support of this 

request, the following facts are alleged: 

(1) The undersigned attorney for Judge No. 

5 caused to be subpoenaed Ramiro D. Carrillo. Sr. 

a witness whose testimony was vitally necessary to the 

defense of Judge No. 5, during the inquiry concerning 

Judge No. 5 before the State Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, Judge James R. Meyers, Master. 

(2) Questions (attached hereto and marked 

Exhibit A ) were put to said witness during the 

course of the proceedings all within the confines of 

and within the intent of Sections 8 and 14 of Article 
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appropriate district court as provided for in Section 

8 and Section 14 of the appropriate statute in terms 

and conditions as set out and blueprinted in said 

statute, and to all other reliefs to which he is 

entitled, 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

Respectfully submitted: 

Counsel for Judge Noe 5 

- 3 -
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5966a, V.A.c.s., and as contemplated in Article 5, 

Section 1-a, Texas Constitution. The witness refused 

in all things to respond to said questions. Judge No. 

5 will be deprived of valuable defensive material 

unless the witness is given immunity and permitted to 

answer freely all relevant questions put to him by 

counsel for Examiner and Judge No. 5. 

(3) In this connection, the undersigned 

states that the witness, Ramiro D. Carrillo. Sr. 

is a person ''who refused to testify'' as contemplated 

by Section 8 and Section 14 of Article 5966a, V.A.C.S. 

and that he hereby requests the Master and/or the 

Commission to petition the appropriate district court 

to compel said witness to attend and to answer questions 

put to him relating to the matters relevant to the 

questions appearing in the.attached exhibit and those 

relating logically thereto. 

{4) Undersigned attorney in behalf of his 

client, Judge No. 5, hereby requests the Examiner to 

join in this request· that the Master and/or Commission 

petition the appropriate district court for said Order. 

(5) The undersigned requests further that he 

be given appropriate notice of the time and place for 

the hearing before the district court, so that he may 

b~ in attendance in order to be assured that the 

immunity granted be broad enough to include each and 

every inquiry which is a legitimate subject of this 

proceeding4 

\\IHEREFORE, premises considered, the under-

signed prays that the Master cause to be prepared 

and filed the necessary petition, in the proper and 

- 2 -
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l 1 undar oath. 

THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. 

• I 
5 

s 

7 

8 RAMIRO CARRILLO, 

9 recalled as a witness, having been previously sworn, 

10 testified as followe, to-wit: 

II 

12 

13 

I< BY MR. MITCHELL: 

15 

IS Q 

17 A 

18 

19 

21 Q 

22 

23 

State your name for the record, please, sir. 

Ramiro D. Carrillo. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, this 

que1tion relates to Roman Paragraph 1 of the 

Firat Amended Notice of Formal Proceoding. 

Let me a•k you, plea1e, air, did yQu have an 

agre$m&nt or a conspiracy with 0. P. Carrillo, 

from a period of time of January, 1971, until 

May, 1975, to wrongfully obtain the sum of three 

hundred dollar• every month from Duval County? 

UIJ\TIIA~! & :\:'.."OCir\'1 i'"i 
~0U"T OH!:UO>HE .. ~ 

111 ANI F. LOPE • GUJ\R.ltHY El~"" PLI,<:~ 

CORPUS CH~ISTI, TEXAS 70401 
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I 
I 
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' 
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9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 Q 

21 

23 
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1 respectfully decline to answer the question put 

to me by the Commission on the grounds that the 

answer might tend to incriminate me. I claim 

this right under the provisions of the Fifth 

Amendment to the Constitution of the United States 

and Article 1, Section 10 of the Constitution of 

the State of Texas. 

THE MASTER: You may simply say in the I 

I future that you decline to answer end it willj 

be understood and agreed by both the 

Examiner and Mr, Mitchell that the anewer, 

1 decline to answer, eucompaaaes the full 

statement you juet made. 

Is that agreeable, gentlemen? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yea, Your Honor, 

THE MASTER: Did you sey yes, Mr. Odem? 

MR. ODAM: Yeo, air. 

MR. KITCHELL: I move now to Roman 

Paragraph Ill of the First Amended Notice. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) During the period of January 

lst, 1972, through September, 1973, did you 

conspire with your brother 0. P. Carrillo and 

Roberto Elizondo to steal two hundred twenty-five 

dollars a month from the Road and Bridge Fund of 

Duval County? 

Clli\TilAM & A.SSOCIATES 
~<lV"T FIE:<>O,UE"5 

717 ~NlELOPE. GUARANTY 8ANI( PLAlA 

CORPUS CHRISTl, Tf;XAS ?8401 
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20 Q 
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I decline to answer. 

MR. MITCHELL: I move now to Roman IV. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Mr. Ramiro Carrillo, during 

the period of January lot, 1971, through June or 

July, 1974, did you, either individually or 

combinod with 0. P. Carrillo or other persona, 

conapixe to appropriate for your awn personal use 

and benefit or for the pereonal use and benefit 

of 0. P. Carrillo or ocher persons, the services 

of one Francisco Ruiz? 

I decline to answer. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thie is !loman V. 

Mr. Ramiro Carrillo, 1 will ask you, if during 

the year 1971, you had a conspiracy with your 

brother 0. P. Carrillo to wrongfully appropriate 

and use for your own benefit or the benefit of 

0. P. Carrillo or any other person, the services 

and labor of Oscar Sanchez? 

1 decline to answer. 

Did you, in 1971, agree to use or conspire 

with or combine or agree with any pereon to 

appropriate for your own use or the use of any 

other person any equipment belonging to Duval 

County? 

I decline to answer. 

CJIATIIA~l & :\SSOCIATI:S 
COUIO~ I>CT'ORTI:"I 

?11 ANTE<..OPE • GUARANTY O~NK Pl.-AlA 
COI:tPU~ CHRISTl, TEXAS '0401 
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MR. HITCHELL: Roman VI. 

Did you, during the year of 1973, take, in 

combination indiv-idually or with Tomas or 

Roberto Elizondo or 0. P. Carrillo for your own 

usa and benefit ot· for the benefit of others, the 

usage of a backhoe belonging to Duval County? 

I declina to answer. 

MR. MITCHELL: I move now to E-192-1, 

I will alk you if you know Rudolfo Couling? 

I decline to answer. 

Do you know the Benavides Implement and Hardware 

Company? 

I decline to ans~.,.,er. 

Did you have, in May, 1971, a partn.ership 

agreement with Mr. Rudolfo Couling, D/B/A 

Benavides Implement 8nd·Hardware Company? 

I decline to answer. 

Did you at any time, up to date, from 1971 to 

date, have a partnership agreement with Rudolfo 

Couling or anyone as rogarda Benavides Implement 

and Hardware Company? 

I decline to answer. 

Tell me tho nature o! the chacka i1eued to you by 

Benavides Implement and Hardware Company. These 

include B-186-11, 12, and this one io Check No. 

UIATii:\M & .'\~SOf 1:\"1 1·>.; 
~"UI>T f<l-_1'"1<1 U<' 

7\7 .O.Nl f ( \lJ>F - t;UARANl T fi~"'K !'L.A/~ 

r:ORPIJ~(.fiHIS'll, Tl-(A~ 7040\ 
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109, 113, 119, 118, 125, 128. These are all in 

1971. bei.ng April, May and June, and continuing, 

so ahown in E-192-1, and through and including 

E-192-12, payable to Mr. Ramiro Carrillo. 

I decline to answer. 

I will nsk you the same question as regards 

checks ioaued to you out of the same account from 

April 16, 1971, through and including the pre1ent 

date, and through and including E-192-12, 

specl.fically, checko to Ramiro Carrillo 

individually during that pariod of time? 

I decline to answer. 

I will aek you the same question aa regards the 

S4Me exhibits and sama time span as to checks 

isaued to Ramiro Carrillo and Brothers. 

I decline to answer. 

Did you have any character of agreement or 

understanding with Rudolfo Coul.ing ao regards 

appropriating money belonging to Duval County, 

The Duval County Water Distrl.ct or Duval County 

School District and aharing those funds with 

yourself or with others? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

In the same time span, E-192-1 through E-192-12, 

as regards two checks issued from Benavides 

UIA.TilMI & :\SSOC'II\TE<.; 
C?URT f>CI'Ql>Tt:r>< 

717 ~NT ELOPE.. (;UARANTY BANK Pl-A.lr. 

CORPU~ CHRISTl, TEXAS .,.8401 



II ,, 

I 
2 : A 

3 Q 

' 
5 

6 

7 

8 

9 A 

10 Q 

II 

12 

13 

14 

IS 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 . 

19 A 

20 Q 

21 A 

22 Q 

23 

25 

00089 
Implement and Hardware account to Oscar Carrillo? 

I decline to answer. 

Did you have any understanding concerning 

yourself or Oscar Carrillo or your brother 0. P. 

Carrillo, as to ripping off the County of Duval 

for funda and uaing tha Benavides Implement and 

Rard,.are Company vehicle ao to appropriate thooe 

funds? 

I decline to answer. 

Did you at any time, beginning 4-16-71, through 

and including today, have an understanding or 

agreement or conapiracy that if you and 0. P. 

Carrillo or Oscar Carrillo or anyone el~a. to 

use any county equipment for your own personal 

use and benefit or for the benefit of others? 

I decline to anawer. 

And for tba use and benefit of 0. P. Carrillo or 

Oscar Carrillo? 

I decline to answer. 

Or any other person? 

1 decline to answer. 

Did you enter into a conspiracy or agreement in 

1971, and did that continue through to today, as 

regards th~ use of any monies from any 

governmental agency of the county or water or 

UIATIIA~! &: A.SS{){ lATE<; 
C.OUO!r P£1'0RT~R~ 

7\7 AIHELOPE_ • GUAPA,.lY BAN..: PLAZA 
CORPU~ (.HRI~TI, l£KA~ 164111 
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school district through and by uso of the vehicle 

Benavides Implement and Hardware for your family. 

your trust or friends? 

I decline to answer. 

I wlll ask you the same quei!Jtion, Mr. Ramiro 

Carrillo, if you had any understanding, beginning 

at any time, from 4-16-71, to date, to appropriate 

or use your office wrongfully as regards the 

appropriation of funds undar your control, 

particularly the County of Duval or the water 

district or school district, through any vehicle, 

appropriate any funds for your own benefit or for 

other persons or relations? 

1 dee line to answer that, 

That includes D. c. Chapa, your father? 

I decline to answer. 

MR. MlTCHELL: Pass the witness. 

( 111\TIIAM r..: :\S.'i()( lATf·'> 
~'""'' HIH'OhTE"> 

717 ~NT~lClP( • (lUARANT~ a .. N~ PL_AlA 

CORPu-.. CHRISTl, TE~A~ ~8'01 
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Q Mr. C11rrfllo, htlvP yt~u be-f'n 't"Pmovf'rl from ("'fflcP 

""' " r("'unty commi~~fonP.r in D_uv111l Cnunty? 

tnP. yr~ur T~mnval beceus• of At~~tltn~ monf"y from 

th• county? 

A I dPclinP. to Ans~~r. 

Q Di_d you ,artiei.nllt~ with Mr. Rudtttfo Coultn~ 1n 

~teAlin~ mnn~y from th~ county, fro~ the- ~~~t~r 

1971 to 1974? 

Q D~ ynu know P~tul R11mtrer.? 

Q How·ebout Juan G11rcta? Do you know Ju.~tn Cerci. I'!? 

" fletfciouA n~rAon anrl th11t y~u uapd thi~ name 

in from thf' county, !~ thRt corrPct? 

Ct!ATHAM & ASSOCLHES 
couon "ot<>C.,TII:"S 

71? .ONTEI.OP£ • GU .. fi.ANTY 6"'1<1( PLAZ• 
COIH'U5 CHRI~'rl, TEXAS ?8'01 
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Q A't'ro you 11 fJII"rtnfl'r -t~•tth Jm~,. 0. P. Carrtlto tn 

A I d~elinP to ~n~w~r. 

Q Who ~tre th@ c:hildrE'n who IITf!' thf' parttcf.pllnt:s 1n 

thlll: truo t? 

A I d ... cltne t~ ans¥er. 

R. Carrillo end Brnth~rs, whn ftllrttctoated in 

A I ~f!'e 1 f. niP. to enfllwfl'r. 

thllt enrrect? 

Q Row abnut 

that on oeesstonn Mr. Coultnp would ~ive you 11 

ch@'elt which w11s !11 t~ned 11nt1 ~httrod and that you 

wnutd lAter ftlt it out and Tf'lll) th~ benefits 

One l'Jueh chrf:'k {!II m11df" nut to Mf.llf'r 11nd 

M1.11'!'t' tn thf!' 111mr.unt of twn hunitrfl'd And t('n 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATF.S 
COVAT •EPOATEI>S 

711AI'ITE~0PE • GUiiJI:ANTY 8ANK f'~AZA 
CO~Pv$ CHRISTl, TI!!XAI , .. GI 
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12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

II 

19 

21 

23 

25 

doltarR ~n OctobPr th~ 18th, 1971? ''''1 
Q How abl"tut A. CRic1.s, who fs A. G~trct11? 

A I derlfne to ~ns~Pr. 

w11r~ Comoeny ln CnrouR Chri~tt for thP "urnoAP 

of buyinR huntin)? Po.u!"m~Pnt for ynu 11ntf your 

brother. 0. P., ""~ for D. C. ChJUUt, 11mmunf.tton, 

!!~hot~unR. 

MR. MITCHELL:. Therf> {s no teo~t.:l:mnny 

ttbout 0. P. Th~! wttnee:n Cou11.n~ testif1.ed 

he t)UT.Chllt~terl, And I ltm ~ninR tn ob_1~ct to 

an unf~tir nuP~tion. 

MR. FLUSCHE: All ri~ht, I will reohrue 

thE> nuP~ti'.nn. 

THE MASTER: All ri•ht, 

Q D. C. Ch11o11 !R your fethPr, f~ th11t rt~ht? 

A I d~rltnr tn Answ~r. 

Q And do you hRv~ ""Y knnwlP.rl9,e ~£ Mr, Coultn~ 

~n~ndtn~ twPnty-thre~ hundred doll11rR ~fth th~ 

CU!r.TH!r.M &: ASSOCIATES 
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nur,osf" of buy"f.n~ hunt.injil: ~~;unnlfes for ye~ur 

A I d~clfn~ to nnswer . 

Q Therr.- hlfll~ bE"f'O oth"'r test1.mony thAt on occ~tsion 

dlltP.d~ ""ith no amount filled ln thAt •• ~tnd that 

you would 1nter nPp:ntf.fttf" i.t lH 11 nl11~~ c~tllfl"<f 

Ch11rl.i.fl' 1
!!1 Truck Pftrtfl tn Snn Antonio. 

A I decltn~ r~ Ansuer. 

0 Qnp Aueh ehP.ck w#s ~de nut in the Amount of. 

s~ventf'~n hundrerl ~nd t .. n doll~trA on F~hrunry thP 

Rth, 1972. 

Q ThP.rP is ftnnther check det~d MArch the 27th of 

1972 in the Amount of 5iY hundrP~ dolt~ nay8ble 

tn IntE"rnattonllll Hervf!ste-r. Thf'rf" h8s be~n nomE" 

teAttmony thftt that chP.ck WAF ~1vPn to you. ~i~ne~ 

tn bl11nk, dllterl without th~ emnunt ftllPd tn and 

Int~~net{on~t RllrvPAtf!r. 

Trf'vtnl? f.n LftriPdo for your c"ttlf>? 

A I decllnP to 11nsw~r. 

MR. FLUSCHE: Th~t's all I h•v•. 

CHATHAM 1k ASSOCIATES 
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T~E MASTER: Thank ynu, Mr. CArrillo, 

·you may :c~:ten -down And I '"t 11 a~k Y"U t? 

,. 

~'hereunnn th~ ~ttnr.ft:c~: Mr. RAmiro 

.·.MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, I am inform(l'd 

t'hat· ·Mr. 0Rcl'lr Car.rt 1 to 11nd Mr. D. C. Ch111'11 

Robrrt" Elf,nnd() Rnd Tnm~ts Eli~ondo. I 

of Mr. Couttnp., ~nd ~A thPy mAy I cheek 

MR, ODAM: I sn~ Eloy Carrillo ~ut 

there. 

MR. MITCHE_LL: He t~ tn connection wfth 

another mltt~r. but I dfd hevp Mr. D. C. 

Chaoa ~Ub'I)OPnllt>d lind Mr. 0SC'Itr c .... rrtllo 

Elizondo, 

THE ~STER: ~Pll. my SUR?.esttnn ts 

CoulinR ~~tnd thAt f_t ~t'Ji (')n, if f.t rlm:, and 

I ~ugoPct ft wtlt, unttl thP brf!'nk And then 

CHATHAM&: • .t,.SSOCIATES 
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n•tu"rl!ll 1ntt?rruotf.on and ynu can dt'vfl'lno 

thfl rfl'eord wf.th r~soect to them at thf" nonn 

hour. 

HR. MITCHELL: Thl!lnk you, Jud~e MPyers. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your H~nor, ~y th~Ar 

witnesses be f!'xc:uaeod. sub.1ect tn a stAndby 

on a telP.nhone bests? 

THE MASTER : Yeo, sir. 

a netitf.nn. 

THE MASTER: Yeo, cPrtalnly, 

MR, MITCHELL: M•y I cell th" wttnus 

Coultn~? 

THE MASTER Y""· ~"t Mr. Coultna. 
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

.Q.ll..Jlll.R 

CAME ON TO BE HEARD in the above styled 

matter, the application of the attorney for Judge 

No. 5, addressed to the Master and/or Commission, 

fer a Section 8 petition to compel the witness, 

, to appear at· a 

specific time and place to be questioned by the 

attorneys representing Judge No. 5, and the Examiner, 

as regards matters that have arisen and are now re-

levant in this inquiry. 

The Master having read the petition, and 

having been in attendance at the proceeding leading 

up to the filing of the petition, and having acquainted 

himself with the applicable statute.and the sections 

applicable thereto, and the appropriate section of 

the Constitution; and it appearing to the Court that 

said motion is proper in all things, and having been 

timely filed and presented to the Master and brought 

to his attention; 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED AND DECREED that 



·. 

rcnss 
the same be grantee~ as evidenced by petition prepared 

by the Master to be filed forthwith pursuant to the 

dictates and mandates of Sections 8 and 14J and the 

relatea sections of Article 59G6a, V.A.C.S. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

JAMES R. MEYERS 
·Judge 

- 2 -
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COI1MISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO, 5 

PETITION UNDER SECTION 8, ARTICLE 5966a, 
V,A,C.S., TO COMPEL WITNESS TO TESTIFY 
IN THE INQUIRy CONCERNING JUDGE NO 5 

COMES NOW ARTHUR MITCHELL, the undersigned 

attorney, representing Judge No. 5, and respectfully 

files this his request in behalf of Judge No. 5, for 

a petition to the appropriate district court for an 

Order by the appropriate district court compelling 

David H. Carrillo to attend and testify 

before the Master in the above styled proceedings 

concerning the matters relating to the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceeding. In support of this 

request, the following facts are alleged: 

(1) The undersigned attorney for Judge No. 

5 caused to be subpoenaed David H. Carrillo 

a witness whose testimony was vitally necessary to the 

defense of Judge Noe 5, during the inquiry concerning 

Judge Noe 5 before the State Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, Judge James Re f'.1eyera, Master. 

(2) Questions (attached hereto and marked 

Exhibit -"ft~ ____ ) were put to said witness during the 

course of the proceedings all within the confineS of 

and within the intent of Sections 8 and 14 of Article 



001.00 
5966a, V.A.c.s., and as contemplated in Article 5, 

Section 1-a, Texas Constitution. The witness refused 

in all things to respond to said questions. Judge No. 

5 will be deprived of valuable defensive material 

unle3S the witness is given immunity and permitted to 

answer freely all relevant questions put to him by 

counsel for Examiner and Judge No. 5. 

(3) In this connection, the undersigned 

states that the witness, David H. Carrillo 

is a person ••who refused to testify•• as contemplated 

by Section 8 and Section 14 of Arti.cle 5966a, V.A.c.s. 

and that he hereby requests the Master and/or the 

Commission to petition the appropriate district court 

to compel said witness to attend and to answer questions 

put to him relating to the matters relevant to the 

questions appearing in the attached exhibit and those 

relating logically thereto. 

(4) Undersigned attorney in behalf of his 

client, Judge No. 5, hereby requests the Examiner to 

join in this request that the Master and/or Commission 

petition the appropriate district court for said Order. 

(5) The undersigned requests further that he 

be given appropriate notice of the time and place for 

the hearing before the district court, so that he may 

be in attendance in order to be assured that the 

immunity granted be broad enough to include each and 

every inquiry Which is a legitimate subject of this 

proceeding. 

WHEREFORE, premises considered, the under-

signed prays that the r4aster cause to be prepared 

and filed the necessary petitionJ in the proper and 

- 2 -
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appropriate district court as provided for in Section 

8 and Section 14 of the appropriate statute in terms 

and conditions as set out and blueprinted in said 

statute, and to all other reliefs to which he is 

entitled. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

I 
0. 5 
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00102 
THE MASTER: Who is your nP~t ""i. tnes s? 

MR. MITCHELL: LPt'~ see, I hJtve D. H. 

Ct:trrillo. 

THE MASTER: Yoti will ne~d Mr. Lee no 

further? 

MR. MITCHELL: That fs ri~ht, Ynur 

Hen or. 

THE MASTER: I aoorect&tE" your helo, 

Mr. LPe, 

(Discussion off thP record.) 

THE MASTER: Mi~=:ter CArrillo, raiRe 

CIIATH:\M & ASSOCIATES 
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D, H. CARRILLO, 

cal1.ed R~ 8 wttneSS 9 havin~ bPen duly s~orn uoon hi~ 

oAth te~tifiP.d AS follows, to-w-f.t: 

BY MR, MITCHELL: 

Q State your namf', nleas~, slr, 

A DAvid H. CArrtt1.o. 

Q Do vou know 0. P. CArrillo? 

A I resnectfully ~ecltne end r~fuse to answer the 

ouesttons ~ut to mP by the Commission on the 

~round~ that thP Answers mt~ht tPnd to incrtmln~te 

me, I claim this right under thP Qrryv{stons of 

the Fifth Amendment of the Constitution of the 

Untted States and Article 1, Section 10, of .t~e 

Constttutton of Te7as. 

THE MASTER: In the future, Mister 

Carrillo, you may si.mnly say, •• I resoectfull. 

~ecllne to answer'', and we All a2rf'e that 

thAt fncludps thP ent{rP ~t8tPmPnt. 

you ilon 1 t hAve to re"f'8t the Pnti.rP --

A Yes, !';tr. 

Q I lt~k you the Rltme aueRtton, do y"ou know Remtrn 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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Csrrillo? 00104 

2 A I r~snectfully d~cline to answ~r. 

3 Q Do you know Oscar Carrillo? 

• A I rP~pPctfully d~cltne to answer. 

s Q Do you know Eloy CRrrillo? 

6 A I dPcltne to ftnswer. 

7 Q Do you know D. C. Chaoa? 

8 A I declin~ to answP.r. 

9 Q Do you kno"W Mr. Rudolfo Couling? 

10 A I decline to an~wer, sir. 

II Q Do you know the Benavides Im~lement and HArdware 

12 that had a business there tn B~navides, Texas? 

13 A I decline to answer. 

14 Q Do you know Rudolfo Coulinp.? 

IS A I d~clin~ t~ ~ns~~r the auest~on. 

16 Q Do you know Ru~v Coul i.ng? 

17 A I declfnP to ATISWPX'. 

18 Q Do you know t~e Fsrm and Ranch Suooly Store? 

~ A I resn•ctfutly dprllne to answer, sir. 

~ Q Mtster, Carrtllo, I am going to ssk you Rome 

21 nuestions ftA regards checks that ere tn PVidence 

ln t~• form of E-192-1 soeclflcolty, snd I will 

ask you did you re~eive from the B~nsvtdes Imple-

ment And H~rdware a check in thP 8mount of five 

hundr~d dollars? 

CIIATHAM &: ASSOCIATES 
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MR. MITCHELL: Whi.ch for the rPcord, 

2 Ynur Honor, i..s i.dentifi.Pd hPrP. as E-1 RB-17--

3 Q On the 15th day of July, 1971? 

• A I rP~pectfutly rlPcl.lne to Answer, s{r. 

5 Q t will Ask you the ~arne auesti.on as regRr~~ thP 

6 recetot of 8 chPck in thP Amount of ftvP hunrirPri 

7 rlollar~ on the 22nd day of SE"ntember, 1971, hei.np.: 

8 check numb£>r 168 from the Benavi_des Imolement antl 

9 Hardware nayable tn D. H. C8rrfllo? 

10 A I decline to an~wPr. 

II Q I will ask you whPther or not you rPceived on 

12 nr about the 12th dAy of November, 1.971, a check 

13 tn the amount of ftve hundred dollars betn~ check 

number 207 from the Benav~des Implement Anrl Hard-

15 ~arP payable to you? 

16 MR. MITCHELL: Anrl, y,.,ur Honor, fOr "thP 

17 record t~at is E-188-41. 

18 Q Di.d you receive such a check from Mr. Cnuli.nJ';, 

19 Mr. Carri. lln 1 

20 A I rl~cltne to Answer, sir. 

21 · () I wtll ask you whPt'"ter or not on or 11hout the 

24 

:15 

17th il_sy of 0('1cembE'r, 1_.971. by r:hec:k number 223 

i.n the amount of ff.ve hundred· dollArs, B#.'"navi.dE'~ 

ImnlemPnt ttnrl HsrdwArP, liiYEthlP to ynu, you 

recei.ved thP smnunt of five hunilrrrl dnl.llr"R from 

CllATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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B~nsvides Imolement and Hard~are? 

2 A I re~nectfully dPrl{np to answer. 

' Q I will ask you thP same oue~tton as re~Ar~s chPck 

• number 236 dated about the 14th day of January, 

s 1972 from Benavidps Imnlement And Hardware 

6 nt~tysblE" to D, H. Carrillo, di.rl you recei.VE" fi.VP 

7 hundred dollar~ from Mr. Rudolfo Cnulin~ in behalf 

8 of th€ Bensvi.deR Imolement and Ht~trdwsre, Mr. 

9 C1'trri.11o? 

10 A I decline to lll'lswer. 

11 Q I will ask you the same auesti.on as re~srds check 

12 number 2S7 in the amount of five hundred dollars 

13 on or about the 18th day of February, 1972, did 

ynu receive that check from the BPnavf.des Im.,lemlmt 

IS and Hardware? 

16 A I res~ectfully decline to answer, sir. 

17 Q I'll ask you t~P Rame QUPRtion I'IA reeards to a 

18 check tn the Rmount of a thousand dollars on or 

19 about the 20th day of March, 1972. 

MR. MITCHELL: That b•tn~ check numb•r 

22 Q Anll betnR check number ?71, dttl you receivt> thllt 

~hPck fnr a thnUF:IInd dnllars frnm 'Rt:"n .. vidt>~ ImnlP-.. 
A I d ~c 1 i.ne to An~wer. 

UlATilAM &: AS.IiOCIATES 
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Q I ~tll. esk you without goin~ sn~~iftcally {nto 

2 PACh and evPry ttPm, did you r~~etvP anv rhPck~ 

3 thereafter from B~navides Imnlem~nt an~ HardwarP, 

4 Mr. Carrillo? 

5 A I decline to answer. 

6 Q Mr. Carri.llo 9 d1.<1 you havP an agreemP.nt or an 

'"" 7 '- ,; understand with Oscar Carrillo an~/or Rsm{ro 

8 Carrillo and/or 0. P. Carrillo and/or Rudolfo 

9 Coulin~ as re~ard~ the taking of sum~ illegally 

10 and unlawful.ly belonging to thP water diRtrict, 

11 the county or thP Rchool dletrtct throu~h the 

12 vehicle of the BenAvides Im~ment and Hardware? 

J3 A I decline to answer. 

14 Q Dtd you either individually or tn conspiracy with 

IS or a cornbin~ttion with or in concert wi.th O~car 

16 Carrillo, Ramtro Carrillo, 0. P. Carrillo, D •. C. 

17 Chaoa, Rudolfo Cni..1.ng, undertakP tO use ecruio-

18 ment belonging to the water dtstrict, Duval 

19 County or the school distri.ct for l)PrAnnal t)ur-

20 oos es? 

21 A I decline to answer. 

22 Q I will ask you the same auesttl')ns It~ regards ser-

23 vices, th.!t ts. did you tndi.vidually or in con-

S1)i.racy with Mr. D. C. Chaos, Mr. Oscar C~trrlllo, 

Mr. Ramiro Carrillo. Mr. 0. P. Carrillo or Mr. 

CII~THAM & ASSOCIATES 
<;0\.JRT RE .. OAT~I05 
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Rudolfo Coultn~ or any other oprsons, wronRfull.y 

2 aooroprtate services for your own personal use 

3 or for the person~! use of ether oetmns from the 

4 water district, Duval County, nr the school di.s-

5 t'r ic t? 

S A I decltne to answer. 

7 MR. MITCHELL: No further ouesttons. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 
BY MR, ODA!:!: 

IS Q Mr. Carrillo, my name is John Odam and I work 

16 for the Attorney General's office end I am here 

17 today as an Examiner for the Judicial QuaHftca-

18 ti.onA Comm:l.sston. I, too, would like to ask you 

19 a few Questions. 

Could you state whether or not in view of 

21 Mr. Mi. tche 11' s ouest ions in 19 71 you received 

a total of two thousand five hundred dollars from 

the Ben.!lvides ImnlPment and H11rd~,are? 

~ Q Wtll you ~lease st~te whether or not in 1972 you 

CIIATHAM & :\SSOCIATES 
COURT REPQRTEAS 
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received a total nf Ri~ thousand ftve hundred 

2 rlollar~ from th~ Benavides Imolement and HArdware? 

' A I respectfully rt>fuse to ens~~er. 

0 What ts -- what Wf'~ your oosi.tion 'dth respect 

5 to the w3ter district in 1971? 

6 A I decli.ne to amn•'E>r the trU.IPBtlon, Rtr. 

7 Q Do you kno~ of th~ arrangement whereby sevPn hun-

e drerl end ff.fty dollars was t1tken nut of the N~tf"r 

9 dl~trict each month for a oertod of time and from 

10 t~et you recetved five hunrlred dollars on a 

II monthly ba,;is? 

12 A I resoectfully ciecttne to ltnRwer4 

13 Q Do you know of the arran~ement wherPby the other 

14 two hundreil and fi.fty dollarR of that seven hun-

IS rlred and fi.fty dollars went toR. CRrri.llo and 

18 BrothPrs? 

17 A I rP.soPetfully dPcl i.nP to ATIAt.'PT. 

18 Q Have you been i.ndf.cted by thE> Duval County Gr~tnd 

19 Jury? 

~ A I re~oectfulty decltne to anawer~ 

21 Q Who re~resents you here tod~ty? 

22 A I decline to answf'r. 

23 Q I!=> your attorney nresent wi.th you today? 

24 A I df'cline to answer. 

~ Q Hav~ you been ~rlvt~ed by counsel to t~ke the Fifth 

CIIATH!tM & ASSOCII\TES 
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Amendment today? 

2 A I decltne to answer that, s{r. 

3 Q I believe Mr. Mitch~ll 8~ked you this question, 

• do you know Mr. Rudolfo Caiing? 

5 A I decline to answer, sir. 

6 Q Do you have any knowled~e of t~e arrangement 

7 whereby money was taken from th~ water district 

8 and in turn you received a portion of that money 

9 through Benavides Imnlement and Hardware? 

10 A I decline to answer, sir. 

II Q Did you ever rent any equioment to Benevides 

12 Im~lem~nt end Hardware? 

13 A I decHne to answ•r that ouestl.on, sir. 

14 Q Do you know whether or not any pquf.pment was 

IS f!'ver rPnted to Brnl'tv:f.des lmf)lPmPnt 8nd Hardw&rl"? 

lB A I dPcl.lne to an~wPr, str. 

17 Q Do you know whethPr or not Judp;e 0. P. Carrillo 

IS heR any equtnmPnt that was rented to Benevides 

19 ImnlemPnt snd Hsrdw~re? 

20 A I declin• t" ~""'""· •lr, 

II MR, ODAM: Pass the witnes~. 

MR, MITCHELL: No further oue~tinns, 

Judge MPyers. 

you. 

THE MASTER: You may Ateo down, thank 

CIIATIIAM & ASSOCIATES 
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r(l1U. 
BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMHISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

CAME ON TO BE HEARD in the above styled 

matter, the application of the attorney- for Judge 

No. 5~ addressed to the Master and/or Commission, 

for a Section 8 petition to compel the witness, 

-----------------,to appear at·a 

specific .time and place to be questioned by the 

attorneys representing Judge No .. 5, and the Examiner, 

as regards matters that have arisen and are now re-

levant in this inquiry. 

The Master having read the petition, and 

having been in attendance at the proceeding leading 

up to the filing of the petition, and having acquainted 

himself with the applicable statute and the sections 

applicable the~eto, and the appropr1at~ section of 

the Constitution; and it appearing to the.Court that 

said motion is proper in all things, and having been 

timely filed and presented to the Master and brought 

to his attention; 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED AND DECREED that 

, ..... 
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~01:1.2 
the same be granted~ as evidenced by petition prepared 

by the !~aster to be filed forthwith pursuant to the 

dictates and mandates of Sections 8 and 14, and the 

relat~rt sections of Article 5966a, V.A.C.S. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

JAMES R. MEYERS 
·Judge 

- 2 -
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

PETITION UNDER SECTION 8, ARTICLE 5966a, 
V.A.C.S., TO COMPEL WITNESS TO TESTIFY 
IN THE INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

COMES NOW ARTHUR MITCHELL, the undersigned 

attorney, representing Judge No. 5, and respectfully 

files this his request in behalf of Judge No. 5, for 

a petition to the appropriate district court for an 

Order by the appropriate district court compelling 

~J~o~s~e~H~·~S~a~en~z~----------------~- to attend and testify 

before the Master in the above styled proceedings 

concerning the matters relating to the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceeding. In support of this 

request, the following facts are alle~ed: 

(1) The undersigned attorney for Judge No. 

5 caused to be subpoenaed Jose H. Saenz 

a witness whose testimony was vitally necessary to the 

defense of Judge No. 5 1 during the inquiry concerning 

Judge No. 5 before the State Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, Judge James R. Meyers, Master. 

(2} Questions (attached hereto and marked 

Exhibit A } were put to said witness during the 

course of the proceedings all within the confines of 

and within the intent of Sections 8 and 14 of Article 



00114 
5966a, V.A.c.s., and as contemplated in Article 5, 

Section 1-a, Texas Constitution. The witness refused 

in all things to respond to said Questions. Judge No. 

5 will be deprived of valuable defensive material 

unless the witness is given· immunity and permitted to 

answer freely all relevant questions put to him by 

counsel for Examiner and Judge No. 5. 

(3) In this connection, the undersigned 

s ta tea that the w1 tnea e 1 Jose H. Saenz , 

is a person ''who refused to testify'' as contemplated 

by Section 8 and Section 14 of Arti.cle 5966a, V.A.c.s. 

end that he hereby requests the Master and/or the 

Commission to petition the appropriate district court 

to compel said witness to attend and to answer questions 

put to him relating to the matters relevant to the 

questions appearing in the attached exhibit and those 

relating logically thereto. 

(4) Undersigned attorney in behalf of his 

client, Judge No. 5, hereby requests the Examiner to 

join in this request that the Master and/or Commission 

petition the appropriate district court for said Order. 

(5) The undersigned requests further that he 

be given appropriate notice of the time and place for 

the hearing before the district court, so that he may 

be in attendance in order to be assured that the 

immunity granted be broad enough to include each and 

every inquiry which is a legitimate subject of this 

proceeding. 

\iHEREFORE, premises considered, the under-

signed prays that the Master cause to be prepared 

and filed the necessary petition, in the proper and 

- 2 -
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appropriate district court as provided for in Section 

8 and Section 14 of the appropriate statute in terms 

and conditions as set out and blueprinted in sa1d 

statute, and to all other reliefs to which he is 

entitled. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

- 3 -
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MR. MITCHELL: We call Jooe Saenz. 

THE MASTER! Mr. Saenz, you have bean 

hera before and ware sworn earlier and are 

reminded that you are atill under oath. 

You may be aaated. 

JOSE SABRZ, 

recalled &I a witneaa, having been previoualy sworn, 

ta•tifiad a• follovo, to-vic: 

!!!~!.!!!!!~.!! 

' I 
·I 

17 BY MR. MITCIIIILL: 

IB 

19 Q 

20 A 

Q 

22 

Would you otate your full name for the record. 

Joee Saenz. 

I em goin& to auk you •om• questions 

MIL. MITCHliLLt Your Honor, thou 

queotton• primarily relata to Roman Paragrap 

III of the First Amended Notice of Formal 

Proceeding. 

<.11,\TII . ..O,M & ASSIWIJ\TI·S 
~OURr rHli'Of<TI;I .. 

7\7 I!,NTUOI'>r. • GUt.,RANTY BAt>!<. PLA.l~ 
CORPU~ CH!OoiSTI, TEXA.S '8401 
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Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Do you -- otrike that. 

Did you, during a period from January 1, 

1972, to September, 1973, know Roberto Elizondo? 

I respectfully decline to answer the question put 

to me on the grounda that the answer might tend 

to incriminate me. I claim this right under the 

provisions of the Fifth Amendment to the 

Constitution of the United States and Article I, 

Section 10 of the Constitution of the State of 

Tens. 

I will aak you the same queotion ae relatae to 

the same period, did you know Ramiro CarrilloT 

I respectfully decline to answer the question put 

to me on tha grounds that the anewer to it might 

tend to incriminate me. I claim thie right under 

the provieione of the Fifth Amendmant to the 

Conetitution of the United Statae and Article I, 

Section 10 of the C&altitution of the State of 

Texas. 

I will alk you the same qneetion ae reaarde Oscar 

Carrillo. 

I respectfully decline to answer the question put 

to me on the grounds that the anewer to the aame 

might tend to incriminate me. I claim thio right 

under the provisiona of tha Fifth Amendment to 

----If------------------ ---·-----
C...IIATIIAM & :\SSOCli\TfS 

CQUOIT IIEPORTI:"~ 
717 Ai'iT[LOP£ • GUARANTY BANK f'LAIA 

CORPU~ CHRISTl, TEX.IoS 78401 
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the Constitution of tha United Stataa and Article 

I, Section 10 of the Con1titution of the State 

of Texas . 

1 will aak you the eama question &I regardl 

Rogalio Cuajardo. 

I respectfully decline to answer the quaation put 

to me on tha grounds that the anawar mi&ht tend 

to incr~inata aa. 

I claim thia right under the provision& of 

the Fifth Amendment to the Conetitution of tha 

United State& and Article I, Section 10, of the 

Conatitution of tha State of Taxae. 

MR. ODAM: We would have no objection, 

for the brevity of the record, if it ia all 

right with Mr. Mitchell, to have hie anawer 

ahortanad to include thoaa iteme. 

THE HASTER1 Yea, I decline to &newer 

can be your anawar henceforth, with the 

undaratanding that it include• and 

enca.paaeea the full proviaiona of What you 

have juet atatad. 

!Ill, MITCHELL: 'lhank you. 

(By Mr. Kitchell) I will aak you the aama 

queation aa regards 0. P. Carrillo. 

I decline to anawar. 

CIIATIIAM & ASSOCIATES 
COU .. T IIEPQRTl:C"$ 
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CORPUS CHRISTl, TE)(il5 78•01 
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And the same question ~1ith regard to Tomas 

Elizondo. 

I decline to answer. 

David Carrillo. 

I decline to answer. 

Now, with respect to 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we will now 
i 

move to E-192-1 for this aeries of questions. 

Rudolfo Couling. 

1 decline to answer. 

Eloy Carrillo. 

I decline to answer. 

D. c. Chapa. 

I decline to answer. 

Rudy Couling. 

I decline to an8wer. 

R. R.amiru. 

I declina to answer. 

E. E. Powell. 

I decline to answer. 

How ebout D. H. Carrillo? 

I decline to an•wer. 

R.. R. Carrillo. 

I decline to ana~er. 

Ramiro Carrillo, Jr. 

Clli\Tflt\.~l & ASSO( l1\'l 1:-; 
(;'J<I"r f'~ POHrH•' 
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I decline to answer. 
!iG120 

E. Carrillo. 

A 1 decline to answer. 

MR. MITCHELL: I paaa the vitnaaa. 

!!!!1!!!!!L2!! 

BY MR. FLUSCID!: 

Q Rave you bean indicted yat? 

A I decline to answer. 

Q The laat time you were in thia courtroom, you 

repreaentad your lawyer vaa Arthur Mitchell, ia 

that etill true? 

A I decline to anewer. 

Q Do you knov anything about the operation of 

laaavidea Implement and Hardware Company? 

A I decline to anewer. 

Q Did you ever get any of the money that was being 

distributed by Benavidaa Implement and Rardvara 

Company? 

Cllt\TIIAM & ASSOCIATE:.S 
COURT hF.FORTl!RS 

711 ANTELOPE • (;Uilfi ... NlY BA~K PLAl .. 
CORFU~ CHRISTl, TE)(AS 7!(01 
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I decline to answer. 

Are you eCill on the county payroll of Duval 

County? 

I decline to answer. 

You are not going to tell ua whether you are 

e=ployed or not? 

I decline to anawer, 

If I were to aek you any other queationa, even 

about the weather, would you decline to anawer 

I decline to answer. 

Mil, FLUSCBS1 I believe that io all I 

have .. 

!Ill. MITCHELL: May we have a 

tranacription of thia witneaa' teatimony 

and request that he be excuaadf 

TilE !lASTERs Not excuaed. 

Mil. MlTCBSLLI I am SOI'l'y, a eked to 

atand aaide. 

THE !lASTER t Yes, you may seep down, 

but I want you to remain available. 

!Ill. MlTCBSLLt May I gat Ramiro Carrillo 

THE !lASTER! Yae. 

Mr. Carrillo, you are pravioualy aworn 

and you are reminded that you are atill 

CIII\TilAM & :\SSOUATES 
<;;OUIIT RJ;t>O .. TUU 

70 ANT FLOP~. CUA~.O.NT'I' e,o.N~ PLAIA 
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

.Q. ll. ll lLii 

CAME ON TO BE HEARD in the above styled 

matter, the application of the attorney for Judge 

No. 5, addressed to the Master and/or Commission, 

for a Section 8 petition to compel trhe witness, 

, to appear at·a 

specific time and place to be questioned by the 

attorneys representing Judge No .. 5 1 and the Examiner, 

as regards matters that have arisen and are now re-

levant in this inquiry. 

The Master having read the petition, and 

having been in attendance at the proceeding leading 

up to the filing of the petition, and having acquainted 

himself with the applicable statute and the sections 

applicable thereto, and the appropriate section of 

the Constitution; and it appearing to the Court that 

said motion is proper in all things, and having been 

timely filed and presented to the Master and brought 

to his attention; 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED AND DECREED that 



· ..... ·. 

rn1:l3 
the same be granted, as evidenced by petition prepared 

by the Master to be filed forthwith pursuant to the 

dictates and mandates of Sections 8 and 14, and the 

related sections of Article 5966a, V.A.C.s. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

JAMES R. MEYERS 
·Judge 

- 2 -
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COf<IMISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

PETITION UNDER SECTION 8, ARTICLE 5966a, 
V.A.C.S., TO COMPEL WITNESS TO TESTIFY 
IN THE INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO 5 

COMES NOW ARTHUR MITCHELL, the undersigned 

attorney, representing Judge No. 5 1 and respectfully 

files this his request in behalf of Judge No. 5 1 for 

a petition to the appropriate district court for an 

Order by the appropriate district court compelling 

D.C. Chapa to attend and testify 

before the Master in the above styled proceedings 

concerning the matters relating to the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceeding. In support of this 

request, the following facts are alleSed: 

(1) The undersigned attorney for Judge No. 

5 caused to be subpoenaed ~D~.C~·~C~h~a~p~•-·----------------

a witness whose testimony was vitally necessary to the 

defense of Judge No. 5, during the inquiry concerning 

Judge No. 5 before the State Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, Judge James R. Meyers, Master. 

Exhibit 

(2) Questions {attached hereto and marked 

;j ) were put to said witness during the 

course of the proceedings all within the confines of 

and within the intent of Sections 8 and 14 of Article 



(1111:(~5 
59G6a, V.A.C.S., and as contemplated in Article 5, 

Section 1-aJ Texas Constitution. The witness refused 

in all things to respond to said questions. Judge No. 

5 will be deprived of valuable defensive material 

unless the witness is given immunity and permitted to 

answer freely all relevant questions put to him by 

counsel for Examiner and Judge No. 5. 

(3) In this connection, the undersigned 

states that the witness, D.C. Chapa , 

is a person ••who refused to testify•• as contemplated 

by Section 8 and Section 14 of Article 5966a, V.A.c.s. 

and that he hereby requests the Master and/or the 

Commission to petition the appropriate district court 

to compel said witness to attend and to answer questions 

put to him relating to the matters relevant to the 

questions appearing in the attached exhibit and those 

relating logically thereto. 

(4) Undersigned attorney in behalf of his 

client, Judge No. 5, hereby requests the Examiner to 

join in this request that the Master and/or Commission 

petition the appropriate district court for said Order. 

(5) The undersigned requests further that he 

be given appropriate notice of the time and place for 

the hearing before the district court, so that he may 

be in attendance in order to be assured that the 

immunity granted be broad enough to include each and 

every inquiry Which is a legitimate subject of this 

proceeding. 

\'IHEREFORE, premises considered, the under-

signed prays that the Haster cause to be prepared 

and filed the necessary petition, in the proper and 

- 2 -



appropriate district court {U)l~ided for in Section 

8 and Section 14 of the appropriate statute in terms 

and conditions as set out and blueprinted in said 

statuteJ and to all other reliefs to which he is 

entitled. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

ARTHUR MITC 
Counsel for 

- 3 -
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f.~ no nr"'blrm, no ornblrm. 

" 2 ,, 
THE MASTER: All right. 

3 

• (Dts~tlsPion off the rPenrd.) 

5 THE MASTER: Mr. LPP, have you ever 

6 

7 MR. LEE: Only very Rmftl.l m.~tnner. 

8 THE MASTER: Well, I 'W~tnt you to ~~tct 

9 a~ interpretPr for Mr. D. C. Chaos. Mr. 

10 Chaos has a pood workinR knowled~e ~ith 

II English, I think, but hP would prefrr arid 

12 {s morP comfortable in Soantsh so when a 

13 ouestion ~s a~ked, you trenslste it literally 

14 and don't interoret it, ~ust tranRl~te it 

15 becausP. I kno'W phrases arP. diffprent in thE> 

16 two lan,e;ua,e;es, but just do the bEEt you can. 

17 MR. LEE: Yes, si.r, 

18 THE MASTER: And thPn w~en Mr. Chaos 

19 

20 he should say, ''I don't understand'', you don't 

21 try to e~olAin the nue~ttnn to him, you say, 

22 11 1 don't understand." 

23 MR. LEE: Yes, s:f.r. 

24 THE MASTER: And t~Pn th~ lawyer tri~s 

25 to cl~Ar uo the Question. 

CHATHAM&: ASSOCI.A.TE~ 
<;OUR~ REI'O,.~C'" 

711 .O.Nlf.LOPE • GU.O.R•NT'f B•>1~ I>L.O.l. 
CORPU~ CHRI~TI, Tl:~•s TUOI EX-A I 
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(10128 
MR. LEE: Y~s, si.r. 

THE MASTER : N0,.1 9 l~t mf' e:et you to 

rAise y~ur ripht henrl. 

(WhPrPunnn Mr. Don L~P wn~ ~worn by t~e 

Msster to set a~ thP. tntf'r~retPr tn tht~ 

C8USP.) 

THE MASTER: All ri.e:ht, J!t~k Mr. ChJ~toll 

to ra1sP hiR rl~ht hsnd And I wi.ll sdminl~ter 

tie Oltth to him. 

(Dtscus~ion off the rPcord.) 

CHATHAM&: .'\SSOCII\TES 
COUPT ~I[I"QRTER5 

711 .o~TEI..OP£ • GUARANTY !lANK Pr..AZ" 

CORPU~ CNI'IISTI, TEXAS "7!401 
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(!01.?9 
D. C. CHAPA, 

2 hAv~ng b~Pn duly ~~nrn, tPsttffprl u~nn hfs ORth a~ 

3 fol.lows, to-wit: 

4 

5 

6 

BY MR, MITCHELL: 

' 
8 Q StAte your name for the rP.corn, ole~sP. 

9 A D. C, Cheoo. 

10 Q Do you kno~ 0. P. CArrt11o? 

11 A I, with all rPRnect to tht,; Ct"'urt, I 11m not Jroi.n,P 

12 to Answer any ~uest~ons that ~rP &RkP~ of mP 

13 hPCIIU~P thPy mt~ht {ncr{mln~tP MP. I r.l!lfm thi.1: 

14 right undPr thP rirhta that I h11vr unrlPr thr 

IS Fifth AmendmPnt of the Cnnstttutlnn of the Unttrrl 

16 StatPs of AmericA A~d ArticlP 1, Section 1.0, of 

17 t~e Constitutton of the State of TPxns. 

18 MR, MITCHELL: Your Honor, m~y I rPou~~t 

19 that t~{R wttn~s~ b~ o~rmitt~d tn th~ ~hnrt-

h~nd rend1t1_nn tn lnvok~ t~&t prfvtle~P if 

21 hP carPA to 1n ~nAw~r to furthPr ~u~stlnnA 

22 by sf.mnly --

23 THE MASTER: Y~A. Mr. LP~, wnulrl you 

24 tr&n~l~tP thfA for mP. Mr. Ch11n111, f.n thp 

CJJATti."r.M &: .... ssOCli\TES 

futur~. ynu mny simnly sAy, ''I reso~ctfully I 

-----T------------------------~1._ 
I 

COU•H "Er>O"TE"5 
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riPclinP to An~~er'', snd t~At will hP A ~uffi-

nri.vileee, 

(Dtscu~~ton off the rPcord,) 

MR. MITCHELL: To•nk you. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Do you know -- Mr. ChanA, flo 

vou know Ramtro CRrrtltn? 

A I re~nectfully iiPcltne to en~wer, 

Q Do you know o~car C.Arri.lJo? 

A I res nee tfully rlPrl1.ne to an.•HM"r, 

Q Do you know F.loy CArrillo? 

A I resnectfutly renuPst to not nnswer the Question. 

0 Do you know D. H, or D8vtd C~trr i. t lo? 

A I respectfu1.ly reat1est not to &nswer the ouestlon. 

Q Do you know Mr. Rudolfo Coulin~? 

A I resnectfully reouest not to Answer the ~uestion, 

Q Do you knot-' the oartners in the businPss known .!'IS 

FArm And R~tnch? 

A RPsnPctfull.v reaue~t not tn AnSwPr. 

Q Do you know t~p BPnavirlps -- thP ownPr of th~ --

MR, '1ITCHELL: Str l.kr thst. 
I 

Q Do you know thP lncAti.nn of thP BPnRvi~PR ImnlPm~nt 

And Hardw11rP? 

A I resnPctfully dPcl~ne to llnEl"'Pr thllt, 

CIIATIIA~t & :\SSO(L,o,TES 
<:Ou .. T llE:POI>TER5 

711 ANTE LOP[;. GUARANTY BAt,;_.; PLAIA 
COAPU~ C~R1ST1, TEXAS T!¢01 
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Were you the president of the Benavides 

Independent School District, Mr. Chapa, at any 

time from January of 1971 to date? 

I respectfully request to decline to answer. 

Were you a member of the board or an officer in 

the Duval County Conservation and Reclamation 

District in November, 1973? 

1 respcctfulJ.y.request to decline tq answer. 

MR. MITCHELL: This concerns Roman 

Number VI, Your Honor. 

Did you conspire to wrongfull.y acquire monies 

did you conspire in November of 1973 to wrongfully 

appropriate monies of the Duval County Water 

Conservation and Reclamation District for the 

benefit of your son 0. P. Carrillo? 

I respectfully request to decline to answer. 

Mr. Chapa, there has been testimony -- dj.J you 

conspire or agrcn with Rudolfo Couling to 

receive monies illegally from Duval County, the 

water or school district at any time beginning in 

1971 to date? 

I respectfully request to decline to answer. 

I will ask you -- did you conspire with Oscar or 

0. P. or Ramiro or a combination of those persons 

to receive money from the water or school district 

CHATHAM&: 1\SSOCl!r.TES 
COURT REPOFil EFI! 

1\7 "NT ELOPE- GU~R~NTY 8"NK PL.O.l~ 

CORPuS CHRISTl, TEXAS 7840\ 
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or Duval County or anyone else? 

I respectfully request to decline the answer. 

4404 

Did you have an agreement with your son, Ramir0 

Carrillo or anyone as regards the use for private 

purposes of equipment belonging to Duval County? 

I respectfully request to decline to answer. 

The same question as regard:; services. Did you 

have an agreement with 0. P., Rarniro or Oscar as 

regards the use of the services of Duval County 

personnel for private purposes? 

I respectfully request to decline the answer. 

Mr. Chapa, there is testimony as to checks paid 

to you from Benavides Implement and Hardware. On 

each and every check --

MR. MITCHELL: I refer to E-192-1. 

THE MASTER: Remember you are askinp; 

questions through an interpreter. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, strike that 

question and I will start it over. 

Did you have an agreement with Rudolfo 

Couling as regards the unlawful appropriation 

of money from Duval County or the '\-later or 

school district through Benavides Implement 

und Hardware'? 

'£HE WITNESS: I respectfully request to 

CUATHAM & .'I.SSOCIATES 
eOUR1' "EPORt~fU 

111 aN1£LOPE • GUUUNTV BaNK PLaz• 
CORPIJ$ CHRISTl, TE••$ 78401 
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decline to anst;er.<'0133 

2 Q (By Mr. Mitchell) Would that be your same answer 

3 if I asked you the same question from January 1st, 

1971 to date? 

s A I respectfully request to decline the answer. 

6 MR. MITCHELL: I have no further 

7 questions. 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

15 BY MR. ODAM: 

16 

17 Q Mr. Chapa, my name is John Odam. I am with the 

18 attorney general's office and I am an examiner 

19 for the Judicial Qualifications Commission. I 

20 too would like to ask you a few questions. 

21 Who is your attorney advising you today? 

22 A I respectfully decline to answer the question. 

23 Q Have you retained an attorney to represent you 

'' here today? 

2S A I respectfully decline to answer the question. 

UIATifA~ & :\SSOCIATES 
COURT "EPO .. TI:"S 

117 "NT ELOPE, GU.fl!lANT~ BA"'p<; PLAZ.O. 
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CG134 
Is Mr. Mitchell your attorney? 

I respectfully decline to answer the question. 

Who gave you the piece of paper that has the 

Fifth Amendment written on it? 

I respectfully request to decline to answer the 

question. 

Mr. Mitchell has asked you a number of questions 

about money from the Benavides Implement and 

Hardware Store to you. If I were to ask you 

questions about the same matters, would you 

invoke your Fifth Amendment privilege? 

I respectfully request to decline to answer the 

question. 

Are you aware of an arrangement whereby seven 

hundred fifty dollars a month would be taken ·out 

of the water district beginning in April, 1971? 

I respectfully request to decline to answer the 

question. 

Further assuming that the money was taken out, 

that that money went to Benavides Implement and 

Hardware and in turn you received some of that 

money. 

I respectfully request to decline to nnswcr the 

question. 

Have you ever received money from the checking 

CUATH . .o\~! &:: ASSOCIATES 
COUI'IT O!(lPO .. T("' 
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account of Ramiro -- trom the checking account of 

R. Carrillo and Brothers? 

I respectfully request to decline to answer the 

question. 

MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: No further questions. 

THE MASTER: Thank you, Mr. Chapa, you 

may step down. 

MR. MITCHELL: Judge, may I make a 

statement for the record? 

I probably have seen Mr. Chapa twice in 

my lifetime. 

THE MASTER: Yes, I know one time 

because you introduced him to me at the 

Ship Ahoy. 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, that is right, ·that 

time and this morning. I have not had any 

conversation with the gentleman as regards 

this case or any other case, nor ha.ve I been 

retained or employed by him in this matter 

or any other matter. 

Likewise, as regards the witness Oscar 

Carrillo, I met him in connection with 

another case; have not seen or talked to 

him in perhaps ninety or one hundred twenty 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT "II':P0RT£RS 
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days; have not been retained by him in this 

matter and in this connection and as a 

matter of fact, other than greeting him this 

morning, I have had no conversation with him . 

in regard to this case. 

I feel compelled, because of the nature 

of this type of proceeding, to make this 

statement to the Court. 

MR. ODAM: I wonder if I might ask, it 

would save me -- 1 would 

about Jose Saenz, Ramiro 

ask the same qucstioti 

Carrillo, Rogelio l 
Guajardo, Roberto and Tomas Elizondo. 

MR. MITCHELL: In connection with 

Rogelio Guajardo, I was employed by him 

three to five months ago, however, I have 

not been able to do a good job in that case. 

He employed me to defend him in connection 

with a criminal case in Duval County. I 

have not been employed as regards him here. 

The same is true as regards Jose Saenz. 

I have been employed by him in a criminal 

case, but I have no connection with him in 

this case as being employed. 

This is also true with Ramiro Carrillo. 

I have been employed by him in the past and 

CIIATH.'oM &: ASSOCIATES 
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have withdrawn from that representation and 

I have no representation with him in this 

matter. 

In one civil matter, I have filed an 

answer, however, for him in another matter. 

Who else, John? 

MR. ODAM: D. H. Carrillo. 

MR. MITCHELL: No, I barely know him. 

MR. ODAM: Tomas and Roberto Elizondo. 

MR. MITCHELL: No, I have consulted 

with them, because they were used as witness s 

in this proceeding and I have not, however, 

been employed nor did I prepare I think 

Mr. Odam asked and I don't have an obligatio 

to make this statement, but I do want to 

make it. The question as regards my arming 

these gentlemen with their Fifth Amendment 

rights, I have no knowledge of that, but I 

am going to speak loudest and longest for 

anybody to do just that up and down the 

highway, but I think I should make that. 

statement to the record. 

Actually, it has been communicated to 

me that Mr. Chito Davila represented the 

gentlemen here yesterday. I had known that 

CIIATIIAM &: ASSOCIATES 
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and that was communicated to me by him. He 

had a commitment and could not be here, but 

was their attorney. 
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COM!HSSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

CAME ON TO BE HEARD in the above styled 

matter, the application of the attorney for Judge 

No. 5, addressed to the Master and/or Commission, 

for a Section 8 petition to compel the witness, 

, to appear at·a 

specific time and place to be questioned by the 

attorneys representing Judge No. 5, and the Examiner, 

as regards matters that have arisen and are now re­

levant in this inquiry. 

The Master having read the petition, an_d 

having been in attendance at the proceeding leading 

up to the filing of the petition, and having acquainted 

himself with the applicable statute and the sections 

applicable thereto, and the appropriate section of 

the Constitution; and it appearing to the Court that 

said motion is proper in all things, and having been 

timely filed and presented to the Master and brought 

to his attention; 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED AND DECREED that 

. ,.:; 
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rC140 
the same be granted, as evidenced by petition prepared 

by the r-iaster to be filed forthwith pursuant to the 

dictates and mandates of Sections 8 and 14, and the 

related sections of Article 5966a, V.A.c.s. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

JAMES R. MEYERS 
:Judge 
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

A US TIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

PETITION UNDER SECTION 8, ARTICLE 5966a, 
V. A • C • S. , TO COM PEL IHTNES S TO TESTIFY 
IN THE INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDQE NO 5 

COMES NOW ARTHUR MITCHELL, the undersigned 

attorney, representing Judge No. 5, and respectfully 

files this his request in behalf of Judge No. 5, for 

a petition to the appropriate district court for an 

Order by the appropriate district court compelling 

Rogelio Guajardo, Jr. to attend and testify 

before the Master in the above styled proceedings 

concerning the matters relating to the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceeding. In support of this 

request, the following facts are alleged: 

(1) The undersigned attorney for Judge No. 

5 caused to be subpoenaed Rogelio Guajardo. Jr. 

a witness whose testimony was vitally necessary to the 

defense of Judge No. 5, during the inquiry concerning 

Judge No. 5 before the State Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, Judge James R. Meyers, Master. 

( 2) Questions (attached hereto and marked 

Exhibit __ !\~~--)·were put to said witness during the 

course of the proceedings all within the confines of 

and within the intent of Sections 8 and 14 of Article 



00142 
5966a, V.A.C.S., and as contemplated in Article 5, 

Section 1-a, Texas Constitution. The witness refused 

in all things to respond to said questions. Judge No. 

5 will be deprived of valuable defensive material 

unless the witness is given immunity and permitted to 

answer freely all relevant questions put to him by 

counsel for Examiner and Judge No. 5. 

(3) In this connection, the undersigned 

states that the witness, Rogelio Guajardo, Jr. 

is a person 11 Who refused to testify 11 as contemplated 

by Section 8 and Section 1~ of Article 5966a, V,A,C.S, 

and that he hereby requests the Master and/or the 

Commission to petition the appropriate district court 

to compel said witness to attend and to answer questions 

put to him relating to the matters relevant to the 

questions appearing in the attached exhibit and those 

relating logically thereto. 

(~) Undersigned attorney in behalf of his 

client, Judge No. 5, hereby requests the Examiner to 

join in this request that the Master and/or Commission 

petition the appropriate district court for said Order. 

(5) The undersigned requests further that he 

be given appropriate notice of the time and place for 

the hearing before the district court, so that he may 

be in attendance in order to be assured that the 

immunity granted be broad enough to include each and 

every inquiry which is a legitimate subject of this 

proceeding. 

WHEREFORE, premises considered, the under-

signed prays that the Master cause to be prepared 

and filed the necessary petition, in the proper and 

- 2 -



appropriate district court as pPM.:~ for in Section 

8 and Section 14 of the appropriate statute in terms 

and conditions as set out and blueprinted in said 

statute, and to all other reliefs to which he is 

entitled. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

Respectfully submitted: 

Counsel for Judge No. 5 

- 3 -
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2 (Discuooi~n ~ff th~ rP~ord.) 

3 

THE MASTER: Mr. Gu•Jerdo, you h•ve 
• 
5 

MR. GUAJARDO: No, •fr. 
6 

THE MASTER: Would you raioe your 
7 

8 

9 

10 ROGELIO GUAJARDO, be<n~ cAlled •• 

11 e wttnese, w•s ~uty sworn ~nd testified es fnttow~: 

12 

13 !l!!1l!!!lQ.!! 

u 
MR. MITCHELL: M8y I ~roc~ed, Your 

15 
Honor? 

16 
THE MASTER: Yeo, •fr. 

17 

18 
A Rnp:el to Gua.1ardo, Junior. 

19 

20 
matters that arfl unrelAted to thil;' or~Aent l.nnutry, 

21 
am I eorr@e: t? 

22 

23 
Q What was your answer to that? 

2< 
A Yea, Rtr. 

25 
Q All rt,;1,t, ltnd I stated to yf)u th•t f.n eCtnnf'et:fon 

CHATHAM"' ASSOCIATES e'k A CCVIOT llllPOI'ITlOOI 
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t~ ~~t other r~unse1 .. 8m I corr~ct? 

Q Nov, thPre hea b••n some ou~stions esked Mr. 

Rudolfo Coultn~ ennc~rnin~ an ~ccount ee11Pd 

Bf'tU!Vi.df'IJ Imolement and Herdv"are Account, Mr. 

1 will ssk you this, end I will make th1s 

tiona asked reRerrlin~ some nuP.stions that ~ere 

writt~n by Rudolfo CoulinR to you back in 1971 

ond 1972 that iR R or Ro~e 1 to Gu.11.1 ardo. 

Now, my ~uestton to you ts, and I intend 

to queet1on you concerntn~ th• ch•eks from Mr. 

Rudolfo Coulin2 to you, 

MR, MITCHELL: They ~re ooecifically 

identlfl.ed •• El<hibito E-188-22, Your Honor, 

in that u~riP111. 

Q I would aek you l.f you wl.ll tf'otl.fy fruly eo 

A 

to thoBP trenaecttnn• or would you clatm 7our 

I Tf'SDP~tfully ~er-ltn• and refueto to answer &ny 

ftUeRtinna out to mP on th• Rr~unds that the 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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from oroc~r.da from Rud~lfo Couttn~ to you out nf 

MR. MITCHELL' So~clHcatly, Jud~~ 

M~yer8, I ref~r to E-192•1 and I r~fpr t~ 

thl" i.t~ma, "nd I would b~ JrlAd to nutt tne 

w1. 11 have ttu•m beforP him. 

For ~7ftm~ll". those AAked about thi~ 

mnrnin~. E-188·22, a~~l"artn~ on E-192-2, 

~nd alAn, Your Honor. E-188-25, eoo~arin~ 

The chPckA ~oeclfic~tly -- my ~u~stione 

you h•v~ w~th Mr. Coulin~: did you have 

with .JudSte 0. P .. CaTr1.t1, l!lbout thoa• chPcks 

understllndtnP.: btotveen ynu end Jud~r. Cerri.tto 

and a cnmbtn8t{on of D. C. Ch•~•. OscaT 

C•rrilto, Ramlro C"rrt1lo, l'!loy C•rritlo, 

~nd koberto Elizondo. ThoftP. would b~ my 

Questtons !H'IPctficalty of this wttnf!'ss, 

CHATHAM&. ASSOCIATES 
. C0V"'T IO&POIIITIEA! 

717 ANTELOPE • GUARANTY .AI< I': PL.AIA 
CORPUS C,.R!,T!, Tt)(AS 1'&'01 



3 

• 
5 

s 

1 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

It 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

2< 

00147 

nl~sd the Ftfth Am~ndm~nt tf A~k~d about thoR~? 

A Yef:l, sir. 

MR. MITCHELL: If thP Qurt ~ar•s for 

mE' to be mort" 4!"~1 ic f t, ·1 can ~o down throuJt'h 

THE MASTER: No, if ynu'rP 6.• to 

MR. MITCHELL: Y~•. •lr. 

THE MASTER: "" with the und•r•tandinp 

that h~ is not re1ea!~d1 

MR. MITCHELL: Y~o. Jud~P., •nd my 

netitton t~ t~@ Court, to th~ M~ater, woul~ 

thts wftne8A and tn p:rent htm immunity end 

ehe~ke and •~ to any e~reem~nt, th£ is th~ 

checkR tist~d on Examtner'B E-192·1 throu~h 

and lncludinP. 12, so thAt the Court iR 

The r~ttUC"Bt woutd be &A to thel!le &f)eci.ft 

Rudolf.n Cou11nl'l, thE- ..,ftne!IS, Ro~etto Gua_1ard 

An~/or 0~ P. C111rrlltn, 8nrl/f)r D. C. Chaua, 

CHATHAM & ASSOCU.TES 
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8nd/or Ramfro Ci!lrt'tllo, Andlnr Dttvf.d CArrillo. 

2 

And/or "Elny c,.rrtttn, OtH'Jir C•rri.ltn. JrHI .. 
3 

Sa~nr., Rob .. rtn Ettr.nnrlo Anrl Tomas Elir.ondo, 
4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

!!U!1!!~!1Q.!! 
10 

11 BY MR. ODAM: 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

25 

Q Mr, Guo.Jordo, io thot .. 
A Guoj•rdo, 

Q P11rdon me for my s,.nish, R11v~ we ever m~t 

beforP. tnd11y? 

A I don't think ... 

Q My name ts Jobn onnm and I work for th• Attorn•Y 

G~n~ral'a offfe~ •nd I woul~ llkP to ssk you a 

you in som• unrP111t@d metter!. Could you cle11se 

~Y~lafn for us ~h~t th~s~ unrelated mAtters are? 

A I t'eRneetfutty decltn• and r~fu~~ to ftnew•r the 

CHATHAM&: ASSOCL .... TES 
C:OUPT lllt:POPTI£"5 
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ouestion! ~ut to m~ nn th~ arounds th~t the anawpr 

2 
I mt~ht ~tvf" mi.!l!ht tend to f.ncrfmi.nllte m•. 

3 
Q Mr. Mit<h~ll •atd that he had reore•«ed you in 

• thos@ unretst~d metter! bf"for~ hf" Rdvts~d you that 

5 
you should ~et other counsel for this oartfeuler 

6 
matter. 

7 My ttuestton tn you, who i.~~; your ~tttorn@y 

8 

9 

10 
~uest1ons ~ut to me. 

II 
Q Who ia •• is your ettnrney whn r~or~sent8 you •• 

12 MR, ODAM: Strike th•t. 

13 
Q H•ve you be~n edvtAed by 8 counsPl to tnvnke th~ 

14 
Fifth Amendm~nt h•r~? 

15 

16 

17 
Q Could you tell me the neme of your attorney who 

18 

19 

21 
matter, ts h• ureMent tn th~ courtroom today? 

22 
A 1 fllRo resneetfully refuae to answer any euestton~ 

23 
nut to me. 

Q Who 1• Paul Ram!.rer? 

2S 
A I resnectfutty deettne and refune to answer any 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT ~t<>OATI:IOS 
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2 .. nswer l mf~ht l':fVP mi.poht tf"nr1 to fnc.rim{nA-tP "'"'· 

3 Q Dtd you P.VP.T TP.nt any ~~uioment to Bpnevtde~ 

• 
5 A I re,;o~c.tfully -1f'rltnr ""d refusP to -.n:twt>r any 

6 ouP.stton~ ~ut to mP. 

1 Q In 1971. whnt was ynur nos{tf.on vf.th thf" 'tri'AtPr 

8 dl~ttrfct? 

9 

10 ftU~9tton~ ~ut to mP on th~ ~roundA that th~ ~nnwer 

11 mt~ht tPnd to tncrfmtnatr me. 

12 Q Do you knO'll' of Any srranp:Pmf"nt whpreby ch~c.k~ 

13 wnuld come- fro~t~ th,. t.HHPr cH!I:trtct .end in turn 

14 che-cks wnulc1 bf" {fiLled to you in amount!!! i'.doP.nt1.c•l 

15 to tho~P whtch Mr. Mttchf"ll •~krd you about? 

16 A I reo!lnectfully dPcltne end riP.fUSfl' to enaw-f'r thl!" 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 

'' 

au~stions ~ut to mP on th~ ~round• thnt thf" 

answer mt~ht tend to tncr{mtnstP mP.. 

Q Dtd you evpr have ~ny df~cus~inn wtth Rudotfo 

Couttn~ about hsvtn~ chPcke medpmt to Mr. P~ul 

RamiTE""·? 

A I TPRoee~fully rE"fuse end dPclin~ to Answ~r thP 

auesttons nut to 1M!' on thf" p,-ynunds th"t thE~" 

CHATHA~ & ASSOCIATES 
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H~trdwltre? 

nuP.stt(')nR out to. m,. lln thtt sz:rt')undA th~tt the 

\ 
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Could you please atate whether or not you have 

bean indicted for teatimony concerning any money 

involved in theae checka? 

l reapectfully decline to anawer on the groundo 

the answer might tend to incriminate me. 

Do you knov who Raul ~amirez is? 

l respectfully decline to anaver the question put 

to me on the grounds that tha anawer might ean4 

to incriminate me. 

MR. ODAM1 l pal& the vitneso, 

MR. MITCIIELL1 May we request that we 

include in our raqua1t for the order of the 

district court the queations put to thia 

witneas by counsel, if they ere not included 

within the confinea of the one 1 originally 

requalted? 

I wanted to be 1nra thole are an1wared 

a lao. 

'lBB MASTER I Yeo, you can put anything 

in the petition you want. lt seems to ma 

that you aaked thil witnaaa a quaation in 

aubatanea that inquired if you repreeanted 

him on soma unrelated lll&ttara, but not in 

any •attera connected with thia proceeding 

and further that you had adviaed him he 

CJIATHA~l & ASSOCIATES 
COURT REJ>ORlE:OH 
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o0153 
needad to get other counsel for this 

proceeding and he anawered tboae questions. 

Now, 1 am not sure but what he baa 

waived hie Fifth Amendment privilege with 

reepect to erose-examination as to what 

matters you do repreoent him on and whether 

or not you told him to gat another layyer 

and whether or not he has done ao, however. 

that is really not a matter I think for me 

to decide, beeauae if Mr. Odam should 

request me to direct him to answer those 

quaations and I did and he refused, it 

would still be a petition to a diatriet 

judge to compel him, but -- well, that ia 

wheTe we are. 

Ma. KITCHELL: Could I heva counsel 

join me in auch a petition where this witness 

is concerned? 

TRX MASTER: You can certainly make that 

raquut. 

Kl. ODAK: OUt of fairneae to the 

witnaaa, and I don't mean thia facetioualy, 

I don't know if hia attorney ia praaant in 

the room, but parhapa he has bean adviaad 

to taka the Fifth Amendment to everything 

CIIATIIA~! & .-'\SSOC"L·fr E<; 
~C>OJI>7 """"'"'~""\ 
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I aaked. Maybe if I aaked the questions 

again, he would at least, since Mr. Mitchell 

asked him those two queetione, which he did 

testify to, perhaps if I asked him again, he ' 

would volunteer those an1wera. 

For one thing, I think it 1o extra­

ordinary for a witnaaa to take a Fl.fth 

Amendment privilege when hia counael i• not 

preaent. It is &lao axtraordinary -- well, 

that io all to oay 1 would like to, with 

leave of Court and oppoaing counsel, to 

roatate the queationa. 

T1IE MASTER.: You may do ao, 

(By Mr. Odam) Who repreaento you hera today, 

who is your lawyer? 

1 respectfully decline to ansver tba queation put 

to me on the grounds that the answer might tand 

to incriminate me. 

Did you get • lawyer? 

Well, let me complete that question. 

After Mr. Mitchell had talked to you and you 

anawered the queation a while ago, did you 

contact a lawyer to rapreaent you today? 

I reapectfully decline to answer tho queation put 

to me on the grounds that the answer may tend to 

<.:IIATI!A~i & ASSOCIATES 
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incriminate me. 

MR. OnAM: No further questions. 

MR. MITCHELL: We have nothing further. 

THE MASTER: You may stap down, but 

watt outside. 

Do you want to call another vitneoa at 

this time, Mr. Mitchell, or do you want to 

break at this tima? 

MR. MITCHELL: Well, Your Honor -­

THE MASTER: Well, let'e break until 

10:15. 

MR. MITCHELL: l thought I could run 

another one in, bue I had better not, because 

1 don't know what the progress is. 

THE MASTER: Well, we'll be in recess 

until 10:15. 

(A short race•• was taken.) 

CHATHAM & :\SSOCI:\TES 
COUI>T '"E"'O"TO:"! 
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

.9.Il.lli..!L 

CAME ON TO BE HEARD in the above styled 

matter} the application of the attorney for Judge 

No. 5, addressed to the Master and/or Commission, 

for a Section 8 petition to compel the witneas, 

, to appear at·a 

specific time and place to be questioned by the 

attorneys representing Judge No .• 5, and the Examiner, 

as regards matters that have arisen and are now re-

levant in this inquiry. 

The Master having read the petition, a~d 

having been in attendance at the proceeding leading 

up to the filing of the petition, and having acquainted 

himself with the applicable statute and the sections 

applicable thereto, and the appropriate section of 

the Constitution; and it appearing to the Court that 

said motion is proper in all things, and having been 

timely filed and presented to the Master and brought 

to his attention; 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED AND DECREED that 



... ·. 

rG:t57 
the same be granted, as evidenced by petition prepared 

by the Master to be filed forthwith pursuant to the 

dictates and mandates of Sections 8 and 14, and the 

related sections of Article 5966a, V.A.c.s. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

JAMES R • MEYERS 
:Judge 

- 2 -
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS C0111USSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

PETITION UNDER SECTION 8, ARTICLE 5966a, 
V.A.C.S., TO COMPEL \fiTNESS TO TESTIFY 
IN THE INQUIRy CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

COMES NOW ARTHUR MITCHELL, the undersigned 

attorney, representing Judge No~ 5, and respectfu"lly 

files this his request in behalf of Judge No. 5, for 

a petition to the appropriate district court for an 

Order by the appropriate district court compelling 

Tomas Elizondo to attend and testify 

before the Master in the above styled proceedings 

concerning the matters relating to the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceeding. In support of this 

request, the following facts are alleged: 

(1) The undersigned attorney for Judge No. 

5 caused to be subpoenaed TomBs Elizondo , 

a witness whose testimony was vitally necessary to the 

defense of Judge No. 5, during the inquiry concerning 

Judge No. 5 before the State Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, Judge James R. Meyers, Master. 

Exhibit 

(2) Questions (attached hereto and marked 

A ) were put to said witness during the 

course of the proceedings all within the confines of 

and within the intent of Sections 8 and 14 of Article 
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5966a, V.A.C.S., and as contemplated in Article 5, 

Section 1-a, Texas Constitution. The witness refused 

in all things to respond to said questions. Judge No. 

5 will be deprived of valuable defensive material 

unless the witness is given immunity and permitted to 

answer freely all relevant questions put to him by 

counsel for Examiner and Judge No. 5. 

(3) In this connection, the undersigned 

states that the witness, Tomaa El1zgndg 

is a person ''who refused to testify'' as contemplated 

by Section 8 and Section 14 of Article 5966a, V.A.C.S. 

and that he hereby requests the Master and/or the 

Commission to petition the appropriate district court 

to compel said witness to attend and to answer questions 

put to him relating to the matters relevant to the 

questions appearing in the attached exhibit and those 

relating logically thereto. 

(4) Undersigned attorney in behalf of his 

client, Judge No. 5 1 hereby requests the Examiner to 

join in this request that the l>1aster and/or Commission 

petition the appropriate district court for said Order. 

(5) The undersigned requests further that he 

be given appropriate notice of the time and place for 

the hearing before the district court, so that he may 

be in attendance in order to be assured that the 

immunity granted be broad enough to include each and 

every inquiry whi9h is a legitimate subject of this 

proceeding. 

~'IHEREFORE, premises considered, the under-

signed prays that the Master cause to be prepared 

and filed the necessary petition, in the proper and 

- 2 -
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appropriate district court as provided for in Section 

8 and Section 14 of the appropriate statute in terms 

and conditions as set out and blueprinted in said 

statute 1 and to all other reliefs to which he is 

entitled. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

submitted: 

Counsel for J 5 

- 3 -
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MR. MTTCHELL: We call Toms!=l Elizondo, 

olease, Jud~e MeyPrs. 

THE MASTER: All ri~ht, h• has been 

vrevi.ously sworn. 

Mr. Ell~ondo, you wPre here snme weekn 

ago and "'ere Rworn, were you not? 

MR. ELIZONDO: YPs, si.r. 

THE MASTER: You ere remi.ndPd you are 

sttll under oRth and you may ·have 8 seat. 

CIIIITHA~ & ASSOCIATES 
COURT RE.,ORTERJ 
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....... .c.., 

TOMAS ELIZONDO, 

cslted ~s 8 wi.tness~ havtn~ be~n orev1.~usly sworn, 

tE>Rti.fi.ed Ul)on hi.s oAt~ as follows. to.-wf.t: 

BY MR, MITCHELL: 

Q State your name for the recor~. 

A Tomas Elizondo. 

Q TomAR Elizondo? 

A Right. 

Q M.r. Ellzondo, I will ask you do you know 0, P. 

Carrf.llo? 

A I res~ectfully decl.tne and refuse to answer the 

Questions put to me on the ~rounds th8t the 

answers mi~ht tend to incriminate me. I claim 

this right under the -provisi.ons of the Fifth 

Amendment of tht'! Constitutt.on of the United StotP.~ 

and Article 1, Section 10, of the Texas Constitu· 

tion. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor. may w~ h•vP 

the semP undPrAtandinR with thin witness 

to obvtftte the necessity of hav1n~ hfm reopat 

the entirP clatm7 

THE MASTER: Y£>R, Mr. Eli.zondo, in the 

CHATilAM & ASSOCIATES 
(:OUftT ft~<>OI>TO:"$ 

717 A~TE1..0<>E • VUARANTV 8.uo<. <>i..AZA 
COFIPU5 CHRISTl, TEKA5 7U01 
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futurf" ~tll you havP. t(') s11y i.s,''I resnectftifi.y. 

2 declinP to an~wer'', an~ th~t will. bP under-

stood by all tn tnclude thP full statement 

you just msdP, 

5 A All ri.ght, 

6 Q Do you know Mr, D. C. Chaos? 

7 A Dec 1 f.nP. to answer. 

B Q Do you know Mr. ORear Carrillo? 

9 A I decli.ne tn answer, 

10 Q Do you know Mr. Rftmtro Carrillo? 

11 A I decline to answer. 

12 Q Do you know Roberto Elizondo? 

13 A I decltne to answPr. 

14 Q Do you know Roe:el:lo Guajardo? 

15 A I decline to answer. 

IS Q Eloy Carrilln? 

17 A I dec lf.ne to answer. 

18 Q D11vid Carri.llo? 

19 A I decltne to answer. 

~ Q Jose s~enz? 

21 A I decline to answer, 

MR. MITCHELL: This ~uestion, Your 

23 Hnnor, is nut to thP witness tn connection 

'' wi. th ~oman VI. 

~ Q I ASk you, Mr, --

CIIATHAM & t\SSOCIIITES 
COVIIT REPOIITE"S 

71? ,oNTE\.OPE • GUARANl Y BAN"> P\.AZA. 
CORPU~ CHRISTl, TEXA.S 78401 
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MR. ODAM: Pardon me, I would obiect 

2 to QUt>,!';ti.ons nut to thi.s wi.tness on Roman VI 

3 beceus~ it hAR both been ~7aminerl And cro~s-

examined by Jurl~e Carrillo end the Examiner~ 

5 and~ therefor~~ I would ob;ect on th~ grounds 

6 of relevancy as not releti.v~ to the sur 

1 r~buttAt at which stage we are in thts ~ro-

8 ceedings, Your Hnnor. 

9 Judge Carrillo have rested end this would 

10 be repetitious of other matters. 

11 MR. MITC !JELL: I think he ts correct. 

12 THE MASTER: I think nPrhaos he ts. 

13 MR. MITCHELL: I have bftf'l remi.nded by 

my client that I have QUE'Sti.oned htm and I 

15 withdrAw the Question. 

16 THE MASTER: All right. Go shearl. 

17 Q (By Mr. Mitchell:) Do you know Rurlolfo Coulinp? 

18 A I decti.ne to answer. 

19 Q Do you know the Benavides Imolement and Hardware? 

:20 A I decli.ne to enswer. 

21 Q Do you know the Farm and Ranch Supnly? 

22 A I decline to answer. 

~ Q Did you have sny understanding or agr~ement with 

24 P.tther D. c. Chsoa or 0. P. Carrf.llo or Oscar 

Csrrttlo or RRmfro Carrillo or Ro~Pli.o Guaiardo 

CIIATHAM &: ASSOCIATES 
COUIU 10t;P0RT£AI 
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eo• ootr.s 
to aonroor{At~ monies belon~ing to Duval County. 

t~e w~ter district or the school dtstrtct, Mr. 

Elizondo? 

A I decl.i.ne t~ an~wer, 

Q Did you have ~ny understandtn~ or agr~ement or 

di.d you Pnter into a conso{rhcy with D. C. Chaos. 

0. P. Carrillo~ Oscar Cerrtllo~ Remiro Carrillo, 

David Carrillo, Eloy Carrillo, or Jose Saen~ for 

the sporoprlati.on of services belonging to Duval 

County, the water district or the school district? 

A I decllne 

MR. ODAM: Before the witness gives his 

answer, I obiect on the grounds of relevancy 

to thr cRse out on by the E7amln~r: at no 

time durin~ our case wes Tomas Elizondo ever 

mentioned {n connection with these oth~r 

g~ntlPmen end at no oolnt on E-192 does hi~ 

name aooear as a oayee_ 

Th~refore, lt is irrelevant to thP. cAs~ 

thus far out on. it ,_,oulri mekP no mnrP di.ffPr 

encP there has not bPen any alle~atfons 

that if we nut on onP of the secretarips in 

h~re to ~Rk hPr the Rame nu~stions. I Ray 

i.t {A 1rre1Pv~nt to our ~eAe thuR far_ 

MR. MITCHELL: The t"PAson for thts ci!IRP, 

CIIATH1\M & ASSOCIATES 
C:OUIIT ~~POIITEI>S 

711 a,;f[~O~t • GUAIIA,;fy BA,;K PlAZA 
COR~US Cf-IRISTI, T£)(AS 7H01 
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Your Hnnor, m's observations 

arP on thetr face valid, but for one thinR, 

as Mr. Couli.np., in answf>r to a ouesti.on I 

out tn him on ~everal oc~as{ons, nev~r would 

say thAt thPs~ WPre all of th~ chrcks anrl 

thPn he said there might be somP morP out of 

I iust want to find out ~f this man knows 

any morP shout them othPr than --

MR. ODAM: Well, I .... _ this mf.ght not 

satisfy you on that, but t~P clarificarion 

Mr. CoulinP- stated the E-192 was an attempt 

to obtain every original cony of every check, 

every orip.tnal check plus every xeroxed cony 

t~rou~, Mr. Karl Wtlltams' testimony to 

totally reproduce the ent{re bank ac~ount 

An~ to th~ extent that thts stanrl~ for "thst 

ournosP, it is ther~, and I think thet Mr. 

Couling testified somewherp along those 

ltnf's. 

All I Am saytng ts I don't thi.nk it is 

relevant to go into further checks bssPd on 

even the ouestion 'OOSed to Mr. Coultn,e:. It 

would unduly burden thi~ rf'cord. 

THE MASTER: Not tn vi.ew of the answer, 

I overrule the objecti.on. 

CIIATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT "£<>0 .. T£"S 
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MR. MITCHELL: 

"~ (;():167 .. ------
HaS'"~i.tnesA answprPd? 

THE MASTER: No. hP. ha~ not. 

MR. MITCHELL~ May hP. an~wer, Your 

Honor? 

A I rieclinp to answer. 

THE MASTER: His answer was -- RO ahead 

and Answer thP Question~ 

A I decline to snswer. 

MR. MITCHELL: No further Questions. 

---·-·- ------ -- . --- ------------------------------------------>.J 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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3 BY MR. ODAM: 

5 Q 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 A 

II Q 

12 

13 A 

" 
Q 

IS 
A 

IS 
Q 

17 

18 A 

19 Q 

20 

21 

22 

A 

24 Q 

25 

My name is John Odam and I saw you here several 

weeks ago when you testified before. I would 

also like to ask you a few questions. 

Who is your attorney representing you h~~~ 

today? 

I decline to answer. 

Who is the attorney that advised you to take the 

Fifth Amendment when you testified before? 

I decline to answer. 

Is your attorney present in the courtroom today? 

I decline to answer. 

Who gave you the slip of paper off of which you 

read the Fifth Amendment privilege? 

I decline to answer. 

Did you ever -- strike that. 

How much money did you receive from the 

water district through Benavides Implement and 

Hardware? 

I decline to answer. 

How much money did you receive from the school 

district that was funneled to you through the 

Cflf. Tltf.~ & 1\SSOCIATES 
COURT f>~>'ORTCI>S 

711 ANl€~0PE • GUARANTY F.IANK P~AlA 

CORPV5 CH~ISTI, TE)(A$ 78'01 
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Benavides 
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I decline to answer. 

How much did you receive through the water 

district? 

I decline to answer. 

What type of arrangements did you have with 

Mr. Couling to get money from these three 

entities? 

I decline to answer. 

MR. ODAM: I pass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: No further questions. 

THE MASTER: You may step down. 

MR. MITCHELL: We will call Roberto 

Elizondo. 

THE MASTER: Mr. Elizondo, you were 

sworn before, were you not? 

ROBERTO ELIZONDO: Yes, sir. 

THE MASTER: You are reminded that you 

are still under oath in this proceeding 

today. 

CIIATH.Hf & ASSOCIATES 
COUitT REPOAT[OI$ 

711ANTELOPE • GUARANTY S,o,"ll PLAlA 
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COI-!rUSSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

.Q.lUl.JU!. 

CAME ON TO BE HEARD ~n the above styled 

matter, the appl~cat~on of the attorney for Judge 

No. 5, addressed to the Master and/or Commission, 

for a section 8 pet~tion to compel the witness, 

, to appear at· a 

specific time and place to be questioned by the 

attorneys representing Judge No .• 5, and the Examiner, 

as regards matters that have arisen and are now re-

levant in this ~nquiry. 

The ~laster having read the petition, and 

having been in attendance at the proceeding leading 

up to the filing of the petition, and having acquainted 

himself with the applicable statute and the sections 

applicable thereto, and the appropriate section of 

the Constitution; and it appearing to the Court that 

said motion is proper in all things, and having been 

timely filed and presented to the Master and brought 

to his attention; 

IT Is, THEREFORE, ORDERED AND DECREED that 



. · .. ···-:. ·~ 

r·t171 
·~ the same be grantee~ as evidenced by petition prepared 

by the Master to be filed. forthwith pursuant to the 

dictates and mandates of Sections 8 and 14, and the 

related sections of Article 5966a, V.A.c.s. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

JAMES R. MEYERS 
. ·Judge 

- 2 -
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

PETITION UNDER SECTION 8, ARTICLE 5966a, 
V.A.C.S., TO COMPEL WITNESS TO TESTIFY 
IN THE INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

COMES NOW ARTHUR MITCHELL, the undersigned 

attorney, representing Judge No. 5, and respectfully 

files this his request in behalf of Judge No. 5, for 

a petition to the appropriate district court for an 

Order by the appropriate district court compelling 

Oscar Carrillo Sr. to attend and testify 

before the Master in the above styled proceedings 

concerning the matters relating to the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceeding. In support of this 

request, the following facts are alleged: 

(l) The undersigned attorney for Judge No. 

5 caused to be subpoenaed Oscar Carrillo Sr. 

a witness whose testimony was vitally necessary to the 

defense of Judge No. 5, during the inquiry concerning 

Judge No. 5 before the State Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, Judge James R. Meyers, Master. 

(2) Questions (attached hereto and marked 

Exhibit A ) were put to said witness during the 

course of the proceedings all within the confines of 

and within the intent of Sections 8 and 14 of Article 
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5966a, V.A.C.S., and as contemplated in Article 5, 

Section 1-a, Texas Constitution. The witness refused 

in all things to respond to said questions. Judge.No. 

5 will be deprived of valuable defensive material 

unless the witness is given immunity and permitted to 

answer freely all relevant questions put to him by 

counsel for Examiner and Judge No. 5. 

(3) In this connection, the undersigned 

states that the witness, Oscar Carrillo Sr. 

is a person ''who refused to test1fy 11 as contemplated 

by Section 8 and Section 14 of Article 5966a, V.A.C.S. 

and that he hereby requests the Master and/or the 

Commission to petition the appropriate district court 

to compel said witness to attend and to answer questions 

put to him relating to the matters relevant to the 

questions appearing in the attached exhibit and those 

relating logically thereto. 

{4) Undersigned attorney in behalf of his 

client, Judge No. 5, hereby requests the Examiner to 

join in this request that the Master and/or Commission 

petition the appropriate district court for said Order. 

(5) The undersigned requests further that he 

be given appropriate notice of the time and place for 

the hearing before the district court, so that he may 

be in attendance in order to be assured that the 

immunity granted be broad enough to include each and 

every inquiry which is a legitimate subject of this 

proceeding. 

WHEREFORE, premises considered, the under­

signed prays that the Master cause to be prepared 

and filed the necessary petition, in the proper and 

- 2 -
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appropriate district court as provided for in Section 

8 and Section 14 of the appropriate statute in terms 

and conditions as set out and blueprinted in said 

statute, and to all other reliefs to which he is 

entitled. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

Res ctfully submitted: 

ARTHUR MITC 
Counsel for 

- 3 -
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R-1 

4390 

00175 
MR. MITCHELL: May I call Oscar 

Carrillo? 

3 THE MASTER: Yes, you may. 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 OSCAR CARRILLO, 

10 called as a witness, was duly sworn upon his oath 

11 to tell the truth, the whole truth and nothing but 

12 the truth, testified as follows, to-wit: 

13 

MR. MITCHELL: May I proceed? 

15 THE MASTER: Yes, please. 

16 

I? 

18 

19 BY MR. MITCHELL: 

21 Q 

22 A 

23 Q 

•• A 

25 

State your name. 

Oscar Carrillo, Sr. 

Are you the brother of Ramiro Carrillo? 

I respectfully decline to answer the questions 

put to me by the commission. I claim this right 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT R~POotTI;I>$ 

717 4NTEL0P£ • GUARANTY eANK PLAZA 
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12 Q 

13 

A 

15 Q 

16 A 

17 Q 

18 

19 A 

20 Q 

II 

A 

Q 

under the provisions0~1·1f?e Fifth Amendment to 

the Constitution of the United States and 

Article 1, Section 10 of the Constitution of the 

State of Texas. 

THE MASTER: In the future, you simply 

may say I respectfully decline to answer and 

it is agreed by all that includes the full 

statement you just made, is that correcL, 

gentlemen? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes. 

MR. ODAM: Yes. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Are you related to Judge 0. P. 

Carrillo? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Are you related to D. C. Chapa? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Do you know Rudy Couling, sometimes known as 

Rudolfo and sometimes R. M.? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Do you know for a fact he has a business named 

Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

I decline to answer. 

There has been information -- we have received 

information in the form of a check in the amount 

of five hundred dollars made out to Oscar Carrillo, 

Cti~THAM & ASSOCIATES 
COURT R£PORTI;fll! 
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Can you tell us whether or not on the 16th day of 

April, 1971, you received a check for five 

hundred dollars from Mr. Rudy Couling drawn on 

his Benavides Implement and Hardware account? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

MR. ODAM: We object to that question 

on the grounds that the purpose of the 

question and the answer would be to impeach 

Mr. Rudolfo Couling on questions raised on 

R-192, which was raised on rebuttal. 

Therefore, according to case law, 

testimony on collateral matters is 

inadmissible and irrelevant. We object 

on the grounds of irrelevancy and I have a 

number of cases whereby the witness cannot 

be 

THE MASTER: You don't have to quote 

the authority. 

You can impeach on a collateral matter. 

I will overrule the objection. 

MR. OOAM: I would like to have the 

same objection to each question of this type 

asked. 

THE MASTER: You may. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) There's testimony in the 

( IIATII.'\M & ASSOCIATES 
<:OU"T I>I!:P<)ItT("I 

717 ANlEl-0P[• GUARANll' BANI< Pl-.ZA 
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record by Mr. Couling that you and he had an 

agreement or entered into a conspiracy whereby 

monies would be paid to you from Benavides 

Implement and H?rdware. Did you have such an 

agreement or understanding with Mr. Couling? 

A I respectfully decline to answer. 

Q Did you have such an agreement or understanding 

with your brother Ramiro Carrillo? 

A I respectfully decline to answer. 

Q Did you have such an understanding or agreement 

as regards taking monies from Duval County or 

the water district or Duval School District 

through the vehicle Benavides Implement and 

Hardware? 

A I respectfully decline to answer. 

MR. MITCHELL: So the record is clear, 

I have reference to E-192-1, a check to 

Oscar Carrillo in the amount of five 

hundred dollars dated 4-16-71. 

Q (By Mr. Mitchell) I will ask you the same 

question as regards checks from the Benavides 

Implement and Hardware for the years 1971, '72, 

'73, '74 and '75, Mr. Carrillo. 

A I decline to answer. 

Q There is, in Exhibit E-192-1 through and 

CHATHAM&: ASSOCIATES 
COUAT 101!:"0AT~A' 
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16 
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including E-192-12, checks going from the 

Benavides Implement and Hardware to R. Carrillo 

and Brothers. I will ask you, do you own any 

interest in the R. Carrillo and Brothers? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Did you, as part owner or by having an interest 

in the same, did you have anything to do with 

respect and as regards the vehicle Benavides 

Implement and Hardware, receiving monies and 

paying them to R. Carrillo and Brothers? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Did you have an understanding or agreement with 

your brother Ramiro Carrillo, Mr. Carrillo, as 

regards the use of equipment belonging to Duval 

County, the water or school district? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Did you engage with him in a conspiracy, sir, to 

use the services of the county, water or school 

district? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Did you have an understanding with D. C. Chapa 

and/or your brother Ramiro or 0. P. as regards 

the use of equipment belonging to Duval County 

or the water or school district? 

I decline to answer. 

Ctli\THAM &: .'!SSOCIATES 
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0 I will. Ask y~u thP sam~ ouestton as re2ards an 

~P.reemPnt betwP.Pn you and your hrot~er. Rsmiro, 

0. P. and/or your father a~ rPRBrds t~P usr of 

services of the Duval c~unty w8tPr district or 

~chool. district. 

A Respectfully refu~P to Answer. 

Q h Davi.rl Carri.llo your son? 

A Respectfully refusP to answer. 

Q Did you havp &ny epreement or under~tandin~ with 

DAvid Carrillo as re~srds the sums being oatd to 

him under t~e -- by thP BPnavtdes Imnlement and 

H~rdwere accounts and snectftcally by Rudolfo 

Coul:f.ng from 4-16-71 through and includi.n$!: 12-1-741 

A I resof"ctfully rPfise to answer. 

MR. MITC'!ELL: 

this witnP~s, I h&ve reference -- I would 

11ke to makP " refPrence at E-192-?. throu~h 

and includinR 12 and soecif[call.y out to thP 

witness ouestions as regards esc~ and every 

check that reflects on that Exhiblt to him. 

I have n~t covered t~em all soectfical.ly. 

I hAve at::kPri htm 8bout thE' nnP arumrin~ at 

4-16-71 •nd 5-~~-71. 

THE MASTER: No, I toink 5-14-71. 

CIIA TIL\M & ASSOCIATES 
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o N 
MR, MITCHELL: 5-14-71., yPS, Jud_gp, Anrl 

6-17-7l. 

3 THE ~STER! Just ill!~k him the ouPsti.on • 

• In fact, I will ask i.t if Y<'U wt~h. 

5 MR. MITCHELL: I wnul.d &nnrPciatP it, 

6 Your Honor. 

7 THE ~S TER: Mister Carrf.ll.o, wou lrl 

8 your .~tns~er, that is, ''I resnectfully dec1.tne 

9 to answer'' be th~ sAme as to Any Question 

10 concernf.nv. Any chPck thltt W.ft~ made out to 

11 

12 A YPs, "fr. 

13 MR. MITCHELL: No further Que~ttons. 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

BY MR, ODAM_;, 

21 Q Mr. Carrillo, have we Pver met bPfore tortay? 

22 A I don't think so. 

23 Q Hl!lvP we PvPn mPt tnrlay'? 

24 A I h11ve seen you but I don't thf.nk we have mPt. 

25 Q My name :l.s .John OChrm and I work for tl,p Attorney 

C IIA I'IIAM Ill ASSO( IA'l /·.') 
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3 

• 
5 

6 

, 
8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

1? 

18 

18 

:w 

21 

22 

23 

•• 

GenerAl's nfft~P And I am sn Ex~mtner for thP 

JutHriRl Qualtff_cAtfon~ Commission. ArP you R 

formPr stRtP ~enRtnr? 

A I refuse to An~~er. 

Q Well, I believe you are so iu~t out of re~uect to 

you I w{l.l refer to you AS $pnator Carrillo. 

Senator Catrllln, whn i.~ yl'lur counsPl ~tdvisi.n.e 

ynu toriRy tn t~kP the Fifth Amendment? 

A I rPfus~ to Answer. 

Q Is your counRel nresent in the courtroom with you 

today? 

Q I~ your cnun~el ~1ttfn• bPs{dp you tnri~y? 

A I refusP to Answer. 

Q I nottcP th8t whPn you startPd tsking the Fifth 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

Amendment todAy, you were readtn~ from a niece 

nfl]IIOPT. Who .enve you thP TtfPC(> of nsoer that 

h8d thP Ftfth AmPndment writtPn on it? 

Dtd Mr. MitchPll P.~ you the 'IJJ.PcP of naner? 

I refu~P to 8n~wer. 

I~ Mr. Mf.tchell your attorney tn this ca~e? 

I refu~e to ans~Pr. 

HAve you been indicted by th~ Grand Jury tn Duv8l 

County? 

Lilli Til/\~!&: :\SS()( 11\TI·S 
CO<;P~ Pli;I 00F'!TLR! 
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Q Did Juf\:fo 0. P. Cnrri.ltn hRve an on1')r:ment tn hi.!'l 

3 
la~t rBce fl"'r Df.!'ltri.ct Jurl~e? 

A I rPfu~e to an~wPr. 

5 
Q Did he hav~ an onnonent i.n thP first race, the 

6 
f{r~t ttme he ran for ~lstrtet jud~e? 

' A I refu~P to ~nswer. 

8 
MR, ODAM: Pas~ t~e M{tnesA. 

9 
MR. MITCHELL: No furt~er ouesttons, 

10 
Your Honor. 

11 
THE MASTER: Thank you, you may steo 

12 
down, Mr. C8rrtllo. 

13 

(Di.scuA~{on off thP record,) 

15 THE MASTER: Who iR ne7t? 

16 

17 
(Discussion off thP rPcord.) 

18 
TTiE MASTER: Wf'll, Tit')W, we can USE> Mr. 

18 
I 

20 understend Mr. Abarca is f.n the hosottRl, 

21 MR. FLUSCHE: That i.s corrP.c t, s i.r. 

22 THE MASTER: With. you ludng fluent in 

23 Soanish, it seems to me that thAt ls R suffl-

2< cient check. 

25 JUDGE CARRILLO: Yes, the t is fine, thPrP 

II 
Ul1nli:H1 & ASSOCIATES 
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS CO~~ISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

Q II. ll JUl. 

CAME ON TO BE HEARD in the above styled 

matter, the application of the attorney for Judge 

No. 5, addressed to the Master and/or Commission, 

for a Section 8 petition to compel the witness, 

----------------- , to appear at a 

specific time and place to be questioned by the 

attorneys representing Judge No .• 5, and the Examiner, 

as regards matters that have arisen and are now re-

levant in this inquiry. 

The Master having read the petition, and 

having been in attendance at the proceeding leading 

up to the filing of the petition, and having acquainted 

himself with the applicable statute and the sections 

applicable thereto, and the appropriate section of 

the Constitution; and it appearing to the Court that 

said motion is proper in all things, and having been 

timely filed and presented to the Master and brought 

to his attention; 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED AND DECREED that 



00t85 
the same be granted 3 as evidenced by petition prepared 

by the Master to be filed forthwith pursuant to the 

dictates and mandates of Sections 8 and 14, and the 

related sections of Article 5966a, V.A.C.s. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

JAMES R. MEYERS 
:Judge 

- 2 -
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMIHSSION 

A US TIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

PETITION UNDER SECTION 8, ARTICLE 5966a, 
V.A.C.S., TO COMPEL WITNESS TO TESTIFY 
IN THE INQ!!IRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO 5 

COI1ES NOW ARTHUR MITCHELL, the undersigned 

attorney, representing Judge No. 5, and respectfully 

files this his request in behalf of Judge No. 5, for 

a petition to the appropriate district court for an 

Order by the appropriate district court compelling 

Roberto Elizondo to attend and testify 

before the Master in the above styled proceedings 

concerning the matters relating to the First Amended 

Notice of Formal Proceeding. In support of this 

.request, the following facts are alleged: 

(1) The undersigned attorney for Judge No. 

5 caused to be subpoenaed Roberto Elizondo 

a witness whose testimony was vitally necessary to the 

defense of Judge No. 5, during the inquiry concerning 

Judge No. 5 before the State Judicial Qualifications 

Commission, Judge James R. Meyers, Master. 

(2) Questions (attached hereto and marked 

Exhibit __ tj~ ____ ) were put to said witness during the 

course of the proceedings all within the confines of 

and within the intent of Sections 8 and 14 of Article 
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5966a, V.A.C.S., and as contemplated in Article 5, 

Section 1-a, Texas Constitution. The witness refused 

in all things to respond to said questions. Judge No. 

5 will be deprived of valuable defensive material 

unless the witness is given immunity and permitted to 

answer freely all relevant questions put to him by 

counsel for Examiner and Judge No. 5. 

(3} In this connection, the undersigned 

states that the witness, Roberto Elizondo 

is a person ''who refused to testify•• as contemplated 

by Section 8 and Section 14 of Arti.cle 5966a, V.A.c.s. 

and that he hereby requests the IJiaster and/or the 

Commission to petition the appropriate district court 

to compel said witness to attend and to answer questions 

put to him relating to the matters relevant to the 

questions appearing in the attached exhibit and those 

relating logically thereto. 

(4) Undersigned attorney in behalf or his 

client, Judge No. 5, hereby requests the Examiner to. 

join in this request that the Master and/or Commission 

petition the appropriate district court for said Order. 

(5) The undersigned requests further that he 

be given appropriate notice of the time and place for 

the hearing before the district court, so that he may 

be in attendance in order to be assured that the 

immunity granted be broad enough to include each and 

every inquiry which is a legitimate subject of this 

proceeding. 

\1HEREFORE, premises considered 1 the under-

signed prays that the Master cause to be prepared 

and filed the necessary petition, in the proper and 

- 2 -
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appropriate district court as provided for in Section 

8 and Section 14 of the appropriate statute in terms 

and conditions as set out and blueprinted in said 

statute, and to all other reliefs to which he is 

entitled. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

ARTHUR 
Counsel for J 

- 3 -
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ROBERTO ELIZONDO ()0189 

2 

3 

5 

6 

' 
8 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

'' 

' 
recalled as a witness, having been previously s~·1orn, 

testified as follows, to-wit: 

BY MR. MITCHELL: 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Your name, please, sir. 

Roberto Elizondo. 

Do you know Mr. D. C. Chapa? 

I refuse to answer the question on the grounds 

that the answer might tend to incriminate me. I 

claim this right under the provisions of the 

Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United 

States and Article 1, Section 10 ~f the 

Constitution of the State of Texas. 

THE MASTER: In the future, you can 

simply say 11 1 respectfully decline to answer, ' 

and that will be agreeable t<Tith all parties. 

MR. MITCHELL: Thank you, Judge Meyers. 

(By Mr. Mitchell) Do you know 0. P. Carrillo? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Do you know Oscar Carrillo? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

CIIIITHAM & • .t,.SSOCLHES eY. A COVI>T RI:<>OFITO:O .. 

717 ANffLOPE. GUARANTy BANI( PLAZA -
CORPUS CHRISTl, 'l'E;<.A5 T8~01 
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Do you know Ramiro Carri~Io? 

2 A I respectfully decline to answer. 

3 Q Do you know Rogelio Guajardo? 

4 A I respectfully decline to answer. 

5 Q Do you know Jose Saenz? 

6 A I respectfully decline to answer. 

7 Q Do you know Rudolfo Couling? 

8 A I respectfully decline to answer. 

9 Q Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

10 A I respectfully decline to answer. 

11 Q Do you know the business of the Farm and Ranch 

12 Store? 

13 A I respectfully decline to answer. 

14 Q Did you receive monies from the Benavides 

15 Implement and Hardware account from 4-16-71 

16 through and including 12-31-74, Mr. Elizondo? 

17 A I respectfully decline to answer. 

18 Q Did you have an understanding or agreement with 

19 Mr. Couling or Rudolfo Couling or D. C. Chapa as 

20 regards wrongfully appropriating monies from 

21 the Duval County Water District or School 

District or Duval County through the vehicle 

Benavides Implement and Hardware? 

24 A I respectfully decline to answer. 

Q Did you have an agreement with anyone as regards 

CHATHAM & ASSOCIATES 
COVAT AI!:POATEPS 
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services of individual~-~om the water district I 
or school district or Duval County? 

I decline to answer. 

MR. MITCHELL: Pass the witness . 

I 
I 

12 BY MR. ODAM: 

13 

" 
Q 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

23 A 

24 Q 

A 

Mr. Elizondo, my name is John Odam. I believe 

you were not examined by me earlier, but by 

Mr. Flusche before. I would like to ask you.a 

few questions. 

When you were here before and you testified 

at that time, and as the record indicates, you 

invoked, as you have a right to invoke, the 

Fifth Amendment privilege at that time. Who. 

was your attorney? 

I decline to answer. 

Was Arthur Mitchell your attorney? 

I decline to answer. 

Clf!r.THAM & ASSOCIATES 
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1 

6 

9 

10 

II 

12 

13 

It 

IS 

16 

17 

18 

18 

20 

21 

22 

~. 
Q At the time you are here today, who is your 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

Q 

A 

attorney? 

I decline to answer. 

Have you retained counsel to advise you today? 

I respectfully decline to answer, 

Has an attorney given you the sheet of paper 

that has the Fifth Amendment privilege written 

on it? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Are you acquainted with Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

Are you a court reporter for Judge 0. P. Carrillo? 

I respectfully decline to answer. 

How long have you been a court reporter? 

I decline to answer. 

MR. ODAM: Pass the witness. 

MR. MITCHELL: No further questions. 

THE MASTER: You may step down. 

MR. MITCHELL: Your Honor, we have no 

further witnesses or testimony, I do have 

a motion,or petition would be the proper 

denomination of the document, that I would 

like to call to the attention of the Master 

and with the Master's permission. I would 

like to read off the petition and its 

CUIITHAM & ASSOCIATES 
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19 
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21 

24 

relevancy and file it with the proper 

repository for such filing. 

THE MASTER: Well, deliver it to me and 

I will deliver it to Mr. Pipkin, who will be 

its custodian, but I see no point in reading 

it. 

MR. MITCHELL: All right, sir. 

THE MASTER: Do you want to recess in 

order to get the answers of the witnesses 

this morning attached to those motions? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, I have the 

petitions and attached to them are the 

extracts from the testimony produced at our 

request by the court reporter, along with an 

order we would like to deliver to the Master. 

THE MASTER: That is of the witnesses 

yesterday? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, that is true. 

I have today the petition prepared 

for the following, Tomas Elizondo, Roberto 

Elizondo 

THE MASTER: But you don't want to file 

them yet, do you? Don't you want to attach 

the excerpts of their testimony? 

MR. MITCHELL: Yes, but I wanted to make 

Ctlt.TttAM &: :\SSOCIAT£5 
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BEFORE THE STATE JUDICIAL QUALIFICATIONS COMMISSION 

AUSTIN, TEXAS 

INQUIRY CONCERNING JUDGE NO. 5 

.0.1\.ll.};.l\. 

CAME ON TO BE HEARD in the above styled 

matter, the application of the attorney for Judge 

No. 5~ addressed to the Master and/or Commission~ 

for a Section 8 petition to compel the witness, 

----'--------------, to appear at a 

specific time and place to be questioned by the 

attorneys representing Judge No .• 5~ and the Examiner, 

as regards matters that have arisen and are now re-

levant in this inquiry. 

The ~laster having read the petition, and 

having been in attendance at the proceeding leading 

up to the filing of the petition, and having acquainted 

himself with the applicable statute and the sections 

applicable thereto, and the appropriate section of 

the Constitution; and it appearing to the Court that 

said motion is proper in all things, and having been 

timely filed and presented to the Master and brought 

to his attention; 

IT IS, THEREFORE, ORDERED AND DECREED that 

. :.:::.-... 
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r·(;195 
the same be granted, as evidenced by petition prepared 

by the Master to be filed forthwith pursuant to the 

dictates and mandates of Sections 8 and 14, and the 

related sections of Article 5966a, V.A.c.s. 

CORPUS CHRISTI, TEXAS, December 30, 1975. 

JAMES R • ME YEllS 
·Judge 

- 2 -


